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STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION
BOARD OF RISK AND INSURANCE MANAGEMENT

Jim Justice John A. Myers Mary Jane Pickens
Governor Cabinet Secretary Executive Director
Deputy Cabinet Secretary

August 28, 2017

Honorable Jim Justice, Governor
State of West Virginia

Governor Justice:

The Annual Report of the West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management (BRIM)
for the year ended June 30, 2017 is hereby respectfully submitted. This report was prepared
by the staff of BRIM. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the
completeness and fairness of the presentation rests with the management of BRIM. We
believe the data, as presented, is accurate and that it is presented in a manner designed to
fairly set forth the results of the operations of BRIM. All information necessary to enable the
reader to gain an understanding of BRIM’s operational activities has been included.

The Annual Report contains discussions of the financial activities and highlights for the past
several fiscal years, and BRIM’s organization chart. The minutes of the Board of Directors
meetings are attached as a supplement to this report.

BRIM is reported as an enterprise fund operating as a single business segment, included as a
blended component unit of the primary government in the State’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report (CAFR). After applying the criteria set forth in generally accepted
accounting principles, BRIM management has determined there are no organizations that
should be considered component units of BRIM.
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BRIM is governed by a five-member board appointed by the governor for terms of four
years. BRIM operates by the authority granted in Chapter 29, Article 12; Chapter 33, Article
30; and Chapter 20, Article SH of the West Virginia Code as amended, and the provisions of
Executive Order 12-86. The day-to-day operations of BRIM are managed by the executive
director, who is responsible for the implementation of policies and procedures established by
the Board members.

BRIM is charged with providing insurance coverage to all state agencies. Additionally,
BRIM provides these services to cities, counties, and non-profit organizations throughout the
State under the provisions of Senate Bill #3 (SB#3). BRIM also provides a coal mine
subsidence reinsurance program, which allows homeowners and businesses to obtain
insurance coverage up to $200,000 for collapses and damage caused by underground coal
mines.

BRIM uses various means to cover its insureds. Although BRIM is not indemnified by an
insurance company, it contracts with an insurance company that is compensated for claims
handling with a flat fee. The primary methods used by BRIM to fund claims payments results
in a more stable and predictable funding of claims and claims related expenses, allowing for
better cash management for the organization.

Beginning in fiscal year 1996, liability claims were handled through a “Modified Paid Loss
Retrospective” rating program, which required an up-front deposit to an insurance company.
As losses occur, payments and reserves are established and charged against the deposit.
When the amount of paid losses within a twelve-month period exceeds the amount of the
deposit, a retrospective billing is produced and BRIM pays that additional amount to the
Insurance company.

Beginning in fiscal year 2006, BRIM deposited monies with a financial institution, as trustee,
to hold advance deposits in an escrow account for BRIM liability claims with loss dates after
June 30, 2005. The funds held in escrow, together with their earnings, will be used to fund
the payment of the claims and claims adjustment expenses related to these liability claims.
Periodically, monies are transferred from the escrow account to the insurance company
administering these claims in order to reimburse the insurance company for payments that
they have issued on these claims and claims adjustment expenses on BRIM’s behalf.
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Property losses are retained by BRIM up to $1 million. Additionally, excess coverage is
provided beyond the $1 million retention up to a limit of $400 million per occurrence. This
coverage provides reimbursement of loss at the stated or reported value less a $2,500
deductible. Under the mine subsidence program, participating insurers pay BRIM a
reinsurance premium, which is equal to the gross premiums collected for mine subsidence
coverage, less cancellations, less a 30% ceding commission.

BRIM currently insures approximately 170 state agencies, approximately 986 Senate Bill #3
entities, plus provides mine subsidence reinsurance to approximately 131,000 home and
business owners.

Financial Highlights

The financial statements of BRIM are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. In 1993, the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 20, "Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund
Accounting." BRIM elected to implement the provisions of this Statement beginning in
fiscal year 1994. As permitted by the Statement, BRIM has elected not to adopt Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) statements and interpretations issued after November
30, 1989, unless the GASB specifically adopts such FASB statements or interpretations.

Internal Accounting Structure and Budgetary Control

As mentioned, BRIM reports and meets the requirements of an enterprise fund. BRIM’s
assets and liabilities are accounted for in a single fund.

Internal controls have been put in place to ensure the assets and property of BRIM are
protected from theft, loss or misuse and to provide adequate accounting data for preparing
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) based financial statements.

Internal controls are established to provide reasonable assurance that objectives are met.
Additionally, the concept of reasonable assurance should recognize that the cost to administer
the control should not exceed the benefits derived from the control.

An annual budget is prepared prior to the start of each fiscal year for use as a management
tool and for evaluating performance.
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BRIM On-Line

We invite you to visit BRIM’s website at http://www.brim.wv.gov/Pages/default.aspx.
The website is designed to inform the public about our program and to provide assistance
to our customers. One feature allows claimants to submit a claim electronically for faster
processing and handling. Detailed instructions on how to fill out a renewal questionnaire
are also found on-line. A variety of frequently asked questions on topics ranging from
billing to underwriting can also be found on this site.
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Results of Operations

Below are audited results from operations of four most recent fiscal years ended June 30:

2013 2014 2015 2016
(In thousands)
Operating Revenues:

Premiums $47,134 $52,128 $58,204 $65,293
Less Excess Coverages (5.825) (6.102) (6.197) (6,909)
Net Operating Revenues 41,309 46,206 52,007 58,384
Operating Expenses:

Claims & Claims Adjustment 54,108 61,626 68,145 63,753

General Administrative 3,275 3,898 3,541 3.905
Total Operating Expenses 57,293 65,524 71,686 67,658
Operating Income (Loss) (15,894) (19,498) (19,679) (9,274)
Non-Operating Revenues:

Interest Income 7,835 17,043 4,833 7,413

Appropriation Transfer - (2,000) | .
Net Income (8,149) (4,455) (15,596) (1,861)
Retained earnings

at beginning of year 221,515 213,366 208,911 192,820
Retained earnings
at end of year $213,366 $208,911 $192,820 $190,959

BRIM has worked diligently for the past several years to maintain positive retained
earnings and eliminate its unfunded liability. Favorable loss patterns and adequate
funding have enabled BRIM to maintain positive net position from 2005 thru 2016.
BRIM may occasionally experience some adverse loss development. Premiums continue
to be calculated on a basis consistent with exposure and loss trends. It is also important
to note that BRIM has not received any state appropriations since 2005. BRIM will
continue to closely monitor claims activity with our independent actuary and will bill
premiums accordingly. Efforts are being undertaken to increase the emphasis on loss
control by state agencies and Senate Bill #3 entities, including educational classes and
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seminars on sexual harassment, discrimination, liability deductibles, defensive driving
classes, and personally meeting with Cabinet Secretaries to discuss loss histories of the
agencies under their supervision.

The chart below shows the net assets for the past ten years. All years shown have a
positive net position.

Net Assets
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West Virginia Patient Injury Compensation Fund

House Bill 2122, signed into law on April 8, 2003, created a patient injury compensation
fund study board “to study the feasibility of establishing a patient injury compensation
fund to reimburse claimants in medical malpractice actions for any portion of economic
damages awarded which are uncollectible due to statutory limitations on damage awards
for trauma care and/or the elimination of joint and several liability of tortfeasor health
care providers and health care facilities.”

Through the combined efforts of the BRIM staff, Insurance Commissioner’s Office and
West Virginia Hospital Association, the study was completed and a report was submitted
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to the Joint Committee on Government and Finance of the West Virginia Legislature on
December 1, 2003, recommending that the fund be established. On April 2, 2004, House
Bill 4740 was signed into law, effective June 11, 2004.

The fund is administered and operated by BRIM. During fiscal year 2005, BRIM began
receiving appropriated funds into this account. Eligibility for reimbursement is based on
the claimant’s inability, after exhausting all reasonable means available for recovering the
award, to collect all or part of the economic damages awarded due to the caps.

Audit

BRIM is required by the Financial Accounting and Reporting Section (FARS) of the
Department of Administration to have an annual independent audit. The firm of Dixon
Hughes Goodman, LLP was selected to perform the audit for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2017. The June 30, 2017 report will be available near the end of October 2017.

Risk Management

BRIM is charged with providing loss control and risk management services to all insured
entities throughout the State. BRIM accomplishes this task through a number of programs.
All property insured by BRIM with a value of $1 million or more is inspected annually.

Additionally, BRIM holds various seminars and training programs for its insureds throughout
the year. Topics include boiler operation, employment practices, and general loss prevention.

Cash Management

BRIM’s cash and cash equivalents are managed by the Board of Treasury Investments
according to the provisions of the Code of West Virginia. BRIM management monitors cash
balances on both a daily and a monthly basis.

Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting

The West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report for the year ended June 30, 2016, from which the information on page(s)
one through eight have been drawn, was awarded the Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting by the Government Finance Officers Association of the
United States and Canada (GFOA). The Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of
recognition for excellence in state and local government financial reporting. In order to be
awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both
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generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our
current comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of
Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its
eligibility for another certificate.

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

Since June 30, 1995, BRIM has issued a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR).
This report contains an introductory section, a financial section and a statistical section. The
financial section will contain audited data for June 30,2017. The CAFR for fiscal year 2017
will be issued before December 31, 2017. A copy of this report will be sent to the
Governor’s Office upon completion.

Acknowledgments

This report would not be possible without the assistance of the BRIM staff and the support of
the Board members.

Sincerely,

Mary Jane Pickens
Executive Director
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Listing of Coverages in Effect for Fiscal Year 2017

LIABILITY LIMIT OF LIABILITY

Automobile Liability § 1,000,000 per occurrence
Policy No.: CA 293-58-36
Company: National Union Fire Insurance Co.

Cyber Liability b 25,000,000 per occurrence
Policy No.: UMR B1262FI0687316
Company: Arthur J. Gallagher International

General Liability $ 1,000,000 per occurrence
Policy No.: GL 379-66-63
Company: National Union Fire Insurance Co.

Aircraft Liability $ 1,000,000 per occurrence
Policy No.: AV003380147-14
Company: National Union Fire Insurance Co.

Excess Liability-Bd. of Education $ 5,000,000 per occurrence
Policy No.: 48409866 or claim
Company: The Insurance Company

of the State of Penn

PROPERTY LIMIT OF LIABILITY

Blanket Property $ 25,000,000 primary layer
Policy No.: MAF760728-16 1,000,000 deductible
Company: Axis Insurance Company

Policy No.: NHD397123 $ 100,000,000 in excess of
Company: RSUI 25,000,000

Policy No.: 795004745 $ 75,000,000 in excess of
Company: One Beacon 125,000,000

Policy No.: MAF733355-16 $ 200,000,000 in excess of
Company: Axis Insurance Company 200,000,000

Policy No.: MAF760729-16 $ 10,000,000 flood with
Company: Axis Insurance Company 1,000,000 deductible
Boiler and Machinery $ 5,000,000 per equipment covered
Policy No.: FBP2280385 in excess of 1,000,000

Company: Hartford Steam Boiler Company

Public Insurance Variable amounts as set by Statute
Official Position Schedule Bond

Bond No.: 106129387

Company: Travelers

Source: Information compiled from the West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management’s internal data.

9
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Top 10 State Agency Premiums for Fiscal Year 2017

1 West Virginia University $8,708,478
2 Division of Highways 5,681,104
3 State Police 5,435,992
4 Department of Health & Human Resources 3,573,472
5 Marshall University 2,681,524
6 Division of Corrections 2,249,410
7 Regional Jail and Corrections Facility Authority 1,112,484
8 Supreme Court of Appeals 624,590
9 West Virginia University Medical Corp. 612,786
10 West Virginia State Parks 583,075
Total Top Ten $31,262,915

Total State Premium Billing for 2017 $42,745,235
% of top 10 in relation to all state agency billings 73.14%

Top 20 SB 3 Premiums for Fiscal Year 2017

1 Kanawha County Board of Education $1,607,616
2 Berkeley County Board of Education 734,971
3 Raleigh County Board of Education 720,305
4 City of St. Albans 611,275
5 Cabell County Board of Education 520,306
6 Harrison County Board of Education 510,071
7 Putnam County Board of Education 494,195
8 Mingo County Commission 461,756
9 Wayne County Board of Education 448,181
10 Logan County Board of Education 389,727
11 Mercer County Board of Education 388,152
12 Jefferson County Board of Education 379,783
13 Mingo County Board of Education 363,089
14 Monongalia County Board of Education 359,333
15 Marion County Board of Education 353,726
16 Wood County Board of Education 353,708
17 Fayette County Board of Education 314,898
18 Logan County Commission 296,955
19 McDowell County Board of Education 290,982
20 Kanawha Valley Regional Transportation 281,309
Total Top Twenty $9.880,338

Total SB 3 Premium Billing for 2017 $28,471,653

% of top 20 in relation to total SB 3 billings 34.70%

10
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Premiums by Line of Business for the Past Ten
Years
50,000
40,000 "*‘\ —e— State Agencies

£ 3

530,000 w/ —=— Senate Bill 3

e

$20,000 =" | \ine

= Subsidence

10,000 ——House Bill 601
B e e T —
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Fiscal Year Ending June 30
(expressed in thousands)

Fiscal Year State Agencies Senate Bill 3 Mine Subsidence House Bill 601
2007 $ 39,091 $ 39,481 $ 1,676 -
2008 $ 36,259 $ 34,875 $ 1,852 -
2009 $ 31,596 $ 28,902 $ 1,929 -
2010 $ 28,257 $ 27,889 $ 1,861 -
2011 $ 25,239 $ 25,233 $ 2,032 $ 34
2012 $ 25,290 $ 23,603 $ 2,090 $ 63
2013 $ 25,607 $ 19,345 $2,142 $ 40
2014 $ 27,226 $ 22,642 $ 2,220 $§ 40
2015 $32,118 $ 23,781 $ 2,261 $ 44
2016 $37,688 $25,147 $2,398 $§ 60

The chart above shows premiums by line of business for the past ten fiscal years, expressed
in thousands of dollars. This chart illustrates a general downward trend of premiums for
State Agencies and Senate Bill 3 customers until 2014,

Source: BRIM’s internal financial statements.

11
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Claims Dollars Incurred by

Customer Type
Fiscal Years 2007 Through 2016

(expressed in thousands)

$3,905 .
B State Agencies

$25,777

$18,130
$13,104
$8,679

B Boards of Education
OCounty Commissions

DOCities / Towns
$168,404

OOther Local Governments

$62,375
B Non Profits

®Reinsurance for Mine Subsidence

Source: Information compiled from the West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance
Management’s internal data.
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STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA
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AGENDA
BOARD MEETING OF THE
WEST VIRGINIA BOARD OF RISK AND
INSURANCE MANAGEMENT

June 13, 2017
Chairman Martin Call to Order

Chairman Martin Approval of Board Minutes
March 21, 2017

REPORTS
Mary Jane Pickens Executive Director's Report
Executive Director
Stephen W. Schumacher, CPA Financial Report
Chief Financial Officer PCard Report
Jeremy Wolfe Loss Control Report

Loss Control Manager

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

ADJOURNMENT
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CALL TO ORDER

The meeting of the West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management was
called to order by Chairman Martin at 1:00PM on Tuesday, June 13, 2017. The meeting

was held at 1124 Smith Street, Suite 4600, Charleston, West Virginia.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Vice Chairman Mitts moved the approval of the March 21, 2017 Board Meeting
minutes. The motion was seconded by Mr. Dodrill. There being no discussion, a vote

was taken and the MOTION ADOPTED.

REPORTS

Executive Director’s Report

Chairman Martin welcomed Commissioner McVey and noted that we are happy
to have the Commissioner attend a meeting. He also commented that the Office of the
Insurance Commissioner has been well represented.

The Executive Director's Report was received and filed, a copy is attached and
made part of the record.

Mrs. Pickens welcomed the new insurance commissioner. She thanked him for |
attending the meeting.

Mrs. Pickens announced that Linda Dexter would be leaving BRIM at the end of
the month. She thanked her for her service and for assisting her especially when she

first came to BRIM.
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New claims YTD total is 1041 in comparison to the previous year of 1254, a
decrease of 16.98%. Closed claims YTD total is 1221 versus the previous year of 1271,
a decrease of 3.93%. Open claims YTD total is 930 versus 1012 from the previous
year, which represents an 8.82% decrease.

Effective June 10, 2017, BRIM welcomed the addition of the Privacy Department
which we are excited about and feel is a positive. One of the many effects of the
passing of House Bill 2459 was the moving of the State Privacy Office from the
HealthCare Authority to the BRIM. This was pursuant to an executive office signed by
Governor Justice on May 18, 2017. Three former employees of the HealthCare
Authority’s State Privacy Office are now employees of BRIM. We welcome Chief
Privacy Officer Sallie Milam, Assistant Chief Privacy Officer Lori Tarr, and
Administrative Secretary Sue Haga. They bring a great resource to our agency.

Much has occurred with the Patient Injury Compensation Fund (PICF) since our
March meeting. At the end of May, the Executive Review Committee issued eight
letters recommending awards for approval by the Court totaling $4,582,209.62.
Claimants have a period of 30 days from receipt of the awards to request an
administrative hearing on the Executive Review Committee’s actions. If no hearing is
requested, the award will be final in FY2017 and will be part of the group of claims
which a payment method for the year will be determined. Four more claims are pending
and clearly the amount of the awards will exceed the funds available for distribution.
Funding sources designated by SB 602 received between July 1, 2016 and June 5,
2017 total $958,381.25. As of June 5, 2017, the balance in the PICF was

$2,446,768,54.
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We have a new sound system and this is our first meeting testing out this new
equipment. We decided to upgrade to make certain that the important work of the Board
is correctly recorded and preserved. The excess furniture in the back of the room
needs to be sent to surplus. Many of these items came to us with the Privacy Office
and we were fortunate to update with some of their items and equipment. We have
finished shifting around furniture and office supplies and now the remainder needs to go
to surplus.

Beginning with the update of Marshall and WVU Medical Malpractice Programs.
As of June 6, 2017, Marshall has deposited $1,325,000.00 into the escrow account for
FY2017. The fiscal year-to-date cumulative interest totals $10,532.53. So far in
FY2017 disbursements totaling $1,349,731.42 have been paid. WVU has deposited
$6,617,785.00 into the escrow account. Year-to-date cumulative interest totals
$19,314.81 and distributions totaling $6,637,266.00 have been paid.

In terms of litigation, three cases have been tried to verdict which are all in
Kanawha County, resulting in one defense verdict and two plaintiff verdicts. My report
goes further into detail regarding these cases. One plaintiff's verdict case was
somewhat insignificant. The other was a Department of Correction’s lawsuit, the verdict
was $1,500 in compensatory damages $35,000 in punitive damages and the case is still
pending.

Outstanding claims were reviewed as of May, 2017. Indemnity reserves of
$55,342394.00 in comparison to May 2016 of $59,444.173.00 which is a decrease of
6.9%. Expense reserves total of $19,577,543.00 versus May 2016 Expense reserves of

$20,930,651.00 a decrease of 6.46%.
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data collection processes from the agencies. A form is being developed which is similar
to what we currently have so transition should be minimal.

The only legislative update is SB 151 authorizing BRIM to promulgate two
legislative rules, the first relating to the Patient Injury Compensation Fund and the other
dealing with mine subsidence insurance. These changes were necessary because of
legislation passed during the 2016 Regular Session. There was a SB 454 which the
Supreme Court ran that will enable them to fully implement a technology system for the
circuit clerks and that touches on BRIM in relation to the PICF, it changed the way the
money comes from the circuit clerks to the fund. We have addressed some of our
concerns with the Court.

Our website is in the planning stages of a reorganization. This is happening
because of a website bill which was passed and then vetoed by the Governor. The veto
was mostly due to requirements that large agencies with numerous employees would
have been burdensome. We anticipate the governor requesting website updates and
asking us to provide additional information. We have met about this once and we are
planning these updates to coincide with brining the Privacy Department on. We are
going to add rules to our website which we have not had in the past.

We have been working with our local USI on Boards of Education excess liability
policy and renewal of the state property policy. BRIM is proud to have received, for the
22" year in a row, the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.
The is for the CAFR for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016.

STRIMA meeting in Montana this year September 17" through the 215t. We are

still making decisions on who will attend, due to budget concerns. Melody is President
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We have received two lawsuits from attorneys representing PICF claimants. The
letters are very similar and basically the intent is to challenge the way BRIM assesses
the trauma centers. Also, intends to challenge BRIM'’s ability to do structured awards or
the method of structuring awards.

Concerning cyber liability, FY2018 invoices for the first time include allocated
premiums for coverage. Our research into allocation methods found that basing it on
payroll is a consistent methodology. FY2018 renewal documents were executed on
June 5, 2017 for the cyber liability policy. The rate was reduced by approximately 8%
and the coverage will remain the same as last year. There was discussion regarding
the need for additional coverage for business income loss. We are reaching out to
agencies most likely to need that coverage, if necessary this can be added later. Our
next push on the cyber liability front is the Boards of Education. This is in anticipation of
FY2019 to gather information necessary to obtain coverage for those entities.

To update the Board on the Risk Management Information System (RMIS), there
have been discussions with AIG and Emerson Risk Solution regarding interface with
AIG and the new system and the costs for exporting data from AIG to the new system.
After a recent meeting with OT, the next step is to inform AIG of our needs and agreeing
on a price for a daily feed so Emerson can complete work on that aspect of the system.
An upcoming demo with Emerson should give BRIM management a sense of where we
are in the development of the project. The demo will clarify work performed and work
yet to be performed. There has been one change order and we are reviewing to be
certain it is appropriate in both scope and cost before going forward with it. Once the
new system is in place we will have much better customer experiences and make our

jobs much easier. Question was asked if the new system would require a change in the
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elect this year and Robert is on the Executive Committee so they will be attending and
we would like to send more if possible.
Mrs. Pickens concluded her report.

BRIM Financial Report

There being no questions for Mrs. Pickens, Chairman Martin called upon Mr.
Schumacher to present the Chief Financial Officer's Report.

The Chief Financial Officer's Report was received and filed, a copy is attached
and made part of the record.

Mr. Schumacher began his report by acknowledging the financial staff at BRIM.
To receive the Achievement of Excellence in Financial Reporting for the 22" year is
quite an accomplishment from such a small staff. He acknowledged Stephen Panaro,
Niki Miller-Casdorph and Connie Bloss who are always more than willing to do whatever
it takes to meet those requirements; he thanked them for their hard work.

Mr. Schumacher reviewed the P Card activity for the months of February, March
and April 2017. There is no unusual activity during the three-month period.

Mr. Schumacher reported that he approached the financial results differently for
this report to make it more informative. He reviewed the Statements of Net Position and
highlighted the outstanding liabilities for all the programs. We have had an increase in
claims expense but much less than last year so it's encouraging that trends in liabilities
may beginning to level off. Net liability claims payments are $8.3 million higher and net
property claims payments also increased by $1.0 million for the first ten months of FY17
versus the same period last year. On a cash payment basis, we were up 9.3 million this

year and that reflects the overall increase we saw in the reserves for FY16 of 9.1

million.
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Investment Income was reviewed and Mr. Schumacher informed the group that
we are doing better than we did last year. The markets are not operating in a normal
environment at this point; however, this year the numbers are better all on the equity
side. The second page of the report gives an overall prospective for a better view of the
financial picture. Mr. Schumacher asked for any questions.

Loss Control Report

There being no questions for Mr. Schumacher, Chairman Martin asked
for the Loss Control Report. Usually Mr. Fisher presents the report; however, he and
Sallie Milam are in Virginia attending the National Governor’s Association Cyber
Summit. Jeremy Wolfe presented the report.

The report was received and filed, a copy of which is attached and made a part
of the record.

Mr. Wolfe began his report by honoring a long-time employee of the Loss Control
Department, Christine Johnson. Ms. Johnson is retiring at the end of the month with
thirteen years of service. Mr. Wolfe commented on her hard work and dedication. He
stated that she had been part of all the successes in the Loss Control Department and
that she would be missed.

Mr. Wolfe reported the Loss Control questionnaires were sent to all state
agencies in May. These questionnaires are to be submitted to BRIM by August 1, 2017.
It will take us a couple of months to evaluate the information which will be gathered for
calculation of loss control surcharges for fiscal year 2019.

We have renewed contracts with Aon Global Risk Consulting for our insurance
loss control inspection and Hartford Steam Boiler Insurance and Inspection Company

for boiler and air conditioning systems insurance. The report specifically reviews the
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activity with both Hartford and Aon. During this quarter, Aon conducted 157 inspections
and Hartford conducted 604.

Mr. Wolfe reported loss control technical staff visits. The staff have conducted 9
Loss Control visits; 8 Standards of Participation visits; and 2 Presentation visits. In
March, we started a Flood Mitigation visit. These visits are held with insured in locations
that we know are in flood zones. These visits will begin taking place this month. We
have identified 21 state agency locations and those locations have insurance values of
more than one million dollars. We are going to focus on the state agencies first and
then approximately 53 Senate Bill 3 locations that we will also visit. Mrs. Pickens
commented that a bill was passed that brought back an old flood plan and BRIM was
not mentioned but it did set up committees to study and make plans to reduce risk to life
and property. At the appropriate time, | will probably offer our input and say that we are
available for assistance.

No questions followed, which concluded the Loss Control Report.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

There was no unfinished business to be discussed.

Chairman Martin took a moment to thank Christine for her dedication to the Loss
Control Department. He then commented that he had worked closely with Linda and
would miss her assistance. He extended best wishes to both Christine and Linda and

told them to enjoy retirement.

NEW BUSINESS

There was no new business to be discussed.
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ADJOURNMENT

There being nothing further, the meeting adjourned at 1:48PM.

Board Chairman Date
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Executive Director’s Report

June 13, 2017

A. Marshall University and West Virginia University Medical Malpractice Program

* As of June 6, 2017, Marshall has deposited $1,325,000.00 into the escrow account for
FY2017. The fiscal year-to-date cumulative interest totals $10,532.53. Disbursements totaling
$1,349,731.42 have been paid thus far in FY 2017.

* As of June 6,2017, a total of $6,617,785.00 funds have been deposited into WVU's escrow
account for FY 2017. The fiscal year-to-date cumulative interest totals $19,314.81.
Disbursements totaling $6,637,266.00 have been paid thus far in FY 2017.

B. State Agency/Senate Bill #3 Liability Claim & Litigation Information

TRIALS

Thus far in 2017, we have tried three cases, all in Kanawha County, resulting in one defense
verdict and two plaintiff verdicts.

The defense verdict was in a case in which the plaintiff received injuries and alleged the insured
owed him a duty of a safe location.

One of the plaintiff verdicts was in a case tried in Magistrate Court in which the insured prevailed
but lost on appeal to the Circuit Court. The claim related to a dog adoption facilitated by the
Kanawha County Humane Association and the verdict was plaintiff's attorney fees in the amount
of $352.

In the second plaintiff verdict case, the plaintiff alleged injuries and excessive force from being
sprayed with Oleoresin Capsicum during a protest over the care of a fellow inmate. The verdict
was $1500 in compensatory damages and $35,000 in punitive damages against the defendant
officers. The case is still pending on payment of plaintifi's counsel's fees (it is a fee shifting case).
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PAID CLAIMS (May 2017 Data)

(Not yet available)

OUTSTANDING CLAIMS (May 2017 Data)

May 2017 Indemnity reserves total $55,342,394 vs. May 2016 Indemnity reserves of $59,444,173
a decrease of 6.9 %.

May 2017 Expense reserves total $19,577,543 vs. May 2016 Expense reserves of $20,930,651,
a decrease of 6.46%.

CLAIMS COUNTS (May 2017 Data)
New claims YTD total 1041 vs. PYTD of 1254, a decrease of 16.98%.
Closed claims YTD total 1221 vs. PYTD of 1271, a decrease of 3.93%.

Open claims YTD total 930 vs. PYTD of 1012, a decrease of 8.82%.

BRIM Welcomes the Addition of the Privacy Department

Three former employees of the HealthCare Authority's State Privacy Office are now
employees of BRIM, effective June 10, 2017. BRIM now has a Privacy Department,
comprised of Chief Privacy Officer Sallie Milam, Assistant Chief Privacy Officer Lori Tarr,
and Administrative Secretary Sue Haga. We welcome them to the BRIM family!!

Patient Injury Compensation Fund (PICF)

Status of Claims Settled and Pending

One claim has been scheduled for an administrative hearing following issuance of a denial by the
Executive Review Committee. The hearing has been continued twice for development and status
conference with the Hearing Examiner and is currently being rescheduled for this sometime this

summer.

On May 30, 2017, the PICF Executive Review Committee issued eight letters recommending
awards for approval by the Court in the total amount of $4,582,209.62. The claimants have a
period of 30 days from receipt of the awards to request an administrative hearing on the
Executive Review Committee's actions. If no hearing is requested, the award will be final in FY
2017 and will be in the group of claims on which a payment method for the year will be
determined. In addition to the 8 claims in which letters have been issued, 4 more are pending.
Three of the 4 we expect to also be final in FY 2017. It is already clear that the amount of awards
to become final in FY 2017 will exceed the funds available to be distributed.



Below is a breakdown of the funding sources designated by SB 602 and the amounts
received between July 1, 2016 and June 5, 2017 from those sources.

Description Amount

Physician

assessments (net) 300,511.56

Court filing fees 86,805.00

Litigation &

settlements (1%) 509,214.69

Trauma fees 61,850.00%*
958,381.25

**The total amount of the assessments to 35 trauma centers was for calendar year 2016 but
not invoiced until May 9th, 2017, pursuant to statute. Not all trauma center assessments
have been received by BRIM as of this date.

As of June 5, 2017, the balance in the PICF was $2,446,768.54.

During May, BRIM received two notices of intent to file law suits from attorneys representing
PICF claimants. The notices are not detailed, but state that the intent is to file a writ of
mandamus and/or writ of prohibition against BRIM alleging that BRIM is not assessing the
trauma centers correctly and is therefore not collecting a sufficient sum from the trauma
cenlers. The notices further state that BRIM's ability to structure awards or method of
structuring awards will be challenged.

Cyber Liability Policy

BRIM allocated premium to our insured state agencies for cyber liability coverage for the first
time for FY 2018 premium invoices. Following our research into allocation methods, we
determined that basing it on payroll is a consistent and determinable methodology and one
that is more objective than, for example, number of records an agency has.

BRIM executed the FY 2018 renewal documents for the cyber liability policy on June 5, 2017.
The coverage will remain the same as last year, but the rate was reduced by about 8%. We
discussed the need to add coverage for business income loss and we are reaching out to

the agencies that would most likely need that coverage, i.e. Parkways, Lottery. We can add this
later if it's determined that it is needed.

We also plan to reach out to the Boards of Education in anticipation of FY 2019 to gather
information needed o obtain cyber liability coverage for those entities.

Risk Management Information System (RMIS) Update

We have been in discussions with AIG and our vendor, Emerson Risk Solutions, regarding the
interface with AlG and the naw system, as well as associated costs for exporting data from AIG
systems into the new system. Following a meeting with OT yesterday, we are at the point of
informing AIG of what we will need and agreeing to a price for a daily feed so Emerson can



complete work on that aspect of the system. This Friday we've scheduled a demo with Emerson
so BRIM management can get a sense of where we are in the development phase of the project.
The demo will help inform other pending decisions regarding work already performed by
Emerson, and work yel to be performed. We have received one change order of some
significance, and we are working through it to make sure it's appropriate in both scope and

cost before moving forward on it.

Legislative Update

SB 151 authorized BRIM to promulgate two legislative rules—one relating to the Patient Injury
Compensation Fund and one relating to mine subsidence insurance. The changes to both rules
were necessary because of legislation passed during the 2016 Regular Session. The rules are
final filed and available on the Secretary of State's website.

Website Updates

BRIM is planning a reorganization of its website to add several items that were the subject of
legislation passed during the 2017 regular session. Governor Justice vetoed the bill, however we
expect direction from his office on updates of many items included in the bill. By the end of the
summer we should have mare information, particularly around BRIM's rules and statutes, on the
website. We will also be rearranging some topics and incorporating references to the State
Privacy Office where appropriate. All agencies are required this year to publish all rules, policies
and guidelines on their websites for public comment pursuant to a bill passed during the 2016
regular session, and this requirement will also be addressed with the upcoming changes.

Privacy Office Update

Sallie Milam will participate on a panel at the National Governors Association National Summit on
State Cyber Security, which will focus on privacy in the context of cyber security. She will be
working with the Chief Privacy Officer from Washington state, which will give BRIM personnel a
good opportunity to become more involved with officials from other state in this area of risk
management. Robert Fisher will also attend the Summit, which takes place on June 14-15, 2017
in Virginia. Registration and lodging costs are covered by NGA, and Sallie and Robert will be
taking a state vehicle.

Miscellaneous

1. BRIM has agreed to a renewal quote from AIG for the Boards of Education excess liability
policy (providing $5 million in coverage over the BRIM $1 million). AIG has the current excess
policy, and this quote represents a reduction in premium from FY "17 of $1,524,000.

2. Regarding the renewal of the state property policy for FY 2018, we've been able to achieve a
premium reduction of more than $300,000.

3. The Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting has once again been
awarded to the BRIM. This award is based on the Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports
(CAFR) for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. This is the 22™ year for receiving this
prestigious award.



4. We are beginning to plan travel to the STRIMA annual meeting from September 17th to the
21%'in Montana. Due to budgetary concerns, we are reviewing the number of people to
attend and the availability of scholarship money this year.

Very truly yours,

Mary Jane Pickens
Executive Director

MJP:Ild
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Chief Financial Officer’'s Report
June 13, 2017

A. P Card Report

CD copies provided contain the supporting detail for P card purchases for BRIM for the
months of February, March, and April 2017. The totals are:

February $36,254.91
March $17,529.22
April $90,368.41

B. Financial Results

* The financial results presented are for the ten months ended April 30, 2017.

o Estimated outstanding reserves reflect AON's risk funding studies thru March 31. An
additional estimated reserve increase for April is also included for both years.

e Year over year increases in outstanding claims liabilities are $2.0 million for FY'17 and
$9.1 million for FY'16.

o The $2.0 million increase for FY'17 includes a decrease in retained incurred reserves
of $3.6 million with an increase in retained IBNR of $5.6 million when compared to last
year's outstanding claims liabilities.

» Net operating revenues are $5.5 million higher for the current year resulting primarily
from premium rate increases.

o Net liability claims payments are $8.3 million higher and net property claims payments
also increased by $1.0 million for the first ten months of FY'17 versus the same period
last year.

* The higher net payments in combination with the smaller net reserve increase for the
current year accounts for the increase in claims expense of $4.6 million for FY'17 vs.
FY’16.

e Investment income reflects much better returns on equity holdings for the current fiscal
year vs. prior. For FY'17 fixed income investments have losses of $1.0 million that
were offset by equity investment earnings of $8.9 million.

e In July, the transfer of $2.8 million to the Patient Injury Compensation Fund (PICF), as
mandated by enactment of HB4261, resulted in a decrease to BRIM's net position
through April 30.

* Higher premium revenue was mostly offset by the higher claims expense. Higher
investment returns for FY'17 were muted by the $2.8 million transferred to PICF,
resulting in net income of $1.3 million for this year as compared to last year's net
income of $0.2 million.
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C. Other Financial Issues

o So far this year the Nasdaq Composite stock index is up 15% and the S&P 500 is up
9%. Yields on the10-year Treasury notes have dropped to their lowest levels since
November 2016. These trends are why it is more attractive for investors to continue to
favor equity markets over the bond markets. Mortgage rates normally move in tandem
with the 10-year Treasury. Borrowing costs are dropping for households and
businesses at the same time the Fed is trying to increase rates. It should be noted that
low rates and loose financial conditions are reminiscent of what helped inflate the
housing bubble that led to the financial crisis in 2007.

e When Fed officials meet later this week they will likely decide to raise short-term
interest rates for the fourth time since December 2015. The consensus early this year
was that the Fed would most likely raise rates at total of three times in 2017. This
would indicate one more increase sometime later this year. It's too early to say whether
they will raise short-term rates more aggressively than what they have previously
indicated.

e More important news from this week’'s meeting may be what the Fed says about
shrinking its balance sheet, starting later this year. This could mean that long-term
rates will wind up higher than they otherwise would be as supply exceeds demand.

¢ Since about 80% of BRIM’s funds are invested in relatively short duration fixed income
securities, anticipation of additional Fed increases in short-term rates will continue to
put a drag on fixed income total returns for BRIM through the remainder of FY’17 and
into FY'18. As for equities, it remains to be seen how much remaining upside potential
is left in a stock market that is in its ninth year of expansion since its low point in 2008.
For now, the risk/reward as perceived by investors seems to favor stocks over bonds.

Respectfully W :

hen. W Schumacher, CPA
hief Financial Officer
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management Q
Statements of Net Position

April 30th
2017 2016
(In Thousands)
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 25,296 $ 11,272
Advance deposits with insurance company and trustee 198,420 215,955
Receivabales 2,313 7,208
Prepaid insurance 1,113 1,140
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 9,552 9,889
Premiums due from other entities 620 597

Total current assets 237,314 246,061

Noncurrent assets:

Equity position in internal investments pools 90,411 83,598
Restricted investments 52,212 48,293

Total noncurrent assets 142,623 131,891

Total assets 379,937 377,952

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Pension 387 127

Liabilities

Current liabilities:

Estimated unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense 50,819 47,890
Unearned premiums 12,996 12,029
Agent commissions payable 890 722
Claims Payable 10 22
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2,986 3,401

Total current liabilities 67,701 64,064

Estimated unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense net of current portion 119,453 120,373

Compensated absences 91 76

Net pension liability 467 253

Total noncurrent liabilities 120,011 120,702

Total liabilities 187,712 184,766

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Pension 304 270

Net position:

Restricted by State code for House Bill 601 Program and mine subsidence coverage 57,123 55,427
Unrestricted 133,836 137,393
Net Assets (Deficiency) 1,349 223

Net position $ 192,308 § 193,043

Unaudited
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management Q

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the Ten Months Ended April 30th

Operating Revenues
Premium Revenues
Less - Excess Insurance

Net Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Claims Expense
General & Administrative Expense
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)
Nonoperating Revenues
Investment Income
Appropriation Transfer HB4261
Total Nonoperating Revenues
Changes in net position
Total net position, beginning of period

Total net positiion, end of period

Unaudited

2017 2016
(in thousands)
59,410 $ 54,038
(5,571) (5,672)
53,839 48,366
54,161 49,526
3,381 3,066
57,542 52,592
(3,703) (4,226)
7,861 4,449
(2,810) -
5,051 4,449
1,348 223
190,960 192,820
192,308 $ 193,043







STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION
BOARD OF RISK AND INSURANCE MANAGEMENT

Jim Justice John A. Myers Mary Jane Pickens
Governor Cabinet Secretary Executive Director
Deputy Cabinet Secretary

Loss Control Report to the Board
June 2017

Christine Johnson will be retiring effective June 30™". We are appreciative of the thirteen
years of service that she provided our agency and wish her well in her future endeavors.

During the month of May, we sent out Loss Control Questionnaires to all state agencies.
The deadline for submission to BRIM is August 1, 2017. At that time, we will gather the
necessary information for calculation of loss control credits or surcharges for fiscal year 2019.

We have successfully renewed contracts for our insurance loss control inspection
contract to Aon Global Risk Consulting and our boiler and air conditioning systems insurance
and loss prevention inspection services to Hartford Steam Boiler Insurance and Inspection
Company.

During the months of April, May, and June Aon conducted 157 inspections and Hartford
conducted 604. The reports are being processed according to established procedures.

Since my last report, our loss control technical staff reports the following activity:

9 Loss Control Visits
These are standard loss control visits which focus on all coverage areas
and which result in information and/or loss control recommendations
being provided.

8 Standards of Participation Visits
These are visits which are designed to provide assistance to our insured
who are seeking to become compliant with the BRIM Standards of
Participation program.

2 Presentation Visits
These are visits during which we provide active training and/or outreach
to a group of individuals.
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Dated: June 8, 2017

Regpectfully submitted,

cl/ele—

Jeremy C. Wolfe
Loss Control Manager
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AGENDA
BOARD MEETING OF THE
WEST VIRGINIA BOARD OF RISK AND
INSURANCE MANAGEMENT

March 21, 2017

Chairman Martin Call to Order

Chairman Martin Approval of Board Minutes
December 20, 2016

REPORTS
Terry C. Pfeifer Risk Funding Study as of June 30, 2016
AON Senior Consultant
Mary Jane Pickens Executive Director's Report
Executive Director
Stephen W. Schumacher, CPA Financial Report
Chief Financial Officer PCard Report
Robert A. Fisher
Deputy Director/Claim Manager Loss Control Report

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

ADJOURNMENT
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STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION

BOARD OF RISK AND INSURANCE MANAGEMENT
Jim Justice John A. Myers Mary Jane Pickens
Governor Cabinet Secretary Executive Director

Deputy Cabinet Secretary

MINUTES OF THE MEETING
OF THE
WEST VIRGINIA BOARD OF RISK AND INSURANCE MANAGEMENT

March 21, 2017

BOARD MEMBERS Bruce R. Martin, CIC, CRM, Chairman
PRESENT: Bob Mitts, CPCU, Vice Chairman
Edward Magee, Ed.D., CPA, Member
James Dodrill, Esq., Member
James Wilson, Esq., Member
Tonya Gillesple, CPA, Representing Andrew Pauley,
Acting Insurance Commissioner, Board Secretary and
Ex-Officio Member

BRIM PERSONNEL.: Mary Jane Pickens, Executive Director
Robert Fisher, Deputy Director/Claim Manager
Stephen W. Schumacher, CPA, CFO
Melody Duke, Underwriting Manager
Charles Mozingo, Claims Assistant Manager
John Fematt, Claim Representative
Stephen W. Panaro, CPA, Controller
Jeremy Wolfe, Loss Control Manager
Lora Myers, Recording Secretary

BRIM PROGRAM Charles Waugh, AIG Claim Services
REPRESENTATIVES:  Brenda Samples, USI Insurance Services, LLC
Bob Ayers, US| Insurance Services, LLC

GUESTS: Terry C. Pfeifer, AON Senior Specialist

Sandy Price, WVU Health Sciences Center
Mike Gansor, WVU Risk Management
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Minutes of BRIM Board Meeting
March 21, 2017

CALL TO ORDER
The meeting of the West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management was

called to order by Chairman Martin at 1:00PM on Tuesday, March 21, 2017, at 1124

Smith Street, Suite 4800, Charleston, West Virginia.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Vice Chairman Mitts moved the approval of the minutes of the December 20,
2016 Board Meeting. The motion was seconded by Mr. Dodrill. There being no
discussion, a vote was taken and the MOTION ADOPTED.

REPORTS
AON — Risk Funding Stud 201

Chairman Martin thereafter recognized Terry Pfeifer, AON Senior Consultant,
and asked that he give presentation.

Prior to the meeting, the draft report entitled “Risk Funding Study as of June 30,
2016" was distributed to the Board members for their information and review, a copy of

which Is attached and made a part of the record..

There being nothing further, Mr. Wilson moved the approval of the Risk Funding
Study as of June 30, 2016. The motion was seconded by Vice Chairman Mitts. There
being no discussion, a vote was taken and the MOTION ADOPTED.
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Minutes of BRIM Board Meeting 3
March 21, 2017

X ve Di Repo

Chairman Martin called on Mrs. Pickens to present the Executive Director's
Report. (The report was received and filed, a copy of which Is attached and made a
part of the record.)

Mrs. Pickens began by providing a status report regarding the Marshall and WVU
medical malpractice programs.

The Board was updated concerning litigation activity regarding trials thus far in
2017, and updates were presented In all areas of Claims and thoroughly reviewed.

Regarding the Patient injury Compensation Fund, Mrs. Pickens reported on the
status of current claims, both settled and pending. She noted that one final award is the
subject of an administrative hearing, which Is likely to be held in early May 2017, at
which there will be a hearing examiner and BRIM will be represented by counsel.

Our goal is for all claims to be finalized before June 30, 2017.

Afterwards, there was a discussion regarding the Advisory Bulletin dated
November 2016 and whether the intent of the bulletin was to simply inform the parties
that the assessment was to be remitted to the Clerk of the local Circuit Court. Since the
Legislature decided not to specify who was required to make remittance, it should be
considered shared responsiblility. An Amended Advisory Bulletin dated January 19,
2017 was thereafter issued in which clarification regarding BRIM's role which addresses

remittance only.
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Minutes of BRIM Board Mesting
March 21, 2017 4

Mrs. Pickens further stated that BRIM had received a report from the Office of the
Insurance Commissioner on quarterly medical malpractice claim resolutions reported by
insurers during the fourth quarter of calendar year 20168. After a comparison of BRIM's
records against those of the OIC to ensure that receipt of the 1% assessment checks
had been made on settlements or judgments, it was decided to send letters to all
counsel in claims in which BRIM did not have a record of having received the 1%
assessment checks. The letters explained the 1% assessment process, and a copy of
the Amended Advisory Bulletin in which the legislation was discussed was attached. To
date, a few responses have been received, some with information about why the
assessment does not apply and others that primarily indicate an unwillingness to
comply.

Letters were also sent to the Chief Executive Officers of the 33 trauma centers
designated by the Office of Emergency Services. The letters gave notice that BRIM will
send statements in the Spring requesting payment of an assessment-based patient
treatment at those centers in 2016. The letter also made the centers aware of the
responsibllity for the remittance of a 1% assessment of any settlement or judgment In
which claims were flled under the Medical Professional Liability Act (MPLA). in addition,
a letter was sent to the President and Chief Executive Officer of the West Virginia
Hospital Association requesting assistance identifying claims resolution when the payor

is self Insured and a 1% assessment should be made to the claimant.
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Minutes of BRIM Board Meeting
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After a brief discussion, Mrs. Pickens addressed the matter of Cyber Liability.
She stated that BRIM will discuss the state premium rates available and decide the
appropriate time to send invoices to state agencies, as well as how to address including
the premium for cyber liability. She further noted that she had met with the Finance and
Underwriting managers to discuss the FY 2018 premium rates. Overall, there s
approximately a 10% increase; however, certain agencies will have higher increases
due to negative claims history and the addition of cyber liability.

She thereafter reported that Executive Directives have been Issued to address
budget concerns. The Govemnor has placed a moratorium on the purchase of state
vehicles. Any exceptions to this directive must be of a critical nature and have written
approval by the Governor's Office.

In addition, general revenue agencles have also been informed that the hiring
freeze continues. Secretary Myers has instructed DOA agencies that new hires and
promotions will not be considered. A written request and further discussion with the
agency are necessary in exceptional cases.

BRIM Is going forward with the Risk Management Information System (RMIS)
project. As previously noted, Emerson Risk Solutions was awarded the contract, and
much effort has been spent on providing them with data and discussing what BRIM's
expectations are from the new system. The Agreements have been executed and
BRIM management is committed to ensuring that the services in the contract are
received at the agreed-upon cost. We are excited about the new system and expect it

to be very efficlent and help to improve our customer service.

1124 Smith Street, Suite 4300 ~ (304) 766-2646
Charleston, West Virginia 25301 (304) 558-6004 FAX
www.brim.wy,gov (800) 345-4669 TOLL FREE WV
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BRIM has received a quote from AIG for the Board of Education Excess Liability
Policy, which represents a premium reduction from FY 2017. They are requiring an
endorsement that will exclude coverage for head Injuries occurring during sports events.
It appears that we will also see a premium reduction regarding the renewal of the
property policy.

Mischa DiFilippo of our Claim Department recently received her insurance
adjuster’s license. She will have increased responsibilities regarding property and mine
subsidence claims. We are very proud of her accomplishment and consider her a great
asset fo our agency.

Melody Duke and Robert Fisher will be attending the STRIMA Executive
Committee Meeting from April 4-7, 2017 in New Orleans, Louisiana. The STRIMA
Annual Conference will be held in Big Sky, Montana, from September 17-21, 2017

BRIM Financial Report

There being no questions for Mrs. Pickens, Chairman Martin called upon Mr.
Schumacher to present the Chief Financial Officer's Report. The Statement of Net
Position for the Seven Months Ended January 2017 and the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for the Seven Months Ended January 2017
were received and filed, copies of which are attached and made a part of the record.

A CD containing the November and December 2016 and January 2017 purchasing card
invoices was distributed to each Board Member. The Chairman signed the

1124 Smith Street, Suite 4300 ' "~ (304) 766-2646
Charleston, West Virginia 25301 (304) 558-6004 FAX
www.brim.wv.goy (800) 345-4669 TOLL FREE WV
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acknowledgement form for the July, August, September and October 2016 billings The
acknowledgement form is retained by the Finance Department.

Additionally, Mr. Schumacher reported on short-term rates as well as fixed
Income holdings. AIG reported its worst quarterly loss since 2008. CEQ Peter Hancock

has resigned but will stay on until a successor is appointed.

0Sss trol rt

There being no questions for Mr. Schumacher, Chalrman Martin asked
Mr. Fisher to present the Loss Control Report. The report was received and filed, a
copy of which is attached and made a part of the record.

Mr. Fisher began by stating that the Loss Control Department is short two
positions. Evaluations are not getting done as rapidly and the existing staff are
spending less time in the field.

Senate Bill #3 Loss Control Questionnaires are being evaluated to apply credits
or surcharges based on insured participation in our Standards of Participation program.
We hope to complete evaluations during March. Currently, 679 evaluations are
complete.

Mr. Fisher reported on the Increasing concern for the areas of privacy and cyber
in the risk management field. Mary Jane Pickens, Melody Duke, Jeremy Wolfe as well
as Mr. Fisher were facilitators during an incident response table top exercise during
Data Privacy Day, partnering with the State Privacy Office and the Office of Technology
to present this exercise during Data Privacy Day for more than fifty state

1124 Smith Street, Suite 4300 (304) 766-2646
Charleston, West Virginia 25301 (304) 558-6004 FAX
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department/agency Privacy Officers. The exercise focused on how to react when faced
with a privacy incident.

Upcoming, we wili be meeting with our Board of Education Customers in an effort
to help them identify problem areas and give advice on how to effectively address
Issues. Flood mitigation visits for those customers will be performed for those who are
within the flood plain.

We are continuing our partnership with the Division of Personnel in the
“Workplace Safety: Your Responsibility” classes. These classes are avallable to all
state agencies. Partnership with the West Virginia Public Service Commission Is aiso
continuing by contribution of articles for “The Pipeline”, their quarterly newsletter. The
newsletter reaches public utility organizations and public service districts, many of
whom are currently customers.

From December 2016 to March 2017, AON conducted 127 inspections and
Hartford 1,197 inspections. The reports are being processed in compliance with

established procedures.

No questions followed, which concluded the Loss Control Report.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

There was no unfinished business to be discussed.

NEW BUSINESS

There was no new business to be discussed.

1124 Smith Street, Suite 4300 (304) 766-2646
Charleston, West Virginia 25301 (304) 558-6004 FAX
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ADJOURNMENT

ing further, the meeting adjourned at 2:13 p.m.

~  4/3/2o02

rs

Board Chairman © Date
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Executive Director’s Report

March 21, 2017

A. Marshall University and West Virginia University Medical Malpractice Program

* As of March 14, 2017, Marshall has deposited $1,250,000.00 into the escrow account for FY
2017. The fiscal year-to-date cumulative interest totals $6,782.46. Disbursements totaling
$1,268,578.85 have been paid thus far in FY 2017.

« As of March 14, 2017, a total of $4,288,909.15 funds have been deposited into WV U's escrow

account for FY 2017. The fiscal year-to-date cumulative interest totals $12,898.54.
Disbursements totaling $4,299,668.61 have been paid thus far in FY 2017.

B. State Agency/Senate Bill #3 Liability Claim & Litigation Information

TRIALS

Thus far in 2017, we have tried three cases, two resulting in plaintiff verdicts and one
resulting in a defense verdict.

PAID CLAIMS (February 2017 Data)

Claims Indemnity payments YTD total $6,945,123 vs. PYTD of $5,505,144, an increase
0f 26.16%.

Claims Expense payments YTD total $3,216,566 vs. PYTD of $3,800,233, a decrease of
15.36%.

QUTSTANDING CLAIMS (Februarv 2017 Data)

February 2017 Indemnity reserves total $58,847,400 vs. February 2016 Indemnity
reserves of $52,002,152, an increase of 9.32 %.

February 2017 Expense reserves total $20,301,824 vs. February 2016 Expense reserves
0f $19,535,990, an increase of 3.9%.

1124 Smith Street, Suite 4300 (304) 766-2646
Charleston, West Virginia 25301 (304) 558-6004 FAX
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CLAIMS COUNTS (February 2017 Data)

New claims YTD total 384 vs. PYTD of 536, a decrease of 28.36%.

Closed claims YTD total 553 vs. PYTD of 493, an increase of 12.17%.

Open claims YTD total 918 vs. PYTD of 1065, a decrease of 13.8%.

C. Patient Injury Compensation Fund (PICF)

1.

Status of Claims Settled and Pending

We have consulted with AIG and Ron Walters, one of AlG’s structured settlement
brokers, concerning resolution of three PICF claims through structured settlements.
Of those three, we believe one may result in a structure being used. We've been
able to settle one claim for the cash value but without a structure, whichis a
resolution that was approved by the court. Other claims are still in the process of
being resolved for payment or to determine the final outcome of the claim. One
final award is the subject of an administrative hearing that will likely be held in early
May, 2017. We have engaged a hearing examiner and counsel to represent BRIM
and | will report on the status at the June meeting. The remaining claims are still at
the first level of review here at BRIM but we plan for all of them to be final before
June 30, 2017. Following that, the issues will all relate to payment of those final
awards.

2. PICF Funding Sources

e We had occasion to re-visit the Advisory Bulletin we published in November,
2016, regarding responsibility for remitting the 1% assessment on settlement of
claims filed under the Medical Professional Liability Act because of some alleged
lack of clarity among counsel handling those cases. The assertion was that the
initial bulletin suggested more than was intended regarding the underlying
financial responsibility for the 1% assessment if a lawsuit is filed but settled
before judgment is entered. The intent of the bulletin was simply to inform the
parties in that situation that the assessment must be remitted to the clerk and
since the Legislature decided not to specify who was required to make the
remittance, it should be considered a shared responsibility. After review of the
concern, we did issue an Amended Advisory Bulletin on January 19 making it
abundantly clear that BRIM’s guidance addresses only remittance, i.e. the act of
sending the assessment from one place to another, and does not relate to the
underlying financial responsibility for the assessment itself.
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We received the report from the Office of the Insurance Commissioner (OIC) on
quarterly medical malpractice claim resolutions reported by insurers during the
4 calendar quarter of 2016. We then compared our information on receipt of
1% assessments on settlements to the OIC’s report for claims on which the OIC
received settlement information and BRIM did not have a record of receiving an
assessment, letters were sent to all counsel. The letters explained the reason for
the 1% assessment process and enclosed a copy of the Amended Advisory
Bulletin discussing the legislation. We've received a few letters in response,
some with explanations about why the assessment does not apply that may
make valid points, and others that generally indicate an unwillingness to comply.

On March 3, 2017, letters were sent to the Chief Executive Officers of the 33
trauma centers designated by the Office of Emergency Services providing notice
that BRIM will send statements in the Spring requesting payment of an
assessment based on treatment of patients at those centers from January 1,
2016 through December 31, 2016. The correspondence also explained that in
addition to the assessment on treatment of patients, the trauma

centers should be aware of the responsibility for remittance of an assessment of
1% of any settlement or judgment in claims filed under the MPLA.

Thus far, BRIM has received the total amount of $302,330.65 into the PICF from
the various funding sources identified in SB 602 from the regular 2016 legislative
session.

In addition to the above, a letter was sent to the President and CEO of the WV
Hospital Association asking for assistance in identifying resolution of claims
when the payor is self-insured and a 1% assessment should be made to the
Claimant.

D. Cyber Allocation

We will discuss the state premium rates available as we decide the appropriate time to
send out invoices to state agencies, as well as how best to address the inclusion of the
cyber liability premium.

I have met with BRIM's Finance and Underwriting managers about premium rates for FY
2018; and while the overall increase is around 10%, some agencies will experience larger
increases due to negative claims history and the addition of cyber liability.
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E. Executive Directives to Address Budget Concerns

Governor Justice has placed a moratorium on all new state vehicle purchases.
Exceptions will only be granted in the most extraordinary circumstances and must be
approved in writing by the Governor’s Office. Governor Justice has instructed the Fleet
Management Office and Purchasing Division to deny any requests that do not meet this
requirement.

In addition, the Governor has informed all general revenue agencies that the hiring
freeze continues. Secretary Myers has further informed all DOA agencies that new hires
and promotions may not be made by any agency and that any exceptions will only be
made upon written request and further discussion with the agency.

F. Risk Management Information System (RMIS)

We are moving ahead with this project. The contract was awarded to Emerson Risk
Solutions a few months ago and lots of time and effort has been spent providing data to
the vendor as well as discussing our needs in the new system. Weekly calls have been
taking place and the vendor had staff on site for a couple days in late February to work
with BRIM management. We know that we will need to aggressively manage the
contract to contain costs, and to ensure that the system functions as agreed to in the
RFP, the vendor’s response and the agreements that have been signed. We also
recognize that as we develop the system we will discover some enhancements that
we'd like to incorporate; however, we are very committed to ensuring that BRIM
receives the services in the contract at the agreed-upon cost submitted by the

vendor. We remain excited about this project and expect the new system to bring
efficiencies and improve our processes and customer service.

G. Legislative Update

H. Miscellaneous

1. We have received a quote from AIG for the Boards of Education excess liability
policy (providing $5 million in coverage over the BRIM $1 million policy). AIG has the
current excess policy, and this quote represents a reduction in premium from FY “17
of $1,524,000. However, AlG is requiring an endorsement that will exclude coverage
for head injuries suffered during sports events.

2. Regarding the renewal of the property policy, it appears that we will also see a
premium reduction of more than $300,000.
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3. One of our employees, Mischa DiFillipo, has earned her insurance adjuster’s license.
This will give BRIM an opportunity to increase her responsibility with mine
subsidence and property claims. We are very proud of her accomplishments.

4. STRIMA —Melody Duke and Robert Fisher will be attending the Executive Committee
Meeting in New Orleans, Louisiana, from April 4-7, 2017. The Annual Conference

will be September 17-21 in Big Sky, Montana.

Very truly yours,

Executive Director

MJP:lld
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A. P Card Report

CD copies contain the supporting detail for P card purchases for the months of November
and December 2016 and for January 2017. These totals are:

November  $51,355.16
December $53,966.63
January $48,593.08

B. Financial Results

* The financial results presented are for the seven months ended January 31, 2017.

e Total outstanding claims reserves reflect AON's risk funding studies thru December 31
plus an additional accrual for January. Estimated retained reserves for FY'17 are $9.2
million higher than at the same point last year.

* Net operating revenues are $3.8 million higher for the current year due to premium
increases.

e Net claims payments are $36.8 million for FY'17; $29.0 million for FY'16. Claims
reserves have increased $2.5 million year to date for FY'17 vs. a $0.8 million increase
for year to date FY'16. The combined effect of additional claims payments and
reserve increases is a year over year increase of $9.5 million in claims expense for the
current year when compared to last year's results. The increases in both claims
payments and reserves is an indication of continuing unfavorable claims trend
development.

e The primary drivers for the higher general and administrative expense for FY'17 are
one time moving expenses and costs related to the new RMIS system.

* The smaller increase in premiums was not enough to offset the much larger increase
in claims expense for FY'17, resulting in a larger operating loss this year vs. FY'16.

o Better performance in the equity market helped to offset the weaker bond markets in
FY'17 and resulted in investment earnings of $2.1 this year vs. a loss of $2.6 million for
the same period last year. This is a year over year favorable swing of $4.7 million.
Even with the improvement in earnings, annualized returns for FY'17 are under 1%.

* Excluding the one-time transfer of $2.8 million to the Patient Injury Compensation
Fund (PICF), as mandated by enactment of HB4261, BRIM's net position for the
current fiscal year would have decreased by $2.1 million instead of the actual $4.9
decrease in net position reported.

1124 Smith Street, Suite 4300 (304) 766-2646
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C. Other Financial Issues

e Short-term rates remained relatively stable for February. Last Wednesday, the
Federal Reserve raised their benchmark federal-funds rate by a quarter percentage
point to a range between 0.75% and 1%. The move by the Fed increasing short-term
rates will result in losses for BRIM's fixed income holdings for the month of March.

e The Fed also indicated two additional quarter percentage point increases are likely for
2017. The bond markets anticipation of these two additional increases will put a further
drag on fixed income returns for BRIM through the remainder of FY’17 as short-term
rates continue to rise.

s AIG reported its worst quarterly loss since the 2008 financial crisis; a $3.0 billion loss
for the quarter ended December 31%. Peter Hancock, CEO, resigned this month but
will stay on until a successor is appointed.

Respectfully submitted,

O saaull
phen. W Schumacher, CPA
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Statements of Net Position

For the Seven Months Ended January 3 I st

2017 2016
(I Thousands}
Assefs
Current assels;
Cash and cash equivalents 20,481 15,493
Advance deposits with insurance company and trustee 198,169 212414
Receivabales 4,470 2,432
Prepaid insurance 2,782 2,852
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 8,701 9,298
Premivms due from other entities 620 597

Total current assets 235,224 243,086

Noncurien( assets;

Equity position in internal investments pools 87,911 80,180
Resiricled investmenis 50,769 46,413

Total noncurrent assets 138,680 126,593

Total assets 373,904 369,679

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Pension 387 127

Liabilities

Current liabilitics:

Estimated unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense 50,819 47,890
Uneamed premiums 13,067 12,058
Agent commissions payable 620 502

Claims Payable 0 50
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2,724 2,889

Total current liabilities 67,231 63,390

Estimated unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense net of current portion 120,146 113,899

Compensated absences o1 76

Net pension liability 467 253

Total noncurrent liabilities 120,704 114,228

Total liabilities 187,935 177,618

Deferved Inflows of Resources

Pension 304 270

Nel position: L

Restricted by State code for House Bill 601 Program and mine subsidence coverage 58,834 55,427
Unrestricted 132,125 137,393
Net Assets (Deficiency) (4,906) (901)

Net pasition 3 186,052 § 191918

See accompanying notes.






West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the Seven Months Ended January 31st

2017 2016
(In Thousands)

Operating revenues
Premiums $ 41494 $ 37,797
Less coverage/reinsurance programs (3,898) (3,962)
Net operating revenues 37,596 33,835
Operating expenses
Claims and claims adjustment expense 39,289 29,820
General and administrative 2,458 2,271
Total operating expenses 41,748 32,092
Operating income (loss) (4,151) 1,743
Nonoperating revenues
Investment income 2,055 (2,645)
Appropriation Transfer HB4261 (2,810) 0
Payment to transfer HB601 estimated future IBNR - 0
Net nonoperating revenues (755) (2,645)
Changes in net position (4,906) (901)
Total net position, beginning of year 190,959 192,820
Total net position, end of period $ 186,052 $ 191,918

See accompanying notes.
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Loss Control Report to the Board
March 2017

Senate Bill #3 loss control questionnaires were due on January 1. 2016. Since that time.
we have been evaluating those questionnaires to apply credits or surcharges based on insured
participation in our Standards of Participation program. We hope to complete the evaluation
process during the month of March. To date. we have completed 679 evaluations.

In January. Mary Janc Pickens. Melody Duke. Jeremy Wolfe and | participated as
facilitators during an incident response table top exercise on Data Privacy Day. We partnered with
the State Privacy Office and the Office of Technology to coordinate and execute this exercise for
more than fifty state department/agency Privacy Officers. The exercise dealt with how to react in
response (o a privacy incident. Privacy and cyber are growing arcas of concern in the field of risk
management.

Over the coming months. we will be meeting with our Board of Education customers to
help them identify their problem arcas and provide advice on how o effectively address these
areas. We will also be performing Nood mitigation visits for those customers who have been
identified to be within the flood plain.

We continue to partner with the Division ol Personnel in a class entitled ~Waorkplace
Salety: Your Responsibility”. We make a live presentation during each class presented.  This
program is available to all state agencies.

We are also continuing our partnership with the West Virginia Public Service Commission
by contributing risk management news articles for inclusion in “The Pipeline”. their quarterly
newsletter. This newsletter is distributed to public utility organizations and public service districts
throughout the state. many of whom may already be our customers.

During the months of December. January. lebruary. and March Aon conducted 127
inspections and Hartford conducted 1.197. The reports are being processed according to
established procedures.

]

Since my last report, our loss control technical staff reports the following activity:

I Loss Control Visits
These are standard loss control visits which focus on all coverage arcas and
which result in information and/or loss control recommendations being
provided.

1124 Smith Street, Suite 4300 (304) 766-2646
Charleston, West Virginia 25301 (304) 558-6004 FAX
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2 Standards of Participation Visits
These are visits which are designed to provide assistance to our insured who
are seeking to become compliant with the BRIM Standards of Participation
pl'ﬂgl'ﬂlll i

As is the case each year. the number of loss control visits is markedly reduced during the
period in which we evaluate loss control questionnaire submissions.

Dated: 3~\[= 2017

gpectfully submitted.

Robert A. Fisher
Deputy Dircctor and Claim Manager
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Risk Funding Study as of June 30, 2016
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Property/Casualty Marketplace Overview

= Policyholder Surplus is approaching $700 Billion
— Growing very slowly over the last two to three years

= |nvestment returns remain low
= Underwriting loss through the first 3 quarters of 2016

— Non-catastrophe claims rose sharply in 2016
— 2012 was the most recent prior year with an underwriting loss (Superstorm Sandy)

AON

Aon Risk Solutions | Glccal Rigk Consultrg | Actuanal & Analytcs 2 Empower Results®



Property/Casualty Marketplace Overview (Cont.)

Policyholder Surplus, Quarterly,
2007:Q3-2016:Q3

(3 Billions)
e  2007:Q3 | 1) in 2011 due

Pre-Crisis to very large CAT

$700 +— Peak _— losses

$650
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$500 oty
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The industry now has $1 of surplus for every $0.77 of NPW,
close to the strongest claims-paying status in its history.

The P/C insurance industry entered 2017
i y strong financial condition.

m Sources: ISO, AM .Best.
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Property/Casualty Marketplace Overview (Cont.)

Net Underwriting Gains & Losses,
First Three Quarters, 2007-2016

$30

320 Net Underwriting Losses
Have Been “the Norm.”

$10

S0

-$10 1

Billions ($2015)

-$20

-830

841 -$34.9
o7 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16

2013/14/15 Were Welcome Respites from 201142, Which Wers
+ Among the Costliest Years for Insured Disaster Losses in U.S. Histary.
Longer-term Trend is far More — Not Fewer — Costly Events.

*Estimates through 12/31/15 In 2615 dollars.

MNote: 2001 figwe includes $20.38 for 911 ioases reporad threugh 12/31/01 {$25.98 2011 ooiars). inciudes caly Cusness and persanal prosery
m Cims, Busiess interruption and suto claims. Non-propdEl losses = $12.28 (§15.88 n 2011 cotars ).

Sources: Property Claims Service. 3 Vensk Analytics business: Insufance Informanon institute,
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Cyber Risk:

Cyber Risk is a rapidly emerging exposure for businesses large and
small in every industry. The health care industry is a major target.

AON

Empower Results®



Cybersecurity Industry Challenges

* The cyber threats evolve rapidly and can quickly endanger a company that can’t keep
pace.

* Organizations are under persistent pressure to refine their defenses against attackers
who are constantly advancing their techniques.

* Regulators are also trying to keep pace, further complicating an organization'’s risk
management approach.

= Organizations must commit to a continuous process of evaluation and improvement.

» Regular assessments, testing, refinement, and responsiveness are essential to keeping
critical assets protected and ensuring strong governance and compliance.

* Organizations need to be constantly focused on limiting the economic and reputational
damage from incidents.

AON

Aon Risk Solutlons | Cizoal Risk Carsuling | Astoasal 3 Analytes & Empower Results®



Cyber Incidents

6,000,000

o 7 Empower Results’
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Cyber Threat Landscape

In 2015, the British

insurance company

Lioy

that cy

cost businesse

much as $400

billion a year,
hich includ

In 2014, 43%
of companies

¢t damage
t experienced a data

busine

ach, according
ie Ponemc
Institute

increased from
$3.79in 2015 to
S4 million in 2016.
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igations
yort, 89% of
breaches had
a financial or
espionage motive.

s a quick and easy
way for attackers
3 1l a victim's
ntials, which
ght explain why
in 81.9 percent
of incidents, the
initial compromise
took minutes.
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Medical Malpractice

= Aon 2016 Hospital Professional Benchmark Study
— 17" year
— Includes $16.5 billion of incurred loss and approximately 100,000 claims

* Benchmark Highlights:
— Nationwide Cost of Risk increasing at 1% per year
* Frequency has been on the decline and expected to decrease at 1% per year
* Modest severity trend growing at 2% per year

— West Virginia
» Claim severity is similar to national averages
« Claim frequency is higher than national averages
* Loss rate for WV is 15% higher than the national average
- Historical WV loss costs have higher volatility than national averages

AON
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Risk Funding Study as of June 30, 2016
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6/30/16 Retained Unpaid Loss Estimates

Definitions

* Unpaid Loss = Ultimate Loss — Paid Loss
* Unpaid Loss = Case Reserves + IBNR

* |IBNR = Incurred But Not Reported

Results
» Estimated unpaid loss Increased $7.4 million (4.6%) from 6/30/2015

— SSU general liability increased $5.2 million

— SSU auto increased $2.1 million

— SSU medical malpractice increased $1.4 million
— SB3 medical malpractice decreased $2.3 million

AON

Aon Risk Solutions | Gicnal Risk Consuling | Actuanal 3 Analytics 11 Empower Results®



June 30, 2016 Risk Funding Study - Results

Retained Case

Reserves at

Line of Business Entity 6/30/2016
Automobile Ssu 5,994,950
Automobile SB3 4,760,754
General Liability S5U 31,914,439
Seneral Liability 583 20,329,017
Property SsuU 2,393,641
Property SB3 2,174,956
Medical Malpractice Ssu 5,269,576
Medical Malpractice 583 703,719
viine Subsidence 385,000
Subtotal - 55U 45,572,606
Subtotal - 553 27,968,445
subtotal - S5U + 583 73,541,051
Totai 73,926,051

Aon Risk Solutions | Ziccal Rse Consy

Retained IBNR Retained Unpaid

at 6/30/2016

4,412,034
5,107,259

41,720,446
22,882,853

683,972
584,562

15,333,660
1,584,153

479,957
62,150,112
30,168,827
92,318,940

92,798,896

at 6/30/2016

10,406,984
9,868,013

73,634,885
43,211,870

3,077,613
2,759,517

20,603,236
2,297,872

864,957
107,722,718
58,137,271
165,859,991

166,724,947

Retained Case
Reserves at
6/30/2015

3,420,671
5,092,214

30,732,325
20,369,520

1,345,500
1,859,104

7,456,364
2,277,194

412,936
42,954 860
29,598,032
72,552,892

72,965,828

Retained IBNR
at 6/30/2015

4,869,086
5,175,413

37,692,675
22,269,297

985,493
896,211

11,761,170
2,297,179

413,271
55,308,424
30,638,099
85,946,523

86,359,794

Retained
Unpaid at
6/30/2015

8,289,757
10,267,626

68,425,000
42,638,817

2,330,993
2,755,315

19,217,534
4,574,372

826,207
98,263,284
60,236,131

158,489,415

159,325,621

Change from 6/30/2015 to 06/30/2016
in Retained Unpaid Loss

Dollar Change Percent Change
2,117,227 25.5%
(399.,614) -3.9%
5,209,885 7.6%
573,053 1.3%
746,620 32.0%
4,202 0.2%
1,385,702 7.2%
(2,276,500) -49.8%
38,750 4.7%
9,459,423 8.6%
(2,058,859) -3.5%
7,360,576 4.6%
7,399,326 4.6%
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Historical Changes in Unpaid Loss

Historical Change in Retained Unpaid Loss Compared to Prior Annual Actuarial Review
Total SSU and SB3
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Historical Changes in Unpaid Loss — General Liability

Historical Change in Retained Unpaid Loss Compared to Prior Annual Actuarial Review
General Liability Only
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Historical Changes in Unpaid Loss — Medical Malpractice

Historical Change in Retained Unpaid Loss Compared to Prior Annual Actuarial Review
Medical Malpractice Only
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Historical Changes in Unpaid Loss — Automobile

Historical Change in Retained Unpaid Loss Compared to Prior Annual Actuarial Review
Automobile Only
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Comparison of Premium and Ultimate Losses

SSuU SB3
Projected Projected
Charged Ultimate Charged Ultimate
Occurrence Period Premium Retained Loss  Difference Premium Retained Loss Difference

7/1/1998 6/30/1999 21,526,869 24,797,499 (3,270,630)| 23,070,990 17,136,095 5,934,895
7111999 " 6/30/2000 20,982,952 29,141,242 (8,158,290)| 22,677,285 21,088,750 1,588,535
7/1/2000 6/30/2001 20,018,978 19,322,348 696,630 20,951,525 19,010,601 1,940,924
7/1/2001 6/30/2002 27,130,323 20,972,757 6,157,566 26,524,921 24,031,744 2,493,177
7/1/2002 6/30/2003 36,181,360 16,646,030 19,635,330 37,843,695 21,928,315 15,915,380
7/1/2003 " 6/30/2004 36,011,418 20,092,315 15,919,103 35,793,345 24,752,385 11,040,960
7/1/2004 6/30/2005 46,715,999 23,046,388 23,669,611 41,269,868 20,026,142 21,243,725
7/1/2005 6/30/2006 39,985,777 17,786,419 22,199,357 40,920,237 20,577,671 20,342,567
7/1/2006 6/30/2007 39,091,169 20,529,138 18,562,031 39,480,713 17,151,978 22,328,735
7/11/2007 " 6/30/2008 36,258,662 23,158,024 13,100,638 34,852,156 18,224,480 16,627,696
7/1/2008 6/30/2009 31,695,637 24,725,152 6,870,485 28,901,791 16,772,356 12,129,435
7/1/2009 6/30/2010 28,257,070 21,078,352 7,178,718 27,889,296 16,861,881 11,027,415
7/1/2010 6/30/2011 25,239,238 24,674,147 565,091 25,232,989 17,242,823 7,990,166
711/2011 " 6/30/2012 25,296,014 29,913,928 (4617,914)] 23,769,617 22,869,848 899,769
7/1/2012 6/30/2013 25,645,800 32,960,010 (7,314,210)] 19,306,565 23,638,150 (4,331,585)
7/1/2013 6/30/2014 27,255,798 34,875,422 (7,619,624)| 22,654,784 21,971,103 683,680
7/1/12014 6/30/2015 32,118,612 36,073,700 (3,955,088) 23,780,631 24,860,375 (1,079,744)
71112015 6/30/2016 37,539,189 38,796,300 (1,257,111)] 24,839,798 23,246,975 1,592,823

Total 556,850,864 458,589,171 98,261,693 | 519,760,205 371,391.652 148,368,554
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Line of Business Results
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General Liability
» SSUGL

— Lower than expected reported loss emergence for SSU GL

« Many claims closed for less their case reserved amounts

— Much iower than expected paid ioss emergence for SSU GL

+ Relatively very low level of payments resulted in increase to case reserves
compared to 6/30/15

« SB3 GL
- Higher than expected SB3 GL reported and paid loss emergence
— Case reserves have stabilized, after several years of steadily increasing

» GL Loss levels for both SSU and SB3 remain at high levels

AON

Aon Risk Solutions | Glocal Sisx Consuiting | Azuaral & Aralytes 12 Empower Results*




General Liability

GL Loss Rate Per $1,000 Payroll at 2016/17 Cost Level
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Note: Loss rates are on a retained basis, and gross of any deductibles.
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Medical Malpractice

» Reported loss emergence for both SSU and SB3 was lower than expected
= Effective 7/1/15, medical schools’ practice plans were transferred from SB3 to SSU

— Also effective 7/1/15, the limit of liability for the medical schools was increased from
$1.0 million to $1.5 million

— As a result of this increased exposure for SSU, estimated SSU IBNR increased as of
6/30/16, compared to 6/30/15

— Conversely, estimated IBNR as of 6/30/16 for SB3 decreased compared to 6/30/15,
as a result of the transfer of the medical school practice plans to SSU

= Qverall medical malpractice unpaid loss estimate decreased by $0.9 million as of 6/30/16
compared to 6/30/15

— Increase to SSU IBNR was more than offset by reductions to case reserves and SB3
IBNR

AON
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Medical Malpractice
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3. Reflects 7/1/15 limits increase to $1.5M For Medical Schools Only.
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Automobile

« SB3 Auto loss emergence approximately at expected levels
— Modest decrease to unpaid losses compared to 6/30/15
» SSU Auto had higher than expected reported loss emergence

— Number of open SSU Automobile claims increased from 125 as of 6/30/15, to 168 as
of 6/30/16

— Case reserve increases for several claims

» Three claims have recently reached the $1 million per claim limit (one from
accident year 13/14, and two from accident year 14/15)

— SSU Auto unpaid losses as of 6/30/16 increased $2.1 million over 6/30/15 (largely
due to case reserve increases)

AON
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Automobile

5800

Auto Loss Rate Per Vehicle at 2016/17 Cost Level
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Property

* Two major weather events impacted property losses

— January 2016 winter storm (multiple claims) with incurred loss of $2.6 million on an
unlimited basis ($1 million on a retained basis, split between SSU and SB3 property)

— April 2016 windstorm/hail occurrence (multiple claims) with incurred loss of $1.9
million on an unlimited basis ($1 million on a retained basis, split between SSU and
SB3 property)

* Larger impact to SSU property than SB3

— SSU property unpaid losses as of 6/30/16 increased approximately $750,000
compared to 6/30/15

— SB3 property unpaid losses as of 6/30/16 are essentially unchanged compared to
6/30/15

+ Increases to SB3 property from major weather events were offset by reductions
to other claims

AON
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Property
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Mine Subsidence

= Mine Subsidence continues to perform at a favorable loss ratio (average = 26% over the
past 10 years)

AON
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SSU Fiscal Year 17/18 Rating

» Total costs to allocate steady compared to 16/17

— Loss forecasts increased $1.7M over 16/17
— Expense forecasts decreased $1.7M from 16/17
+ Reduction to excess property premiums of $0.8M
 Increase in unfunded liability credit for SSU
+ From $0.3 million for 16/17 to $0.8 million for 17/18
» Rate changes (17/18 compared to 16/17)
— Decreases for general liability and property
— Modest rate increase for auto liability

» About to kick-off SB3 rating analysis for 17/18

AON
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Interim Study as of December 31, 2016

AON

Empower Results®




December 31, 2016 Interim Analysis - Results

Retained Case

Retained IBNR Retained Unpaid

Reserves at

Line of Business Entity 12/31/2016  at12/31/2016
Automobile 55U 4,004,524 5,866,579
Automobile S83 4,260,481 5,487,172
General Liability 55U 32,269,118 42,316,060
General Liability 583 18,998,706 24,437,733
Property 55U 1,467,233 1,058,013
Property SB3 1,958,322 891,145
Medical Malpractice SsU 8,025,579 15,325,536
Medical Malpractice S83 162,585 1,391,759
Mine Subsidence 375,000 496,679
Subtotal - 55U 45,766,454 64,606,189
Subtotal - $53 25,380,083 32,307,809
Subtotal - S5U + 583 71,146,548 96,913,993
Total 71,521,548 97,410,677

Aon Risk Solutions | Giceal Risk Consuitng | Actuarsl & Analyres

at 12/31/2016

9,871,103
9,747,652

74,585,178
43,436,439

2,565,246
2,949,467

23,351,115
1,554,344

871,679
110,372,643
57,687,903
168,060,546

168,932,225

Retained Case
Reserves at
6/30/2016

5,994,950
4,760,754

31,914,439
20,329,017

2,393,641
2,174,958

5.269,576
703,719

385,000
45,572,606
27,968,445
73,541,051

73,926,051

Retained IBNR Retained Unpaid at

at 6/30/2016

4,412,034
5,107,259

41,720,446
22,882,853

683,972
584,562

15,333,660
1,594,153

479,957
62,150,112
30,168,827
82,318,940

92,798,896

6/30/2016

10,406,984
9,868,013

73,634,885
43,211,870

3,077,613
2,759,517

20,603,236
2,297,872

864,957
107,722,718
58,137,272

165,859,991

166,724,947

Change from 6/30/2016 to 12/31/2016
in Retained Unpaid Loss

Dollar Change

(525,880)
{120,361)

950,293
224,569

(512,367)
189,950

2,747,879
(743,528)

6,722
2,649,925
(449,370)

2,200,555

2,207,278

Percent Change

-5.1%3)
-1.2%|

1.3%]
0.5%

-16.6%
6.9%

13.3%
-32.4%|

0.8%)
2.5%,
-0.8%

1.3%

1.3%
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December 31, 2016 Interim Analysis

Unpaid loss estimates increased $2.2 million (1.3%) between June 30, 2016 and
December 31, 2016

Increase driven by SSU medical malpractice ($2.7 million increase to unpaid losses)

— Three claims with case reserve increases of $300,000 to $1 million each (gross of
deductible)

« Two $900,000 increases (gross of deductible) from accident year 15/16
+ New $1 million claim reported (gross of deductible) for accident year 14/15

Relatively modest changes to unpaid losses for other coverages

Accrual of first 6 months of current 16/17 program year

AON
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STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA
DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION S
BOARD OF RISK AND INSURANCE MANAGEMENT

Earl Ray Tomblin Mary Jane Pickens
Governor Executive Director
Acting Cabinet Secretary

AGENDA
BOARD MEETING OF THE
WEST VIRGINIA BOARD OF RISK AND
INSURANCE MANAGEMENT

December 20, 2016

Chairman Martin Call to Order

Chairman Martin Approval of Board Minutes
September 13, 2016

REPORTS

Norman Mosrie, Partner June 30, 2016 Audited Financial Report

Dixon Hughes Goodman LLP Dixon Hughes Goodman LLP

Mary Jane Pickens Executive Director's Report

Executive Director

Stephen W. Schumacher, CPA Financial Report

Chief Financial Officer PCard Report

Robert A. Fisher

Deputy Director/Claim Manager Loss Control Report

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

Motion to accept the two Account/Investment Update reports submitted by Mr. Nate Pearson of
Standish Mellon Asset Management and Mr. Tom Sauvageot of the West Virginia Investment
Management Board, respectively, presented at the September 13" Board Meeting.

NEW BUSINESS

ADJOURNMENT
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STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION
BOARD OF RISK AND INSURANCE MANAGEMENT

Jim Justice John A. Myers Mary Jane Pickens
Governor Cabinet Secretary Executive Director
Deputy Cabinet Secretary

MINUTES OF THE MEETING
OF THE
WEST VIRGINIA BOARD OF RISK AND INSURANCE MANAGEMENT

December 20, 2016

BOARD MEMBERS Bruce R. Martin, CIC, CRM, Chairman
PRESENT: Bob Mitts, CPCU, Vice Chairman
Edward Magee, Ed.D., CPA, Member
James Dodrill, Esq., Member
James Wilson, Esq., Member
Tonya Gillespie, CPA, Representing Andrew Pauley,
Acting Insurance Commissioner, Board Secretary and
Ex-Officio Member

BRIM PERSONNEL: Mary Jane Pickens, Executive Director
Robert Fisher, Deputy Director/Claim Manager
Stephen W. Schumacher, CPA, CFO
Melody Duke, Underwriting Manager
Charles Mozingo, Claims Assistant Manager
John Fernatt, Claim Representative
Stephen W. Panaro, CPA, Controller
Jeremy Wolfe, Loss Control Manager
Lora Myers, Recording Secretary

BRIM PROGRAM Charles Waugh, AIG Claim Services
REPRESENTATIVES: Brenda Samples, US| Insurance Services, LLC
Bob Ayers, USI Insurance Services, LLC

GUESTS: Sandy Price, WVU Health Sciences Center
Mike Gansor, WVU Risk Management
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Minutes of BRIM Board Meeting
December 20, 2016 2

CALL TO ORDER
The meeting of the West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management was
called to order by Chairman Martin at 1:00PM on Tuesday, December 20, 2016, at 1124

Smith Street, Suite 4300, Charleston, West Virginia.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Vice Chairman Mitts moved the approval of the minutes of the December 20,
2016 Board Meeting. The motion was seconded by Dr. Magee. There being no

discussion, a vote was taken and the MOTION ADOPTED.

REPORTS

Dixon Hughes Goodman LLP — June 30, 2016 Audited Financial Report

Chairman Martin thereafter recognized Norman Mosrie, CPA, CHFP, FHFMA,
Partner, Assurance Market Leader with Dixon Hughes Goodman.

Prior to the meeting, the draft report entitled “Report to the Board of Directors,
West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management, June 30, 2016” was distributed
to the Board members for their information and review. This report contains
the Management Representation Letter and the Financial Statements.

Mr. Mosrie thereafter took a minute to acknowledge the BRIM personnel he had
previously worked with when representing the former auditing firm. He commented that
this is the first audit with the new firm and it went smoothly. BRIM management did a

great job. Covering the audit in December is due to delays presented by waiting on the

1124 Smith Street, Suite 4300 (304) 766-2646
Charleston, West Virginia 25301 (304) 558-6004 FAX
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Minutes of BRIM Board Meeting 3
December 20, 2016

pension numbers to be finalized. The internal control issues have been improved upon
in recent years and a standard of excellence has been achieved. The client assistance
was helpful and there were no audit adjustments. The Opinion on the financials is an
unmodified or clean opinion.

Mr. Mosrie reviewed required communications that are shared with the Board of
birectors. He explained the investments and many financial reports. Amendments to
the draft were made due to the change to the pension standards. The report is still in
draft form so that any questions can be addressed before finalization. He discussed
claims, premiums and investment income and guided the Board through the draft
reports. Mr. Mosrie guided the discussion to the Core Financial Statements on page 12
and discussed thoroughly. Premiums outlined on page 13 were reviewed. Statement of
Cash Flow was reviewed as well. Mr. Mosrie paused and asked if there were any
questions from the Board.

Mr. Schumacher commented on the much more streamlined audit process which
saved everyone a lot of time. Dr. Magee inquired about the major factors that increased
the General Administrative Expenses. Mr. Schumacher and Mr. Panero agreed that no
one aspect greatly impacted the increases, but there were several contributing factors.
Claims were discussed at length. Mr. Martin inquired about the 10-year development
and Mr. Martin referred him to the appropriate pages and charts. Mr. Mosrie offered to
address any further questions, but none were presented. He wished everyone a happy

holiday and thanked the Board for the business.

1124 Smith Street, Suite 4300 (304) 766-2646
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Minutes of BRIM Board Meeting
December 20, 2016 4

Vice Chairman Mitts moved the approval of the Report to the Board of Directors
dated June 30, 2016. The motion was seconded by Mr. Wilson. There being no
discussion, a vote was taken and the MOTION ADOPTED.

Mr. Martin called on Mary Jane Pickens to present her Executive Director’'s
Report. Mrs. Pickens welcomed everyone to the meeting and asked if anyone had
difficulty locating the office. She invited everyone to tour our new facility and thanked
the BRIM staff for all their hard work to make certain our new space is clean and neat
for the meeting. She also praised the General Services Division for their attention to all

our requests while maintaining a good attitude.

Executive Director's Report

(The report of the Executive Director was received and filed, a copy of which is
attached and made a part of the record.)

Mrs. Pickens began by providing a status report regarding the Marshall and WVU
medical malpractice programs. She presented an update on litigation activity in terms
of trials so far in 2016. Claims were reviewed thoroughly and updates reported.

Afterwards, there was a discussion regarding the Patient Injury Compensation
Fund, which has been a great concern to BRIM because it does not have a permanent
funding source. Senate Bill 602 was passed which addressed the problem but left
much uncertainty as to how the claims would be paid. The fund was closed to new
claims July 1, 2016. Mrs. Pickens stated that we are working through the claims and

have a way to go before we can see how close we are to hitting the mark. Due to the

1124 Smith Street, Suite 4300 (304) 766-2646
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Minutes of BRIM Board Meeting
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uncertainty, we have been working with AIG and Ron Walters to structure three of the
claims that became final this past fiscal year. We feel that is the appropriate thing to do.
It has been a process to work through with the three claimants, but we're getting some
pretty positive outcomes.

Recently, we received an appeal of a final award for a PICF claim. There was a
denial of the claim; therefore, this is an administrative process and we are getting a
hearing examiner to preside over the hearing. We have two claims currently before the
Executive Review Committee. Initially the claim goes through the Application Review
Committee and then to an Executive Review Committee at BRIM with outside expertise
before becoming final. We believe that by the end of the fiscal year, all the claims that
we have received will be final. The funds have been coming in from various sources as
identified by the Legislature and they are not predictable. There is a one percent
assessment on settlements and judgements in MPLA cases, and there are fees
associated with medical licensing and other fees associated with events reported to the
trauma registry.

BRIM is required to make a report to the Joint Committee on Government and
Finance in January of 2018, and by that time, we should have a pretty good feeling
about the money. We continue to see issues occur; this happens when legislation is
drafted quickly and we are still working through some of those.

Regarding the PICF funding sources, we have received a call from Kanawha
County Circuit Clerk with technical questions about how to remit the one percent on the

MPLA settlement and judgment. We have been working with the Office of the

1124 Smith Street, Suite 4300 (304) 766-2646
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Insurance Commissioner to help us identify the settlements and judgments because
those are reported by the insurance industry to the OIC. We have been working closely
with the OIC and we really appreciate their help so that we can send letters to the
responsible parties

The Trauma Registry is also one of the funding sources. We received a report to
get a sense of how many claims we are looking at, what has been reported, and what
that represents in terms of money over the next four years. We hope to receive about
$2,000,000 per year for four years which was the goal when the bill passed.

We are currently working with Arthur J. Gallagher, our broker on the Cyber
Policy, to develop a premium allocation model to do cyber premium. Currently we are
paying it at BRIM as part of our general administrative costs. We are looking at whether
it is the appropriate time to come up with a methodology to determine what portion of
the premium should be the responsibility of the agency.

BRIM has become involved in fleet management and not from its own doing. If
you have watched local news you know that supposedly the State of West Virginia is
uncertain of the number of vehicles. There are many moving parts involved--the Surplus
Division, Purchasing and the Fleet Management Office. The Legislature has been
looking to BRIM as a source of information which we are happy to share to the extent
we can be helpful. They have yet to realize that BRIM’s purpose and mission is
completely different from that of the Fleet Management. Draft legislation was
introduced at the December Interims which is concerning in many ways. We will

continue to work with the legislation.
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There is much excitement over our new Risk Management Information System
(RMIS), which has entailed much work on the part of many BRIM employees. We are
on the edge of signing a contract awarded to Emerson Software Solution following an
intense bidding process. Some of the BRIM staff visited Kentucky to view another
company’s RMIS system which Emerson also created, and they had a favorable
impression. Hopefully, this will bring us into the modern world and dramatically increase
customer satisfaction and operational efficiency.

Regarding personnel, BRIM has lost another employee to retirement. Barbara
Houchins retired in October and is living on her farm in Monroe County. We will miss
Barb at BRIM.

We have been working with the Division of Personnel to get some classifications
restructured for Loss Control and the Claim Departments so that there is a career path.
Some of the positions we have are based on classifications which came from another
department in state government and are not best suited for BRIM. There was a very
positive meeting with Wendy Elswick and Joe Thomas at the Division of Personnel and
they are working on ideas to bring back to us.

We currently have two vacant technical positions in the Loss Control Department.
One vacancy has been advertised and we received some résumés but nothing that
looked like a good fit. We are delaying hiring until Spring in the hopes of receiving
interest from new graduates.

As you are aware, in addition to Barbara Houchins retiring, Bob Miller left us

earlier this year. Due to these retirements, we also have openings in the Claim
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Department. John Fernatt has become a full-time claim representative at BRIM. He will
also maintain his information technology role that he does very well. Additionally, John
will continue his duties with the COOP activity and the Active Shooter Program. John
has also been very busy with the move and his efforts are appreciated.

The last item on the Director’s report is an update on our trip to the Annual State
Risk and Insurance Management Association (STRIMA). The conference took place in
Reno, Nevada. Robert Fisher, Steve Schumacher, Melody Duke, Chuck Mozingo and |
attended. We are pleased and excited that Melody Duke was elected President-Elect
and she will take office this September 2017. Melody moving into the leadership in this
organization reflects well on West Virginia. With all the issues surrounding budget, |
would also like to mention that three of our STRIMA participates were on scholarships.

Mrs. Pickens asked for any questions regarding her report. We don’t anticipate
any legislation unless it would be concerning PICF since there are some problematic
wrinkles in that bill.

Rules updates include the Mine Subsidence Rule and the PICF Rule, which are
going through the process now. | am sure this will come up during the legislative
session.

Mr. Dodrill raised a question concerning the medical malpractice program,
inquiring if one or both of the med schools were behind on their deposits. Mr.

Schumacher responded that both schools are current.
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BRIM Financial Report

Mr. Schumacher began with the P-Card report and the sign-off sheet for the prior
months presented at the last Board Meeting. Also, the disk report for the most recent
four months was distributed. Mr. Schumacher noted that on the disk, there are two
October’s; one is blank and the other is labeled “October Corrected” and includes the
detailed information. This report cover four months as opposed to two months on the
last report. October is significantly higher than prior months. This is when we first
started to see the activity that was paid via the P-Card for the moving. In addition, there
are also the claims expenses.

Continuing, Mr. Schumacher noted with regard to the Audited Financials Draft--
which was well covered earlier by Norman—he wanted to mention on Page 50, the
favorable development in prior year reserves. This is the first time in three years we
have seen a favorable development. Before that, the prior two years, we had about
$9,000,000 of adverse development. The key issue from a premium perspective is that
we cannot go back and recapture this money. If a favorable development trend
continues, it would benefit BRIM. There were some significant events that we
experienced in the past--the correctional issues and other issues that caused us to fall
behind the curve before we knew what was going on. Most of these events are behind
us, and we can do a better job going forward.

Mr. Schumacher thereafter presented claims loss information relative to

premiums. We did exceptionally well on the expense side, and we did give back some
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money in premiums during 2016. The area we still struggle with is on the loss side. The
claims expense area is where we need to focus most.

In reviewing the basic information for the first four months through October 31,
2016, Mr. Schumacher commented on the highlights during this period. Investment
returns are better than last year, primarily because the equity market is the force driving
this number.

In August 2013, the Board approved a Premium-to-Net Asset Reserve policy. Mr.
Schumacher covered the established process to assist the Board in assessing BRIM's
overall financial condition. The premium-to-net asset ratio shows that BRIM needs an
additional $28 million in net assets to be near the mid-range for a comparable level of
risk to the benchmark. Currently, BRIM is approximately 17% below what is acceptable
for the level of net premium generated by BRIM for FY16 verses group benchmark.

Mr. Schumacher thereafter offered to answer any questions regarding the
distributed reports. Chairman Martin complimented Mr. Schumacher on his presentation
and giving the Board a guideline. He also explained the net asset ratio policy was put
into place so the Board could quantify, track and assure adequate reserves. Mr.
Schumacher further explained that Mine Subsidence is not included in the ratio because
it is a restricted fund. Mrs. Pickens commented that during the upcoming session, we
may need to educate those in the Legislature about BRIM. Discussion followed among

the Board regarding the manner in which BRIM could be viewed by the legislators.
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Afterwards, a very lengthy discussion was held regarding the premium rates and
what causes the increases and what we can do to lower them. It is anticipated that the
rates will go up 8% for FY "18.

Mr. Fisher commented that if anyone raises an issue at the Legislature, we are
basically privatized. There is no savings to be had by “farming" this out. The private
sector is doing everything except managing, and we manage cheaper than anybody
else can. Mr. Schumacher thereafter noted that a large portion of our claims expense is

being shifted to AlG.

Loss Control Report

There being no questions for Mr. Schumacher, Chairman Martin asked
Mr. Fisher to present the Loss Control Report. The report was received and filed, a
copy of which is attached and made a part of the record.

Mr. Fisher began by stating that the Loss Control staff is finishing the process of
evaluating the agency questionnaires. Almost 130 of the 170 are receiving credits. This
means they are doing what we ask and costs are being driven downward. Mr. Fisher
noted that BRIM and Hartford Steam Boiler sponsored two boiler safety and operational
seminars in October. More than 110 participants attended.

As previously mentioned, we have two vacant technical positions that need to be
filled. We have not been successful in filling the vacancies because we cannot offer the
salary range required for those interested in this field. Jeremy Wolfe is an excellent
trainer. Many of the réesumés received specified salary. We cannot meet their require-

ments--especially when their expected salary is higher than that paid to our current
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employees. In addition, we have outdated job descriptions for the positions but we
hope to rectify that; we do need to have these positions filled.

Mr. Wolfe has been visiting some local, vacant schools, which supposedly had
some personally identifiable information left behind when they closed that received the
press’s attention.

Mr. Wolfe has been working with AON who does our property inspections. They
have identified properties that fall within flood zones. So far, they have located 74
properties with insured values of approximately $790,000. They are meeting with those
people to discuss their flood mitigation issues to keep BRIM from getting hit with those
claims.

Mr. Fisher noted that Senate Bill #3 questionnaires are out and due back
January 1, 2017.

There were no questions for Mr. Fisher.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

A motion was made by Dr. Magee to accept the investment reports presented by
Mr. Nate Pearson of Standish Mellon at the BRIM Board Meeting on September 13,
2016. Mr. Wilson seconded the motion. There being no discussion, a vote was taken
and the MOTION ADOPTED.

A motion was made by Mr. Wilson to accept the investment report presented by

Mr. Tom Sauvageot of the Investment Management Board at the BRIM Board Meeting
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on September 13, 2016. Dr. Magee seconded the motion. There being no discussion, a

vote was taken and the MOTION ADOPTED.

NEW BUSINESS

There was no new business.

ADJOURNMENT

tfjing further, the meeting adjourned at 2:24 p.m.

8)1\‘]?-
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A. Marshall University and West Virginia University Medical Malpractice Program

As of December 14, 2016, Marshall has deposited $900,000.00 into the escrow account
for FY 2017. The fiscal year-to-date cumulative interest totals $3,769.93.
Disbursements totaling $925.216.49 have been paid thus far in FY 2017.

As of December 14, 2016, a total of $3,041,973.67 funds have been deposited into
WVU's escrow account for FY 2017. The fiscal year-to-date cumulative interest totals
$6,980.14. Disbursements totaling $3,049,791.11 have been paid thus far in FY 2017.

B. State Agency/Senate Bill #3 Liability Claim & Litigation Information

TRIALS
e Thus far in 2016, we have tried eleven cases to verdict, with seven defense
verdicts (of which one was a directed verdict and one a defense verdict in
Magistrate Court) and four plaintiff verdicts. One of the plaintiff verdicts was
less than our offer, the others were pure plaintiff verdicts, and one of these
cases is on appeal.
PAID CLAIMS (August 2016 Data)
e Claims Indemnity payments YTD total $37,930,570 vs. PYTD of 35,262,833, an
increase of 7.57%.
e Claims Expense payments YTD total $17,138,701 vs. PYTD of $17,010,599, an
increase of 0.75%.
OUTSTANDING CLAIMS (August 2016 Data)
e November 2016 Indemnity reserves total $60,019,919 vs. November 2015
Indemnity reserves of $52,701,494, an increase of 13.89 %.
* November 2016 Expense reserves total $19,748,962 vs. November 2015 Expense
reserves of $21,131,798, a decrease of 6.54%.
CLAIMS COUNTS {August 2016 Data)
e New claims YTD total 2711 vs. PYTD of 2908, a decrease of 6.77%.
e Closed claims YTD total 2967 vs. PYTD of 2868, an increase of 3.45%.
e Open claims YTD total 992 vs. PYTD of 1070, a decrease of 7.29%.
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i Patient Injury Compensation Fund (PICF)
1. Status of Claims Settled and Pending

AlG and Ron Walters, one of AlG’s structured settlement brokers, are working to
resolve the final three PICF claims that became final during the last fiscal year. One
of the three has accepted our award that is being paid as a structured payout and
the other two claims are awaiting acceptance. By utilizing structured payouts, we
should realize substantial savings to the Fund.

We have received an appeal of a PICF claim that the Fund denied to the claimant.
The appeal was filed within 30 days of the denial letter being issued, as required by
W. Va. CSR §115-7-11.1. Pursuant to W, Va. CSR 115-8-2.1, BRIM must now conduct
a hearing, held in accordance with the State Administrative Procedures Act, before
either the BRIM Executive Director or an Administrative Law Judge (AU). We will be
choosing an ALJ to conduct the hearing. We anticipate that a hearing will not occur
until well after the first of next year.

We have two PICF claims currently pending before the Executive Review Committee.
We will be meeting to address these claims in the immediate future. Our goalis to
finalize all remaining PICF claims before the end of this fiscal year if possible.

2. PICF Funding Sources

We received our first quarterly report from the Office of the Insurance
Commissioner (OIC) and sent letters to the claimant and defense attorney involved
in each claim as well as to the adjuster who submitted the report to the OIC to
advise each of the requirement that 1% of Medical Professional Liability Act (MPLA)
settlements/judgments be remitted to the PICF in accordance with Senate Bill 602.
To date, we have received only a handful of payments, though we expect more.

We received a call from the Kanawha County Circuit Clerk’s office to inquire about
the procedure for submitting monies they collect as 1% of MPLA
settlements/judgments. That office indicated that they would remit as collected,
rather than periodic submission as is the case with the PICF's portion of MPLA filing
fees.

We intend to issue a letter to each of the state’s hospitals inquiring about their
settlements and reminding them of the statutory requirement that they remit 1% of
MPLA settlements. Since self-insured hospitals are not required to notify the OIC of
settlements, as insurance companies are, we currently have no way of knowing of
settlements they enter into.
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We are also considering issues relating to the WV Trauma Registry and the number
of treatments reported to the Registry. -We requested a report from the Trauma
Registry showing reported treatment between January 1 and July 31, 2016; though
the first report for collection purposes won'’t be provided until sometime this
coming spring. At that time, BRIM will assess the designated trauma centers for
reported treatment for calendar year 2016.

When Senate Bill 602 was passed, it was anticipated that the various funding sources
would provide approximately $2 million per year for four years as revenue for the
fund. Although it’s too early to project settlements, it appears that this estimate may
be about what we receive. We hope to have an approximation of what will be
required to resolve all outstanding claims in the near future. BRIM is required to file
a report with the Joint Committee on Government and Finance in January, 2018.

D. Cyber Allocation

We are working with Arthur J. Gallagher, our cyber broker, to develop a premium
allocation model to compute cyber premium. Since we first bought cyber coverage in
2014, we have included the cost for that coverage as part of the general and
administrative costs for the agency. Now that we have most all agencies covered, it
seems approptiate to now allocate the costs to the agencies. We anticipate including
the allocation in the coming fiscal year’s premium to state agencies.

E. Fleet Management

We participated in a meeting with Legislative Auditors staff as well as Legislative
Committee counsel and representatives of the Department of Administration, the Fleet
Management Office, Oasis and BRIM to discuss state fleet management issues.
Legislative staffers presented its report to the Joint Committee on Government
Operations at the December interim committee meetings. The Legislature is continuing
to look at the size and management of the state fleet of vehicles and will apparently
look next at how the fleet is being utilized. We anticipate legislation being introduced
during the regular session that addresses fleet issue and may involve BRIM.

F. Risk Management Information System (RMIS)

After many years of trying, we are finally on the verge of procuring a new Risk
Management Information System. We are currently utilizing a system designed by
former Director Bob Corey many decades ago. While it has worked well for us, it is
technically outdated and very few people remain in state government who know how to
keep it working as we need it. Even the Office of Technology has told us it’s time to get a
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new system. We issued a request for information several years ago but did not move
forward. This year we issued two requests for proposal and after much effort and
deliberation, we have chosen the successful vendor. The contract was awarded to
Emerson Software Solutions. We are currently finalizing the contract language which
will be submitted to Emerson for consideration. Once executed, work should begin on
the system. We would like to see the system operational in six months, but will have to
see how long it takes for data conversion and system personalization. We are very
excited based on what was demonstrated to us during live presentations by Emerson.

G. Personnel

Barbara Houchins retired from her position as a Claim Representative for BRIM on
October 31. She had been with us since 2004, While we hated to see her go, we hope
she will enjoy her retirement.

We met with representatives of the Division of Personnel to once again request the
addition of two new job classifications for Claim Representative positions within BRIM,
We first sought these additions more than fifteen years ago, but the Personnel Board
refused to add them. We are more confident that they can be added this time.

We are also working with the Division of Personnel with regard to the current job
classifications for Loss Control Specialists. The current classifications are Workers’
Compensation based, as are the current classifications for Claim Representative, and do
not reflect the complexity of what our folks do, and do not have a salary structure that is
commensurate with the level of knowledge and experience needed. We have provided
Personnel with requested information and will await the results of their endeavors.

We currently have two vacant technical positions within the Loss Control Department.
We published an ad in the local paper on three consecutive Sundays, but only received
eight resumes. After review of the resumes received and consideration of many of the
salary demands that far exceed what we can pay, we decided to delay hiring until the
spring when new college graduates are looking for a position. We have notified the
current applicants that we have decided to delay the hiring process, but that we will
keep their information for when we try again.

As you may recall, Bob Miller retired in May after more than 15 years’ service as a claim
representative and with Barb Houchins retirement in October, we had two technical
vacancies within the Claim Department. We are pleased to announce that John Fernatt
has accepted a full-time position as a Claim Representative within the agency. In
addition to his claim duties, he will continue to address BRIM’s Information Technology
needs and will be involved with BRIM Continuity of Operations and Active Shooter loss
control efforts.
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H. Miscellaneous

1. The annual State Risk and Insurance Management Association (STRIMA) Conference
was held in Reno, Nevada from September 19" thru the 23, Robert Fisher, Steve
Schumacher, Melody Duke, Chuck Mozingo and | attended. Melody was elected
President-Elect and will take office in September 2017. In light of current state

budget constraints, we were very pleased that Steve, Melody and Chuck were able
to attend the conference on STRIMA scholarships.

MJP/RAF:IId

90 MACCORKLE AVENUE SW, Suite 203
SQUTH CHARLESTON, WV 25303
www.brim.wv.goy

(304) 766-2646
(304) 744-7120 FAX
(800) 345-4669 TOLL FREE WV







STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA

DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION
BOARD OF RISK AND INSURANCE MANAGEMENT

Earl Ray Tomblin Mary Jane Pickens
Governor Executive Director
Acting Cabinet Secretary

Chief Financial Officer’'s Report
December 20, 2016

A. P Card Report

CD copies contain the supporting detail for P card purchases for the months of July, August,
September and October, 2016. These totals are:

July $22,732.15
August $27,000.51
September  $46,752.74
October $79,268.21

B. Audited Financials (Draft) and Audit Results and Communications

» The overall decrease of $3 million in provision for insured events in prior years for the
current years is the first favorable outcome for this metric in the last three years after a
total increase of $9.1 million combined for FY'14 and FY'15.

e BRIM's loss ratio is 109% vs. the industry average of 72%; well above the industry
average.

 BRIM's expense ratio of 7% is very favorable vs. the industry average of 28%.

* BRIM's combined ratio of 116% is well above the industry average of 100%. BRIM's
high loss ratio is the primary driver behind BRIM’s unfavorable combined loss ratio.

* Excluding the credits given in FY'16 premiums for earlier prior year reserve decreases,
BRIM's loss ratio would have been 99%, BRIM's expense ratio would have been 6%
and BRIM’s combined ratio would have been 105%.

C. Current Financial Results

¢ The financial results presented are for the quarter ended October 31, 2016. The
results reflect the actuarially estimated unpaid losses from AON's risk funding study as
of September 30, 2016.

o Premium revenue has increased by $2.0 million for the first four months of FY'16.
BRIM increased premiums in FY*17 to cover the projected increase in claims costs for
the year.

o FY'17 reflects an estimated increase of claims reserves of $4.8 million for the current
year vs. an increase of $0.9 million for the same period last year. Reserve additions
increased claims expenses for both years and were a drag on operating results for
both years.

 Actual claims payments for the first four months of FY'17 are about $1.2 million higher
than the same period last year, also increasing claims expense.
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A better equity market environment resulted in gains of $2.4 million for the current year
vs. losses of $0.2 million for the same period last year.

In July, the transfer of $2.8 million to the Patient Injury Compensation Fund (PICF), as
mandated by enactment of HB4261, resulted in a decrease of the same amount to
BRIM'’s net position through October 31.

Unfavorable claims loss frends hampered the overall results for both years. This trend,
coupled with the transfer out of the $2.8 million in funds to the Patient Injury
Compensation Fund, resulted in a net loss of $4.0 million for the first four months of
FY'17. The unfavorable claims loss trend together with investment losses in FY'16
resulted in a net loss of $0.7 million for last year.

D. Premium to Net Asset Reserve Ratlo

L ]

On August 27, 2013 the Board approved a premium to net asset reserve ratio policy.
The policy established a process to help guide BRIM’s Board in assessing BRIM's
overall financial condition. A calculated composite benchmark establishes a target
range of net assets to assist BRIM in maintaining an adequate level of capital to help
stabilize rates from year to year and to assist in monitoring BRIM’s financial stability.
The net asset reserve policy formulates a composite benchmark by combining a group
of external insurance entities premiums to net assets to calculate a net asset ratio.
This is then used as a basis to evaluate BRIM's premium to net assets ratio.

A range of premium to net asset reserves is then developed to use a guide to help
evaluate acceptable risk level factors for BRIM's calculated ratio and how BRIM is
tracking versus the similar type insurance entities that comprise the benchmark study.
The attached range exhibit shows that BRIM has assumed more risk than the
composite of the benchmark group of entities. The premium to net asset ratio indicates
that BRIM would need and additional $28 million in net assets to fall near the middle of
the range for a comparable level of risk to the benchmark. BRIM’s net position (i.e.
capital) is about 17% below what is acceptable for the level of net premium generated
by BRIM for FY'16 vs. the composite group benchmark.

Respectfully submitted,

72

phen W. Schumacher, CPA
Chief Financial Officer
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Statements of Net Position

For the Four Months Ended October 31st

2016 2015
(In Thousands)
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 9,924 3,474
Advance deposits with insurance company and trustee 206,601 212,286
Receivabales 10,496 8,488
Prepaid insurance 4,452 4,547
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 8,071 8,798
Restricted receivables: 0 0
Premiums due from other entities 620 597

Total current assets 240,165 238,191

Noncurrent assets:

Equity position in internal investments pools 86,191 83,002
Restricted investments 49,775 47,964

Total noncurrent assets 135,965 130,966

Total assets 376,130 369,157

Deferred Outflows of Resources 387 127

Liabilities

Current liabilities:

Estimated unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense 50,819 47,890
Unearned premiums 13,108 11,983
Agent commissions payable 350 283

Claims Payable 135 96
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,889 2,432

Total current liabilities 66,301 62,684

Estimated unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense net of current portion 122,368 113,952

Compensated absences 91 76

Net pension liability 467 253

Total noncurrent liabilities 122,926 114,281

Total liabilities 189,227 176,965

Deferred Inflows of Resources 304 270

Net position:

Restricted by State code for House Bill 601 Program and mine subsidence cove 57,138 55,427
Unrestricted 133,821 137,393
Net Assets (Deficiency) _ (3,971) (771)

Net position $ 186987 § 192.049
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the Four Months Ended October 31st

Operating revenues

Premiums

Less coverage/reinsurance programs
Net operating revenues

Operating expenses

Claims and claims adjustment expense
General and administrative

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues

Investment income

Appropriation Transfer HB4261

Payment to transfer HB601 estimated future IBNR
Net nonoperating revenues

Changes in net position

Total net position, beginning of year

Total net position, end of period

2016 2015
(In Thousands)

$ 23,619 $ 21,674
(2,226) (2,252)
21,393 19,422
23,672 18,594
1,280 1,363
24,953 19,957
(3,560) (535)
2,399 (236)
(2,810) 0
- 0
(411) (236)
(3,971) (771)
190,959 192,820
$ 186,987 $ 192,049







External Benchmark Comparison (FY'16)

(BRIM Actual Premium)
Calculation of the Average Premium to Net Assets Ratio (PNAR) - Similar Organizations

Premium or Premium to Net
Operating Net Assets Asset Ratio
Revenue (PNAR) Name of
Entity
21,360,762 43,607,662 0.490 Utah Local Government Trust
8,474,294 0.472 Texas Council Risk Management Fund (Cities)
10,583,893 0.422 Miami Valley R.M. Association (Ohio Municipalities)
11,581,624 0.269 Local Gov't Ins. Trust (Maryland Counties and Municipalities)
27,702,417 92,150,529 0.301 Intergovernmental Risk Mgmt. Agency (lllinois Municipalities)
4,268,066 17,296,596 0.247 Texas Water Conservation Fund
77,849,462 S 224,594,263 Combined Entities
$ 77,800,000 | $224,600,000]  0.346
$ 55,925,000 |$ 133,837,000 0.418
Derivation of Statistics:
Entity Count Per Above 6 Number of Similar Organizations With Data Available
(0.490-0.247)/2 = .122 0.122 Average of the Range Between the Highest and Lowest PNAR

Combined PNAR of Similar Organizations (Average Risk)
BRIM's Premium Revenue, NAR and Calculated PNAR

Step 2: Matrix of Net Assets Risk Ratings for Various Premium Levels ($ rounded to nearest

100,000)
Actual [T ([ ————— Average Riske----vereemeee-- >More Risk
Premium (PNAR Factor & PNAR Factor & (PNAR Factor & (PNAR Factor & (PNAR Factor &

Levels NAR S Level) NAR S Level) NARS Level) NARS Level) NARS Level)
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Loss Control Report to the Board
December 2016

We have finished our evaluation of state agency loss control questionnaire
submissions. We will be issuing credits to almost 130 state agencies based on their
participation in our Standards of Participation program. Credits and surcharges will be
applied to FY 2018 premiums.

BRIM and Hartford Steam Boiler sponsored two boiler safety and
operational seminars in October. More than 110 people attended and participated in the
seminars. We continue to be pleased with the level of interest generated by these
seminars.

We have two vacant technical positions within the Department. We
advertised to fill one of the positions, but had only limited interest expressed and for
many, their salary requirements were greater than we can meet. We’ve decided to wait
until the spring to try to complete the hiring process when new college graduates are
looking for work.

We have been partnering with Aon on a project which identifies insured
locations that are situated in flood zones. We intend to visit with these insured in the
spring to review and make recommendations related to their flood mitigation plans. Thus
far we have identified 74 locations with total insured values nearing $790,000.

We sent out loss control questionnaires to our Senate Bill #3 customers in
October and they are due back to us by January 1 along with supporting documentation.

During the months of September, October, November and December Aon
conducted 153 inspections and Hartford conducted 1,026. The reports are being
processed according to established procedures.

Since my last report, our loss control technical staff reports the following
activity:

4 Loss Control Visits
These are standard loss control visits which focus on all coverage
areas and which result in information and/or loss control
recommendations being provided.

1124 Smith St. Suite 4300 (304) 766-2646
Charleston, WV 25301 (304) 558-6004 FAX
www.brim.wv.gov (800) 345-4669 TOLL FREE WV




12 Standards of Participation Visits
These are visits which are designed to provide assistance to our
insured who are seeking to become compliant with the BRIM
Standards of Participation program.

1 Presentation Visits

These are visits during which we provide active training and/or
outreach to a group of individuals.

Dated: &GMMZQ 2076

Respectfully submitted,

bt el e R

Robert A. Fisher
Deputy Director and Claim Manager

1124 Smith St. Suite 4300 (304) 766-2646
Charleston, WV 25301 (304) 558-6004 FAX
www.brim.wv.gov (800) 345-4669 TOLL FREE WV
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Report of Independent Auditors

Board of Directors and Management
West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Charleston, West Virginia

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance
Management (BRIM), an enterprise fund of the State of West Virginia, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the BRIM's
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of BRIM, an enterprise fund of the State of West Virginia, as of June 30, 2016, and the changes in
the financial position and cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Basis of Presentation

As discussed in Note 2, the financial statements of BRIM are intended to present the financial position, and
the changes in financial position and cash flows of only that portion of the business type activities of the
State of West Virginia that is attributable to the transactions of BRIM. They do not purport to, and do not
present fairly the financial position of the State of West Virginia as of June 30, 2016, and the changes in its
financial position and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Prior Period Financial Statements
The financial statements of BRIM as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, were audited by other
auditors whose report dated December 7, 2015, expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that Management's
Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 to 11 and the required supplementary information on pages 58 to
63 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, which
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries,
the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Financial Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively
comprise BRIM's basic financial statements. The accompanying schedules on pages 64 through 71 listed
in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements.

The schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the accompanying schedules are fairly
stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we also have issued our report dated
December 19, 2016, on our consideration of BRIM's internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering BRIM's internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Charleston, West Virginia
December 19, 2016
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(in thousands)

Overview of the financial statements

Management of the West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management (BRIM) provides this Management's
Discussion and Analysis for readers of BRIM's financial statements. This narrative overview of the financial activities
of BRIM is for the years ended June 30, 2016, 2015, and 2014. BRIM provides property and casualty insurance to
the State of West Virginia (the State) agencies and Senate Bill 3 (SB3) entities, which include boards of education,
and governmental and nonprofit organizations. BRIM also administers a coal mine subsidence reinsurance program
that makes available to the general public dwelling insurance covering damage caused by the collapse of
underground coal mines. From December 2001 until novation to a physician's mutual on July 1, 2004, BRIM's
program was expanded to include providing medical malpractice insurance to private sector health care providers
(referred to hereafter as the House Bill 601 Program). The hospitals that were non-renewed in 2003 are still being
managed by BRIM for claims that were made during the period they were insured.

As an enterprise fund, BRIM's financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America for governmental entities. The three basic financial statements presented are as follows:

e Statement of Net Position - This statement presents information reflecting BRIM's assets, liabilities,
and net position and is categorized into current and noncurrent assets and liabilities. For purposes
of the financial statements, current assets and liabilities are those assets and liabilities with
immediate liquidity or that are collectible or becoming due within 12 months of the statement's date.

The statement of net position reports a separate financial statement element called deferred
outflows of resources. This financial statement element represents a consumption of net position
that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense)
until that time. The statement of net position reports a separate financial statement element called
deferred inflows of resources. This financial statement element represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time.

e Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - This statement reflects the
operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses for the operating year. Operating revenues
primarily consist of premium income with major sources of operating expenses being claims loss
and loss adjustment expense and general and administrative expenses. Nonoperating revenues
primarily consist of investment income and appropriations from the State.

o Statement of Cash Flows - The statement of cash flows is presented on the direct method of
reporting, which reflects cash flows from operating, noncapital financing, and investing activities.
Cash collections and payments are reflected on this statement to arrive at the net increase or
decrease in cash and cash equivalents for the year.

During fiscal year 2016, BRIM implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 72,
Fair Value Measurement and Application and GASB Statement No 79, Certain External investment Pools and Pool
Participants. GASB 72 generally requires investments to be measured at fair value and disclosures to be made
about fair value measurements, the level of fair value hierarchy, and valuation techniques, organized by type of
asset or liability reported at fair value. It also requires additional disclosures for investments in certain entities that
calculate net asset value (NAV) per share (or its equivalent). GASB 79 establishes criteria for making the election
to measure all of its investments at amortized cost for financial reporting purposes. BRIM participates in BTI's West
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Virginia Money Market Pool, which has been deemed to meet the criteria and is reported at amortized cost.
Accordingly, as a pool participant BRIM measures its investment in this pool at amortized cost. The adoption of the
these standards had no effect on BRIM's statements of net position or changes in net position, but primarily related
to modifications and additions to the disclosures related to BRIM's cash equivalents and investments.

Effective July 1, 2014, BRIM adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Pensions — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, and GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. BRIM
determined that it was not practical to restate all periods presented and has recorded the cumulative effect of the
decrease to beginning net position of implementing this change of $495 as of July 1, 2014, which is the net pension
liability of $628 less deferred outflows of resources related to pension plan contributions of $133 as of that date.
BRIM further determined that it was not practical to determine the amounts of all deferred inflows of resources and
deferred outflows of resources related to pensions as of July 1, 2014, and these amounts are not reported.
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Financial highlights

The following tables summarize the statements of net position and changes in net position as of and for the years
ended June 30, 2016, 2015, and 2014

Change 2016-2015 Change 2015-2014
2016 2015 2014 Amount Percent Amount Percent

Cash and cash

equivalents $ 25946 § 19,506 % 13354 % 6,441 33.0% $ 6,151 46.1%
Advance

deposits with

carrier/trustee 210,152 204,219 206,774 5,933 29 (2,555) (1.2)
Receivables 1,874 2,531 3,611 (657) (26.0) (1,080) (29.9)
Total current

assels 237,972 226,255 223,739 TLTT 52 2,516 1.1
MNoncurrent

investments 132,322 137.824 147,378 (5,052) (4.0) (9,554) (6.5)
Total assets 370,294 364,079 Kra kb 6,215 1.7 (7,038) (1.9)
Deferred

outflows of

resources

related to

pension 387 127 - 260 204.7 127 100.0
Estimated unpaid

claims and

claims

adjustment

expense 50,819 47,890 53,448 2,929 6.1 (5,558) (10.4)
Unearned

premiums 8,300 7,659 7,518 641 84 141 1.9
Agent

commissions

payable 1,100 1,032 939 68 6.6 93 2.9
Accrued

expenses 1,025 1,136 469 (111) (9.8) 667 142.2
Total current

liabilities 61,244 57,717 62,374 3,527 6.1 (4,657) (7.5)
Estimated unpaid

claims and

claims

adjustment

expense, net

of current

portion 117,616 113,070 99,756 4,546 4.0 13,314 13.3
Compensated

absences 91 76 76 16 19.7 - 0.0
Net Pension

Liability 467 253 214 846 253 100.0
Total noncurrent

liabilities 118,174 113,399 99,832 4775 4.2 13,567 133
Total liabilities 179,418 171,116 162,206 8,302 4.9 8,910 55
Deferred inflows

of resources

related to

pension 304 270 - 34 12.6 270 100.0
Net position:

Restricted 57,123 55,428 53,5695 1,695 31 1,833 34

Unrestricted 133,836 137,392 165,316 (3,5586) (2.6) (17.924) (11.5)
Net position $ 190,959 § 192820 $ 208911 $ (1.861) (1.0% §___ (16.091) (7.7)




West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(in thousands)

(continued) Change 2016-2015 Change 2015-2014
2016 2015 2014 Amount Percent Amount Percent
Premiums $ 65293 § 58,204 $ 52,128 § 7,089 12.2% ] 6,076 11.7%
Less excess
coverage (6,909) (6.197) (6,102) (712) 115 (95) 1.6
Net operating
revenues 58,384 52,007 46,026 6,377 123 5,981 13.0
Claims and
claims
adjustment
expense 63,753 68,145 61,626 (4,392) (6.4) 6,519 10.6
General and
administrative 3,905 3.541 3,898 364 10.3 (357) (9.2)
Total operating
expenses 67,658 71.686 65,524 (4,028) (5.6) 6,162 9.4
Operating loss (9,274) (19,679) (19,498) 10,405 (52.9) 181 0.9
Nonoperating )
revenues:
Investment
income 7,413 4,833 17,043 2,580 53.4 (12,210) (71.6)
Appropriation
transfer
HB4261 - - (2,000) - 0.0 2,000 (100.0)
Payment to
transfer
HB601
estimated
future IBNR - (750) - 750 (100.0) (750) 100.0
Total
nonoperating
revenues, net 7.413 4,083 15.043 3,330 81.6 (10,960) (72.9)
Changes in net
position (1,861) (15,596) (4,455) 13,735 (88.1) (11,141) 2501

Total net position
- beginning 192,820 208,911 213,366 (16,091) (7.7) (4,455) (2.1)

Cumulative effect
of adoption of

GASB 68 - (4395) i 495 (100.0) (495) 100.0
Total net position

- beginning of

year restated 192,820 208,416 213,366 (15,596) (7.5) (4,950) (2.3)
Total net position

- end $ 190959 § 192820 § 208911 § (1,861) (10) & (16,091) (7.7)
Total revenues s 65797 & 56,090 § 61069 & 9,707 17.3 8 (4.979) (8.2)
Total expenses s 67,658 & 71686 § 65524 & (4.028) (5.6) & 6,162 9.4
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e Total assets increased by $6,215 in 2016 and decreased by $7,038 in 2015. The increase in 2016
is due to an increase in investment earnings and an increase in premium revenue. The decrease
in 2015 is due to increased premiums and lower investment earnings. This was offset by an
increase in claims paid to claimants in 2015.

o Total liabilities increased $8,302 in 2016 and increased by $8,910 in 2015. Estimated claims
expense increased in 2016 and 2015, mostly from an increase in the current year provision for both
years and adverse development in the prior year reserve estimates for 2015, including an
unanticipated increase in State general liability claims (primarily in 2010 and 2011 reserves) and a
couple of large property loss occurrences that adversely impacted both the State and SB3
programs (2012 reserves).

e Several factors contributed to the $1,861 decrease in total net position for 2016 and the $16,091
decrease for 2015. In 2016, revenue increased due to premium increases and investment earnings
increased over 2015 by, $2,580, due to market conditions. BRIM also implemented GASB 68 in
2015, which resulted in an adjustment that reduced beginning net position by $495. Total operating
expenses for the year decreased $4,028, which was primarily caused by the decrease in claims
expense. In 2016, the increase in estimated claims expense liability grew by a combined $7,475
based on the actuarial study. The investment returns of 2016 almost offset the increase in claims
liability. Also included within the net position category are restricted positions totaling $57,123 in
2016, $55,428 in 2015, and $53,595 in 2014 for programs that provide mine subsidence coverage
to the general public per the West Virginia State Code and that had previously provided medical
malpractice tail coverage for the House Bill 601 Program.

e Total net operating revenues increased by $6,377 in 2016 and increased by $5,981 in 2015. The
unfavorable claims trend developments in prior years' outstanding claims reserve has led BRIM to
increase premium rates to policyholders for 2016 and 2015.

¢ Total operating expenses decreased to $67,658 in 2016 from $71,686 in 2015. Claims and claims
adjustment expense decreased year over year by $4,392 while G&A expenses increased by $364.

¢ Nonoperating revenues, net increased by $3,330 in 2016 and decreased $10,960 in 2015. The
increased investment returns reflect the increase of the market value of the bonds held resulting
from the lower interest rate environment, while a weaker stock market impacted the other
investment holdings.

e Total revenues and total expenses from 2016 to 2015 and from 2015 to 2014 have fluctuated due
to alterations in premium rates, the changes in the retained loss estimates, and the variations in
annual investment market returns. See the analysis of these individual components, as previously
discussed, for additional information.

Overall analysis

The overall condition of BRIM deteriorated 1.0% from the prior year compared with a decrease of 7.7% from 2014
to 2015. Reserves increased again in 2016, but there was also an increase in investment earnings over 2015. The
overall increase in claims and claims adjustment expense, offset in part by an increase in investment earnings,
caused the decrease of net position for the current year, reflecting a net position total of $190,959 at June 30, 2016.
BRIM continues to adhere to a comprehensive financial stability and rating plan.

Unpaid Claims Liability

BRIM's most significant number on its statements of net position is the liability for estimated unpaid claims and
claims adjustment expense. This liability consists of two parts: claims of which BRIM is aware that have been
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reserved and incurred but not reported (IBNR) claims, which are projected by an independent actuary. From fiscal
year 2015 to 2016, the liability for unpaid claims increased from $160,960 to $168,435. The chart below shows the
estimated unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense liability for fiscal years 2007 through 2016.

Estimated Unpaid Claims and Claims Adjustment Expense

$180,000 .
$170,000

$160,000 g——=-

$150,000 \‘X
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2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Fiscal Year Ended

House Bills 601 and 2122

In December 2001, the West Virginia Legislature passed House Bill 601, which authorized BRIM to provide medical
malpractice and general liability coverage to health care providers. This bill was created as a result of the medical
malpractice insurance crisis created by private sector insurance companies' nonrenewing insurance policies for
health care providers on a national level and in the State.

During the legislative session in early 2003, House Bill 2122 was enacted. This bill allowed for the physicians
insured under House Bill 601 to novate into a physicians' mutual. On July 1, 2004, these physicians were novated
to the West Virginia Physicians' Mutual Insurance Company (WVPMIC). The hospitals and clinics that did not novate
were not renewed by BRIM prior to June 30, 2004. Tail coverage was offered to all terminated insurers in House
Bill 601. In March 2015, BRIM novated any potential future claims on the tail policies to a commercial carrier. BRIM
paid the carrier $750 to assume the liability of these claims. Legislation passed in March 2016 closed the Medical
Liability Fund and all remaining funds were transferred to the West Virginia Patient Liability Fund in July 2016.

Results by Line of Business for BRIM

BRIM's lines of business are comprised of the State (state agencies), SB3 (for nonprofits, boards of education, and
other governmental units), mine subsidence (for home and business owners), and House Bill 601 (medical
malpractice for private physicians).

The following chart shows the breakdown by customer and line of business of the total estimated claim liability
number, which is $168,435. As demonstrated in the chart, the largest claim volume for BRIM relates to general
liability for the State agencies and SB3 programs and the State agencies' medical malpractice coverage.




West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
(in thousands)

Components of Total Claim Liability by
Customer and Line of Business
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There is no long-term debt activity.

Economic factors and next year's rates

Management's Plan to Maintain Net Position by Line of Business

BRIM has had no deficiency in net position for the programs it has overseen for several years. Previously, however,
a deficiency arose, primarily due to adverse claim development in the general liability and medical malpractice lines
of business for the State and SB3. The following paragraphs describe the essential plans that BRIM continues to
follow to ensure that all lines of business remain fiscally solvent and that the individual programs are financially
sound.

Risk Management

BRIM continues pursuing an aggressive risk management plan to help identify the risks underlying the adverse
losses that occurred in earlier years. Processes are in place to allow for better organization and for proper
documentation of activities. BRIM has been working on ways to increase and improve communications, both within
the agency and with its customers, and has been promoting interaction within the agency with regard to loss control
utilization. In conjunction with the underwriting department, a system of credits and surcharges is in place, based
on loss control efforts and cooperation, or lack thereof, on the part of BRIM's insurers.

Investment Returns

Investment income increased for fiscal year 2016 and decreased for 2015. The market conditions in 2016 were
more favorable than 2015, and investment income was somewhat higher. The increase in 2016 was due to a slightly
more favorable interest rate environment. All BRIM funds held by the West Virginia Investment Management Board
(WVIMB) inure to the benefit of program participants. BRIM reinvests the investment earnings on funds held by the
WVIMB and occasionally withdraws monies from these funds, as needed, for operating and short-term cash
requirements. In 2016 and 2015, BRIM withdrew $5 million and $12 million, respectively, of its funds from the
WVIMB for operational purposes.

10
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Premium Determination Process

BRIM has properly maintained premiums across all lines of business for the past several years based on relevant
exposure data, claims loss history, and investment returns. Charging proper premiums, consistent with the
commercial industry, has enabled BRIM to adequately cover losses. Although fiscal year 2016 benefited from prior
years' reserve releases, both 2015 and 2014 saw overall net increases in retained claims reserves. If this recent
claim trend persists over the next several fiscal years and future investment returns continue to decline, it may
require premium increases to allow for a sufficient level of funding to adequately sustain the operation of all
programs and to help ensure that no premium deficiency develops.

In addition, BRIM adopted a net assets reserve policy in 2014. The policy calculates a ratio of premiums to net
position for comparison to other similar agencies. A range was established to assist BRIM's board in assessing its
overall financial condition.

Requests for information

This financial report is designed to provide BRIM's customers, governing officials, legislators, citizens, and
taxpayers with a general overview of BRIM's accountability for the money it receives. If you have any questions
about this report or need additional information, contact the Office of the Chief Financial Officer at (304) 766-2646.
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Financial Statements
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2016 and 2015
(in thousands)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Advance deposits with insurance company and trustee
Receivables
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Restricted receivables:
Premiums due from other entities

Total current asseis

Noncurrent assets:
Equity position in investment pools
Restricted investments

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Estimated unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense
Unearned premiums
Agent commissions payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Total current liabilities
Estimated unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense,
net of current portion
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pension

Net position:
Restricted by State code for House Bill 601 Program and
mine subsidence coverage
Unrestricted

Net position

See accompanying notes.

2016 2015
15,748 11,286
210,152 204,219
1,254 1,934
10,198 8,219
620 597
237,972 226,255
83,881 89,199
48,441 48,625
132,322 137,824
370,294 364,079
387 127
50,819 47,890
8,300 7,659
1,100 1,032
1,025 1,136
61,244 57,717
117,616 113,070
91 76
467 253
118,174 113,399
179,418 171,116
304 270
57,123 55,428
133,836 137,392
190,959 192,820
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
June 30, 2016 and 2015

(in thousands)

Operating revenues:
Premiums $
Less excess coverage/reinsurance premiums

Net operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Claims and claims adjustment expense
General and administrative

Total operating expenses

Operating loss

Nonoperating revenues:
Investment income
Payment to transfer HB601 estimated future IBNR

Net nonoperating revenues

Changes in net position

Total net position, beginning of year
Cumulative effect of adoption of GASB 68

Net position at beginning of year as restated

Total net position, end of year $

2016 2015
65,293 58,204
(6,909) (6,197)
58,384 52,007
63,753 68,145

3,905 3,541
67,658 71,686
(9,274) (19,679)

7,413 4,833

- (750)
7,413 4,083
(1,861) (15,596)
192,820 208,911
- (495)
192,820 208,416
190,959 192,820

See accompanying notes.
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Statements of Cash Flows
June 30, 2016 and 2015
(in thousands)

Operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers
Payments to claimants
Deposits to advance deposit with insurance company
and trustee

Withdrawals from advance deposit with insurance company

and trustee
Net cash used in operating activities
Noncapital financing activities:
Cumulative effective of GASB 68 adoption
Payment to transfer HB601 estimated future IBNR

Net cash used in noncapital financing activities

Investing activities:
Purchase of investments
Sale of investments
Net investment earnings

Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

See accompanying notes.

2016 2015
59,683 $ 53,376
(1,526) (1,014)
(2,421) (1,662)

(56,278) (60,389)
(65,011) (60,857)
59,079 63,411
(6,474) (7,135)

- (350)

- (750)

- (1,100)

(17,047) (22,064)
20,553 32,417
9,409 4,033
12,915 14,386
6,441 6,151
19,505 13,354
25,946 $ 19,505
15,748 $ 11,286
10,198 8,219
25,946 $ 19,505
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Statements of Cash Flows

June 30, 2016 and 2015

(in thousands)

(Continued)

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used in
operating activities:
Operating loss

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash
used in operating activities:
Pension expense
(Decrease) increase in advanced deposits
Decrease in premiums receivable, net
Increase in estimated liability for unpaid claims
and claims adjustment expense
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities
Increase in unearned premiums
Deferred outflows of resources - pension contributions

Total adjustments
Net cash used in operating activities

Noncash activities:
Increase in fair value of investments

See accompanying notes.

2016 2015
(9,274) $ (19,679)
137 -
(5,933) 2,555
657 1,080
7,475 7,756
(28) 1,012
641 141
(149) -
2,800 12,544
(6,474) $ (7,135)
5,502 $ 9,554
15
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Notes to Financial Statements
(in thousands)

Notes to Financial Statements
(in thousands)

1.  General (Amounts referenced in this note related to insurance coverages are actual
dollars)

The West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management (BRIM) was established in 1957 to provide for the
development of the State of West Virginia's (the State and primary government) property and liability self-insurance
program. Approximately 161 State agencies participate in the program. Beginning in 1980, county boards of
education were authorized to participate in the liability portion of this program, with 55 county boards currently
participating in the program. In fiscal year 1987, Senate Bill 3 (SB3) was enacted, allowing local governmental
entities and nonprofit organizations to participate in the entire program. There are approximately 900 such entities
participating in the program. In 1982, legislation was also enacted requiring BRIM to establish and administer a coal
mine subsidence reinsurance program that makes available to the general public dwelling insurance covering
damage up to a specific maximum caused by the collapse of underground coal mines.

BRIM operates under the authority granted by the Legislature in Chapter 29, Article 12, and Chapter 33, Article 30,
of the West Virginia Code and the provisions of Executive Order 12-86. BRIM is an agency of the State operating
within the Department of Administration and is governed by a five-person board of directors appointed by the
Governor. Accordingly, BRIM is reported as an enterprise fund of the State, operating as a single business segment,
and is included in the State's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

BRIM uses a "modified" paid retrospective rating plan for its liability insurance program. Under the current plan,
BRIM annually pays a "premium" deposit into a trust fund in the amount of the estimated losses for the current
policy year. As claims are reported, they are paid from the trust funds established by the "premium" deposit. When
paid losses exceed the amount of the "premium" deposit, including earnings, BRIM pays into the trust account an
additional "premium" deposit estimated to be sufficient to fund any estimated remaining claims and claims
adjustment expenses expected to be paid during the ensuing 12-month period. These payments are calculated
through retrospective rating adjustments made subsequent to the current policy year. Therefore, the "premiums"
paid by BRIM are advance deposits, and BRIM is not indemnified by the insurance company for any losses. Under
this plan, the insurance company is compensated for its claim-handling services by a fixed fee negotiated on a
yearly basis.

From January 1, 1971 through June 30, 1976, the liability coverage provided by BRIM was limited to $25 thousand
per occurrence on general liability, automobile liability, and medical malpractice claims. From July 1, 1976 through
June 30, 1980, the liability coverage provided by BRIM was limited to $100 thousand per occurrence. From July 1,
1982 through June 30, 1985, the liability coverage provided by BRIM was limited to $6 million per occurrence. Since
July 1, 1985, the liability coverage provided by BRIM is limited to a $1 million indemnity per occurrence. In addition,
the county boards of education are covered by an excess insurance policy providing up to $5 million of coverage in
excess of the underlying $1 million limit. These limits only apply to incur indemnity claim losses. BRIM pays all
allocated loss adjustment expenses, which are the costs incurred in the reporting, investigation, adjustment,
defense, and settlement of claims that are attributable to a specific, individual claim.

Prior to July 1, 1990, BRIM retained the first $25 thousand of loss per event on property insurance claims. Losses
in excess of $25 thousand per event were also retained within an annual aggregate limit From July 1, 1990 through
June 30, 1991; the exposure retained by BRIM was $1 million per event. From July 1, 1991 through June 30, 1996,
the exposure retained by BRIM was $2 million per event. Since July 1, 1996, the exposure retained by BRIM is $1
million per event. BRIM has obtained excess coverage, through insurance companies, covering losses in excess
of $1 million, up to $400 million per occurrence, subject to various sublimits for particular types of claims as specified
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Notes to Financial Statements
(in thousands)

in the policy. With the passage of House Bill 532 in March 2015, BRIM is required to retain the first $1.5 million of
medical malpractice liability for the state's medical schools and their related practice plans beginning July 1, 2015.
The retained limit of $1.5 million is indexed for inflation each year. On July 1, 2016, the retained limit increased

slightly.

In 1985, the coal mine subsidence program was legislatively expanded to include all types of building structures,
and the maximum amount of insurance available was increased from $50 thousand to $75 thousand per structure.
Additional legislation passed in March 2016 further expanded the amount of insurance available beginning October
1, 2016, from $75,000 up to $200,000 per structure.

In December 2001, the West Virginia Legislature passed House Bill 601, which authorized BRIM to provide
medical malpractice and general liability coverage to private health care providers (the House Bill 601 Program).
On July 1, 2004, all physicians novated to the newly formed West Virginia Physicians' Mutual Insurance Company
(WVPMIC). BRIM maintained the hospital and facilities in the House Bill 601 Program that did not novate to
WVPMIC. However, all policies were terminated as of June 30, 2004, and the program was in runoff mode only
for existing claims and for any claims that may be submitted on any tail policies that were purchased. In 2015,
BRIM transferred potential claims/IBNR run-off to a third-party for $750. In July 2016, the remaining balance of
the House Bill 601 funds of $2.8 million were transferred to the Patient Injury Compensation Fund, which is
discussed in the following paragraph.

In March 2004, the West Virginia Legislature passed House Bill 4740, creating a Patient Injury Compensation Fund.
The purpose of this fund is to provide fair and reasonable compensation to claimants in medical malpractice actions
for any portion of economic damages awarded that is uncollectible as a result of previously enacted tort reforms.
This fund provides relief to claimants whose damages were limited because of caps for trauma care or as a result
of joint and several liabilities. The capitalization of the fund comes from the State's tobacco settlement fund. The
activity for this fund is not reflected in BRIM's financial statements. BRIM serves as third-party administrator for this
fund and, accordingly, the activity for this fund is reflected in the State's financial statements. Legislation passed in
March 2016 transferred all funds in the Medical Liability Fund to the West Virginia Patient Injury Fund, effective July
1, 2016, resulting in the closing of the Medical Liability Fund. This legislation also closed compensation to any
claimants who filed with the Patient Injury Fund on or after July 1, 2016. Additional funding to pay any compensable
claims filed as of June 30, 2016 was established by creation of assessments imposed on medical liability claims
awards and settlements and fees charged to licensed physicians and hospitals.

In the normal course of business, BRIM seeks to reduce the loss that may arise from catastrophes or other events
that cause unfavorable operating results by reinsuring levels of risk in various areas of exposure with other
insurance enterprises or reinsurers. Reinsurance permits recovery of a portion of losses from reinsurers; however,
it does not discharge the primary liability of BRIM as direct insurer of the risks insured. BRIM does not report
reinsured risks as liabilities unless it is probable that those risks will not be covered by reinsurers.

The funding of the property and liability insurance premiums for the State agencies comes from direct premium
assessments on those agencies. SB3 entities are charged a premium to participate in the program. Under the mine
subsidence line of business, the ceding insurers pay BRIM a reinsurance premium.

Pursuant to the West Virginia Code, BRIM submits a detailed budgetary schedule of administrative expenses to
the secretary of the Department of Administration prior to the beginning of each fiscal year. The fundamental
purpose of budgetary control is to plan for the expected level of operations and to provide management with a tool
to control deviation from such plan. The budgetary schedule is prepared on a modified cash basis, which is a
comprehensive basis of accounting other than U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).
Expenditures related to the general revenue appropriation amount, if any, are monitored by the State's budgetary
review process in total on an unclassified basis. Each year's appropriation lapses at year-end. The remaining
operations of BRIM are subject to a nonappropriated budgetary review process.
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Notes to Financial Statements
(in thousands)

GAAP defines component units as legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary
government are financially accountable or other organizations for which the nature and significance of their
relationship with the State's financial statements would cause them to be misleading. BRIM has considered whether
it has any component units as defined by GAAP and has determined that no such organizations meet the criteria
set forth above.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of accounting

As an enterprise fund, BRIM's financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting in conformity with GAAP. Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. In its accounting and
financial reporting, BRIM follows the pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

BRIM distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating revenues and expenses. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with BRIM's principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues and expenses of BRIM relate to premium revenues and claims and
administrative expenses. Premium contributions received covering future contract periods are deferred and
recognized over the related contract period. Net investment earnings and finance charges are reported as
nonoperating revenues.

The financial statements of BRIM are intended to present the financial position and the changes in financial position
and cash flows of only that portion of the business-type activities of the State of West Virginia that is attributable to
the transactions of BRIM. They do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the State of
West Virginia as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the
years then ended in conformity with GAAP.

Adoption of new Accounting Standards

During fiscal year 2016, BRIM implemented GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application and
GASB Statement No 79, Certain External investment Pools and Pool Participants. GASB 72 generally requires
investments to be measured at fair value and disclosures to be made about fair value measurements, the level of
fair value hierarchy, and valuation techniques, organized by type of asset or liability reported at fair value. It also
requires additional disclosures for investments in certain entities that calculate NAV per share (or its equivalent).
GASB 79 establishes criteria for making the election to measure all of its investments at amortized cost for financial
reporting purposes. The adoption of the these standards had no effect on BRIM's statements of net position or
changes in net position, but primarily related to modifications to the disclosures related to BRIM’s cash equivalents
and investment disclosures in Note 3.

During fiscal year 2016, BRIM also implemented GASB Statement No. 76, The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles for State and Local Governments, which identifies, in the context of the current government
financial reporting environment, the hierarchy of generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). This statement
supersedes GASB Statement No. 55. The GAAP hierarchy” consists of the sources of accounting principles used
to prepare financial statements of state and local governmental entities in conformity with GAAP and the framework
for selecting those principles. This Statement reduces the GAAP hierarchy to two categories of authoritative GAAP
and addresses the use of authoritative and nonauthoritative literature in the event that the accounting treatment for
a transaction or other event is not specified within a source of authoritative GAAP. The sources of authoritative
GAAP are categorized as follows: Category A — officially established accounting principles (GASB Statements) and
Category B — GASB Technical Bulletins, GASB Implementation Guides, and literature of the AICPA cleared by the
GASB. The adoption of this standard had no effect on BRIM's statements of net position or changes in net position.
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Notes to Financial Statements
(in thousands)

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make certain estimates
and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual
results could differ from management's estimates.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term investments with original maturities of 90 days or less. Cash and cash equivalents
principaily consist of interest-earning deposits in an investment pool maintained by the West Virginia Board of
Treasury Investments (BTI). Such funds are available to BRIM with overnight notice.

Restricted cash and cash equivalents are cash and cash equivalents that are to be used for specific lines of business
(i.e., mine subsidence coverage provided to the general public, and medical malpractice and general liability
coverage provided to health care providers) based on restrictions provided in the State Code.

Advance deposits with insurance company and trustee

Advance deposits with the insurance company consist of monies on deposit that are utilized to fund claims and
claims adjustment expenses as they are paid by the insurance company.

BRIM deposits monies with the Bank of New York (BNY), as trustee, to hold as advance deposits in an escrow
account for BRIM liability claims. The monies held in escrow are invested in specific money market funds and short-
term guaranteed or investment-grade fixed-income securities that are identified as "qualified assets" in the escrow
agreement. The funds held in escrow, together with their earnings, will be used to fund the payment of the claims
and claims adjustment expenses related to these liability claims. As an escrow agent, BNY periodically transfers
monies from the escrow account to the insurance company administering these claims in order to reimburse the
insurance company for payments that it has issued on these claims and claims adjustment expenses on BRIM's

behalf.

Investmentis

BRIM invests in certain West Virginia Investment Management Board (WVIMB) investment pools. Some of these
pools invest in longer-term securities and are subject to market fluctuation because of changes in interest rates.
Investments are reported by WVIMB at fair value and are accounted for by BRIM accordingly, with changes in the
fair value included in investment income. Income from these investments is prorated to BRIM at rates specified by
WVIMB based on the balance of BRIM's deposits maintained in relation to the total deposits of all State agencies
participating in the pool.

Restricted investments are investments that are to be used for specific lines of business (i.e., mine subsidence
coverage provided to the general public and medical malpractice and general liability coverage provided to health
care providers) based on restrictions provided in the State Code.

Fair value measurements

BRIM measures certain investments at fair value for financial reporting purposes. GASB Statement No. 72 defines
fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-
specific measurement. BRIM categorizes fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
accounting principles generally accepted in the Unites States of America in accordance with GASB Statement No.
72.
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Notes to Financial Statements
(in thousands)

The fair value hierarchy established under GASB Statement No. 72 categorizes the inputs to valuation techniques
used to measure fair value into three levels as follows:

Level 1 inputs — Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that a
government can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs — Inputs — other than quoted prices included within Level 1 — that are observable for an asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs — Unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.
The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 inputs and the lowest priority to Level 3 inputs.

In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In
such cases, an investment's level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement. The assessment of the significance of a particular input to the fair value
measurement in its entirety requires judgement, and considers factors specific to the investment.

Fair value of the securities BRIM holds with the IMB are determined as follows:

o Equity securities are valued at the last sale price or official closing price reported in the market in which
they are primarily traded.

¢ Open-end regulated investment companies or other commingled investment funds are valued at the net
asset value of the fund as reported by the fund’s administrator.

e Future contracts are valued at the last settlement price established each day by the exchange on which
they traded.

o Fixed income securities are valued according to prices furnished by independent pricing services to the
securities custodian. These services determine the security prices by a number of methods including,
but not limited to, dealer quotes, live market trading levels when available, live feeds of trade execution
data, spreads over U.S. Treasury securities, and other models and formulae appropriated to the specific
security type.

¢ Repurchase agreements and time deposits are valued at amortized cost, provided such amount
approximates fair value.

Investments for which the fair value cannot be determined by one of the above listed processed are valued at
fair value as determined in accordance with the IMB'’s established procedures.

Compensated absences

Employees fully vest in all earned but unused annual leave, and BRIM accrues for obligations that may arise in
connection with compensated absences for vacation at the current rate of employee pay. In accordance with State
personnel policies, employees vest in any remaining unused sick leave only upon retirement, at which time any
unused compensated absence time can be converted into employer-paid premiums for postemployment health
care coverage through the West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management (BRIM) or be converted into
a greater retirement benefit under the State of West Virginia Public Employees Retirement System (PERS).
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Notes to Financial Statements
(in thousands)

Unpaid claims and claims adjustinent expense

Utilizing an external actuary, management establishes the unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense liability
based on estimates of the ultimate cost of claims, including future claims adjustment expenses, that have been
reported but not settled and of claims that have been incurred but not reported (IBNR). Such estimates are based
on industry statistical loss reserve information as well as BRIM historical data, including case-basis estimates of
losses reported, actuarial projections of loss development of IBNR claims, and estimates of expenses for
investigation and adjustment of all incurred and unadjusted losses (and estimates of expected salvage and
subrogation receipts are deducted from the estimated liability). The length of time for which such costs must be
estimated varies depending on the coverage involved. In the event a reinsurer is unable financially to satisfy an
obligation, BRIM is responsible for such liability.

Management believes the estimate for unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense is a reasonable best estimate
of BRIM's ultimate losses and loss adjustment expenses to be incurred to discharge BRIM's obligations. However,
because actual claims costs depend on such complex factors as actual outcomes versus industry statistical
information utilized in the estimation process, inflation, changes in doctrines of legal liability, and damage awards,
the process used in computing estimates of claims liability does not necessarily result in an exact amount,
particularly for coverages such as general liability and medical malpractice. For instance, medical malpractice
claims have a long payout period and claims may not be known for several years. Accordingly, BRIM's actual
incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses may vary significantly from the estimated amounts reflected in
BRIM's financial statements. Claims liabilities are recomputed periodically using a variety of actuarial and statistical
techniques to produce current estimates that reflect recent settiements, claim frequency, and other economic and
social factors; such adjustments are included in current operations. A provision for inflation in the calculation of
estimated future claims costs is implicit in the calculation because reliance is placed both on actual historical data
that reflects past inflation and on other factors that are considered to be appropriate modifiers of past experience.
The claims and claims adjustment expense category on the statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net
position includes estimated incurred claim costs, allocated loss adjustment expenses, and unallocated claims

adjustment expenses.

Premium deficiency is defined as the amount by which expected claims costs (including IBNR claims) and all
expected claims adjustment expenses exceed related unearned premiums. BRIM has estimated that a premium
deficiency does not exist, however, the ultimate amount of incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses may vary
significantly from the estimated amounts used in management’s determination. In making this determination,
management has taken into consideration anticipated investment income, using an assumed 4% discount rate.

Deferred outflows of resources

A deferred outflow of resources is a consumption of net position by the government that is applicable to a future
reporting period. Balances of deferred outflows of resources may be presented in the Statements of Net Position
as aggregations of different types of deferred amounts. Deferred outflows in the Statements of Net Position were
composed of $387 and $127 for the years ending June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively, related to employer
contributions to the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) made during the current fiscal year subsequent
to the measurement date. Deferred outflows also consisted of other amounts related to differences between
projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments and differences between expected and actual

experience related to pension.

Deferred inflows of resources

A deferred inflow of resources is an acquisition of net position by the government that is applicable to a future
reporting period. Balances of deferred inflows of resources may be presented in the Statements of Plan Net Position
as aggregations of different types of deferred amounts. Deferred inflows in the Statements of Plan Net Position are
composed of amounts related to differences between projected and actual earnings on pension investments,
changes in proportion and differences between BRIM’s contributions and proportionate share of contributions,
differences in assumptions and differences between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments
related to pension.
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Receivables and premium income

Receivables represent the amount outstanding for premiums from the insured covered under BRIM's insurance
program. Management maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts to reserve for estimated losses based on the
length of time the amount has been past due.

Unearned premiums

Unearned premiums included premium revenues collected for future periods. These revenues will be recognized in
the operating periods in which they are earned.

Restricted net position

Restricted net position is net position that is to be used for the House Bill 601 Program and mine subsidence
coverage provided to the general public based on restrictions provided in the State Code. When an expense is
incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted net positions are available, BRIM first utilizes restricted net
position for such purpose.

Reclassification

Certain liability amounts for 2015 have been reclassified to conform to the 2016 presentation. Such reclassifications
had no impact on previously reported net position or changes in net position.

Subsequent events

In preparing these financial statements, BRIM has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition or
disclosure through December 19, 2016, the date the financial statements were available for issuance.

3. Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures
BRIM is mandated by statute to have its cash and investments managed by the WVIMB and BTI. However, BRIM
currently does not have specific policies addressing limitations on specific risk types, such as credit risk, custodial

credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk, or foreign currency risk.

Cash equivalents

West Virginia Money Market Pool

BRIM participates in BTI's West Virginia Money Market Pool, which has been deemed to meet the GASB 79 criteria
to be reported at amortized cost. The criteria specify that the pool must transact with their participants at a stable
net asset value per share and meet requirements for portfolio maturity, portfolio quality, portfolio diversification,
portfolio liquidity, and shadow pricing. The BTI does not place limitations on or restrictions on participant withdrawals
from the pool, such as redemption notice periods, maximum transaction amounts, and any authority to impose
liquidity fees or redemption gates. Accordingly, as a pool participant the BRIM measures its investment in this pool
at amortized cost that approximates market value of $25,002 and $16,147 at June 30, 2016 and June 30, 2015,
respectively. These deposits are reported as cash and cash equivalents. Investment income earned is pro-rated to
BRIM at rates specified by the BT| based on the balance of the deposits maintained in relation to the total deposits
of all state agencies participating in the pool. Such funds are available to BRIM with overnight notice. BTI's audited
financial statements, including the West Virginia Money Market Pool, are available on their website www.wvbti.com.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligation. The WV Money
Market Pool has been rated AAAm by Standard & Poor’s. A fund rated “AAAmM” has extremely strong capacity to
maintain principal stability and to limit exposure to principal losses due to credit, market, and/or liquidity risks.
“AAAmM” is the highest principal stability fund rating assigned by Standard & Poor’s.
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The BTI limits the exposure to credit risk in the West Virginia Money Market Pool by requiring all corporate bonds
to be rated AA- by Standard and Poor's (or its equivalent) or higher. Commercial paper must be rated at least A-1
by Standard and Poor's and P-1 by Moody's. The pool must have at least 15% of its assets in U.S. Treasury
obligations guaranteed as to repayment of interest and principal by the United States of America.

The following table provides information on the weighted-average credit ratings of the West Virginia Money Market
Pool's investments:

Credit Rating 2016 2015
Carrying Carrying
Security Type Moody’s  S&P Value Percent Value Percent
Commercial Paper P-1 A1+ $ 290,118 18.65% $ 186,737 9.88 %
P-1 A-1 632,773 40.68 660,027 34.91
Corporate Bonds and Notes Aa1l AA- 23,014 1.48 - -
Aa3 A+ - - 10,005 .53
Aa3 AA- 15,000 .96 10,000 53
Aa3 NR - - 10,000 53
A2 A 11,268 72 - -
U.S. Agency Bonds Aaa AATF 5,498 .61 81,984 4.34
U.S. Treasury Notes* Aaa AA+ 231,398 14.88 229,760 12.15
U.S. Treasury Bills* P-1 A-1+ 19,982 1.28 92,059 4.87
Negotiable CDs Aa2 AA- 3,000 .19 10,000 .53
Aa3 AA- 6,000 .39 - -
P-1 A-1+ 78,006 5.02 51,000 2.70
P-1 A-1 121,001 7.78 142,000 7.51
U.S. Agency Discount Notes P-1 A-1+ - - 304,342 16.10
Money Market Funds Aaa AAAM 72,370 4.65 90,017 4,76
Research Agreements
(underlying securities):
U.S. Treasury Notes* Aaa AA+ 42,100 2.7 1,323 .07
U.S. Agency Notes Aaa AA+ - - 11,200 .59

$ 1,555529 ____100.00% $ 1.890.464 ___100.00%

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the WV Money Market Pool’s investment
in a single corporate issuer. West Virginia statutes prohibit the West Virginia Money Market Pool from investing
more than 5% of its assets in securities issued by a single private corporation or association. At June 30, 2016 and
2015, the pool did not have investments in any one private corporation or association that represented more than

5% of assets.

Custodial Credit Risk

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction,
the WV Money Market Pool will not be able to recover the value of investment or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. Repurchase agreements are required to be collateralized by at least 102% of their
value, and the collateral is held in the name of the BTI. The BTI or its agent does not release cash or securities until
the counterparty delivers its side of the transaction.

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. All

pools and accounts are subject to interest rate risk.
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The overall weighted-average maturity (WAM) of the investments of the West Virginia Money Market Pool cannot
exceed 60 days. Maximum maturity of individual securities cannot exceed 397 days from date of purchase, except
for government floating rate notes, which can be up to 762 days. The following table provides the WAM for the
various asset types in the West Virginia Money Market Pool:

June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015
WAM WAM
Investment Type Fair Value Days Fair Value Days
Repurchase agreements $ 42,100 1 $ 12,523 1
U.S. Treasury notes 231,398 88 229,760 75
U.S. Treasury bills 19,982 91 92,059 123
Commercial paper 922,891 48 846,764 30
Certificates of deposit 208,007 40 203,005 51
U.S. agency discount notes - - 304,342 60
Corporate bonds and notes 49,282 14 30,000 75
U.S. agency bonds/notes 9,499 24 81,994 58
Money market funds 72,370 1 90,017 1
Total rated investments $ 1,555,529 49 1 464 47

BRIM's amount invested in the West Virginia Money Market Pool of $25,002 is included in cash and cash

equivalents at June 30, 2016, and $16,147 at June 30, 2015, representing approximately 1% of total investments
in this pool.

Foreign Currency Risk '

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment
or deposit. The WV Money Market's Pool does not hold securities subject to foreign currency risk.

Investments

West Virginia Investinent Management Board Investment Pools

BRIM invests, along with other agencies, in the following WVIMB investment pools: Domestic Large Cap Equity
Pool, Domestic Non-Large Cap Equity Pool, International Equity Pool, International Nonqualified Equity Pool, Short-
Term Fixed Income Pool, Total Return Fixed Income Pool, Core Fixed Income Pool, Hedge Fund, and the Treasury
Inflation Protection Securities (TIPS).

Investment Objectives
This fund's investment objective is to achieve a total rate of return of at least 4.9% per annum, net of fees.

Asset Allocation

Based upon the WVIMB's determination of the appropriate risk tolerance for the fund, the WVIMB has adopted the
following broad asset allocation guidelines for the assets managed for the Board of Risk and Insurance
Management Fund. (Policy targets have been established on a market value basis.)

Asset Class Policy Target
Domestic equity 15%
International equity 15
Fixed income G4
Combined total — 100%
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Asset Value
Investments at cost, and as reported at fair value (actual asset allocation), are summarized as follows at June 30:

2016 2015
—Cost _ _Fair Value Cost _Fair Value
Large cap domestic $ 15,198 $ 15,710 $ 15,632 $ 16,733
Non-large cap domestic 4,064 3,716 3,757 3,963
Opportunistic debt 1,543 1,555
International equity 16,308 15,055 15,646 14,540
International nonqualified 5,317 4,892 5,303 5,317
Total return fixed income 29,494 29,182 35,090 34,012
Core fixed income 12,976 13,308 14,725 14,631
Hedge fund 30,102 28,793 26,201 27,815
TIPS (Treasury Inflation Protection Securities) 12,675 13,368 13,788 13,686
Short-term fixed income 6,641 6,641 6,981 6,981
Total investments $ 134318 $ 132220 $ 137023 $ 137.678
Investment income is comprised of the following for the years ended June 30:
2016 2015
Investment income:
Interest income including realized gains/losses on sale of securities ~ $ 1,550 $ 1,658
Unrealized gain on investments 5,863 3175
Total investment income $ 7413 $§ 4833

WVIMB calculates total rates of return using the time-weighted rate of return methodology. The time-weighted
method determines the rate of return exclusive of the effects of participant contributions or withdrawals. Realized
gains and losses on investments that had been held in more than one fiscal year and sold in the current year were
included as unrealized gain on investment in the prior year.

Asset class risk disclosures
Large Cap Domestic Equity Pool

The Pool's objective is to exceed, net of external investment management fees, the S&P 500 Stock Index over
three-to-five-year periods. Assets are managed by INTECH Investment Management, LLC (INTECH) and State
Street Global Advisors (SSgA). BRIM's amount invested in the Large Cap Domestic Equity Pool of $15,710 and
$16,733 at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively, represents approximately 0.5% and 0.5%, respectively, of total
investments in this pool.
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Credit Risk

The Pool is exposed to credit risk from certain investments made with cash collateral for securities loaned. This risk
is limited by requiring minimum ratings on debt instruments. Long-term debt instruments must be rated A or better
by Moody's or Standard & Poor’s at the time of purchase. Short-term debt instruments must be rated P-1 by Moody's
or A-1 by Standard & Poor’s at the time of purchase.

June 30, 2016

Percent of
Total

Investment Type Moody’s S&P Fair Value Investment
Foreign corporate bonds A A $ 3,156 0.1 %
Foreign government bonds Aa A 10 0.0
Money market mutual funds Aaa AAA 132,987 3.6
Time deposits P-1 A-1 105,546 2.8
U.S. corporate bonds A A 12,246 0.3
U.S. Government agency bonds Aaa AA 3,335 0.1
U.S. Government agency MBS Aaa AA 109,742 2.9
U.S. Treasury bonds Aaa AA 32,119 0.9

Total rated investments 399,141 10.7
Common stock 3,322,262 89.3

Total investments $ 3721403 $  100.0%

This table includes investments received as collateral for repurchase agreements with a fair value of $332,025 as
compared to the amortized cost of the repurchase agreements of $314,482.

June 30, 2015

Percent of
Total
Investment Type Moody’s S&P Fair Value Investment
Corporate asset backed issues Aaa AAA $ 6,225 0.2%
Corporate CMO Aaa AAA 2,345 0.1
Foreign asset backed issues Aaa AAA 529 0.0
Foreign corporate bonds Aa A 1,748 0.0
Foreign government bonds Aa3 A 251 0.0
Preferred stock A A 42 0.0
Short-term issue P-1 A-1 158,805 4.1
U.S. corporate bonds A1 A 1,006 0.0
U.S. Government agency bonds Aaa AA 235 0.0
U.S. Government agency CMO interest-only Aaa AA 45 0.0
U.S. Government agency MBS Aaa AA 111,550 29
U.S. Treasury bonds Aaa AA 39,426 1.0
Total rated investments 322,207 8.3
Common stock 3,533,100 91.7
Total investments $ 3,855,307 $ 100.0%

This table includes investments received as collateral for repurchase agreements with a fair value of $302,436 as
compared to the amortized cost of the repurchase agreements of $286,428.
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Concentration of Credit Risk
The Pool is restricted from investing more than 5 percent of the value of the Pool in any one company. At
June 30, 2016 and 2015, the Pool was in compliance with this restriction and is not exposed to concentration of

credit risk.

Custodial Credit Risk

At June 30, 2016 and 2015, the Pool held no securities that were subject to custodial credit risk. Repurchase
agreements, when held, are collateralized to a minimum of 102 percent and the collateral is held in the name of the
WVIMB. All remaining securities are held by the WVIMB’s custodian in the name of the WVIMB.

Interest Rate Risk

The Pool is exposed to interest rate risk from certain investments made with cash collateral for securities loaned.
The weighted average maturity for investments made with cash collateral for securities loaned is not to exceed 90
days. The following table provides the WAM for applicable investments made with cash collateral for securities
loaned as of June 30, 2016 and 2015:

2016 2015
Fair WAM Fair WAM
Investment Type Value (Days) Value (Days)
Repurchase agreements $ 314,482 2 $ 286,428 1
Asset backed issues 197 22
Time deposits 105,545 1 137,472 1
Total $ 420,027 1 $ 424097 1

Foreign Currency Risk
The Pool is exposed to no or minimal foreign currency risk.

The tables below summarize the recurring fair value measurements of the investment securities in accordance with
the fair value hierarchy levels as of June 30:

June 30, 2016
Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Common Stock $ 3,150,846 $ - $ - $ 3,150,846
Futures contracts 3,026 - - 3,026
Investments made with cash collateral for
securities loaned 110,454 420,027 - 530,481
Money market mutual funds 22,533 - - 22,533
Total $ 3286850 §$ 420027 $ - $3706886
There were no transfers in or out of Levels 1 and 2 during the year ended June 30, 2016.
June 30, 2015
Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Common Stock $ 3,393,869 $ - § - $ 3,393,869
Investments made with cash collateral for
securities loaned B 424,097 - 424,097
Short-term issues 21,333 - - 21,333
Total $ 3,415,202 $ 424,097 $ - $ 3.839,299
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June 30, 2015
Liabilities Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total

Futures contracts $ (203) $ - $ - § (203)

There were no transfers in or out of Levels 1 and 2 during the year ended June 30, 2015.

Non-Large Cap Domestic Equity Pool

The Pool invests in the equities of small to mid-sized companies and its objective is to exceed, net of external
investment management fees, the Russell 2500 Index over three-to-five-year periods. Assets are managed by AJO
and Westfield Capital Management (Westfield). BRIM’s amount invested in the non-large cap domestic pool of
$3,716 and $3,963 at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively, represents approximately 0.5% and 0.5%, respectively,
of total investments in this pool.

Credit Risk

The Pool is exposed to credit risk from certain investments made with cash collateral for securities loaned. This risk
is limited by requiring minimum ratings on debt instruments. Long-term debt instruments must be rated A or better
by Moody's or Standard & Poor’s at the time of purchase. Short-term debt instruments must be rated P-1 by Moody's
or A-1 by Standard & Poor’s at the time of purchase.

The following table provides information on the weighted average credit ratings of the Pool's investments as of
June 30:

June 30, 2016

Percent of
Total
Investment Type Moody’s S&P Fair Value Investment
Foreign corporate bonds A A $ 2,198 0.2 %
Foreign government bonds Aa A 7 0.0
Money market mutual funds Aaa AAA 88,686 7.7
Time deposits P-1 A-1 73,468 6.4
U.S. corporate bonds A A 8,524 0.7
U.S. Government agency bonds Aaa AA 2,322 0.2
U.S. Government agency MBS Aaa AA 76,389 6.6
U.S. Treasury bonds Aaa AA 22,357 1.9
Total rated.investments 273,951 23.7
Common stock 880,130 76.3
Total investments $ 1,154,081 $ 100.0%

This table includes investments received as collateral for repurchase agreements with a fair value of $231,116 as
compared to the amortized cost of the repurchase agreements of $218,904.
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June 30, 2015

Percent of
Total

Investment Type __Moody’s S&P Fair Value Investment
Corporate asset backed issues Aaa AAA $ 4,720 0.4 %
Corporate CMO Aaa AAA 1,778 0.2
Foreign asset backed issues Aaa AAA 401 0.0
Foreign corporate bonds Aa A 1,325 0.1
Foreign government bonds Aa# A 190 0.0
Preferred stock A A 32 0.0
Short-term issue P-1 A-1 112,978 9.8
U.S. corporate bonds A1l A 762 0.1
U.S. Government agency bonds Aaa AA 178 0.0
U.S. Government agency CMO interest-only Aaa AA 34 0.0
U.S. Government agency MBS Aaa AA 84,577 7.4
U.S. Treasury bonds Aaa AA 29,892 2.6

Total rated investments 236,867 20.6
Common stock 911,488 79.4

Total investments $ 1,148,355 $ 100.0%

This table includes investments received as collateral for repurchase agreements with a fair value of $229,307 as
compared to the amortized cost of the repurchase agreements of $217,169.

Concentration of Credit Risk
The Pool is restricted from investing more than 5 percent of the value of the Pool in any one company. At June 30,
2016 and 2015, the Pool was in compliance with this restriction and is not exposed to concentration of credit risk.

Custodial Credit Risk

At June 30, 2016 and 2015, the Pool held no securities that were subject to custodial credit risk. Repurchase
agreements, when held, are collateralized to a minimum of 102 percent and the coliateral is held in the name of the
WVIMB. All remaining securities are held by the WVIMB's custodian in the name of the WVIMB.

Interest Rate Risk

The Pool is exposed to interest rate risk from certain investments made with cash collateral for securities loaned.
The weighted average maturity for investments made with cash collateral for securities loaned is not to exceed 90
days. The following table provides the WAM for applicable investments made with cash collateral for securities
loaned as of June 30, 2016.

2016 2015
Fair WAM Fair WAM
Investment Type Value (Days) Value (Days)
Repurchase agreements $ 218,904 2 $ 217,169 1
Asset backed issues 149 22
Time deposits 73,468 1 104,230 1
Total $ 292372 1 $ 321,548 1

Foreign Currency Risk
The Pool is exposed to no or minimal foreign currency risk.
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Fair Value Measurements

The tables below summarize the valuation of the investment securities in accordance with fair value hierarchy
levels as of June 30:

June 30, 2016

Assets Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
Common Stock $ 760,811 $ - $ - $ 760,811
Investments made with cash collateral for
securities loaned 76,886 292,372 - 369,258
Money market mutual fund 11,800 - - 11,800
Total $ 840407 § 202372 § - $1,141.869

There were no transfers in or out of Levels 1 and 2 during the year ended June 30, 2016.

June 30, 2015

Assets Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
Common Stock $ 805,922 $ - $ - $ 805,922
Investments made with cash collateral for
securities loaned - 321,548 - 321,548
Short-term issue 8,747 - ~ 8,747
Total $ 814.669 $ 321548 $ - $ 1,136,217

There were no transfers in or out of Levels 1 and 2 during the year ended June 30, 2015.

International Equity Pool

This Pool invests in the equities of international companies. Assets are managed by Acadian Asset Management,
LLC (Acadian), Axiom International Investors, LLC (Axiom), Brandes Investment Partners, L.P. (Brandes), LSV
Asset Management (LSV), and Oberweis Asset Management, Inc. (Oberweis). The objective of the Pool is to
exceed, net of external investment management fees, Morgan Stanley Capital International’'s All Country World
Free Ex US Index over three-to-five-year periods. BRIM's amount invested in the International Equity Pool of
$15,055 and $14,540 at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively, represents approximately 0.5% and 0.6%,
respectively, of total investments in this pool.

Credit Risk
The Pool is exposed to credit risk from certain investments made with cash collateral for securities loaned. This risk
is limited by requiring minimum ratings on debt instruments. Long-term debt instruments must be rated A or better

by Moody's or Standard & Poor’s at the time of purchase. Short-term debt instruments must be rated P-1 by Moody's
or A-1 by Standard & Poor's at the time of purchase.
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Investment Type

Foreign corporate bonds
Foreign government bonds
Money market mutual funds
Time deposits

U.S. corporate bonds

U.S. Government agency bonds
U.S. Government agency MBS
U.S. Treasury bonds

Total rated investments

Common stock
Preferred stock
Rights

Total investments

Investment Type

Corporate asset backed issues
Corporate CMO

Foreign asset backed issues
Foreign corporate bonds
Foreign government bonds
Short-term issue

Time deposits

U.S. corporate bonds

U.S. Government agency bonds
U.S. Government agency CMO interest only
U.S. Government agency MBS
U.S. Treasury bonds

Total rated investments

Common stock
Preferred stock
Rights

Total investments

June 30, 2016

Moody’s

Aa
Aaa
P-1

Aaa
Aaa
Aaa

Percent of
Total

S&P Fair Value Investment
A $ 1,127 0.0 %

A 4 0.0

AAA 69,992 2.4

A-1 37,717 1.2

A 4,376 0.1

AA 1,192 0.0

AA 39,216 1.3

AA 11,478 0.4

165,102 5.4

2,797,848 92.4

68,037 2.2

217 0.0

$ 3031204 $ _ 100.0%

This table includes investments received as collateral for repurchase agreements with a fair value of $118,650 as
compared to the amortized cost of the repurchase agreements of $112,380.

June 30, 2015
Percent of
Total

Moody’s S&P Fair Value Investment
Aaa AAA $ 3,101 0.1 %

Aaa AAA 1,168 0.0

Aaa AAA 264 0.0

Aa A 871 0.0

Aa A 125 0.0

Aaa AAA 32,015 11

P-1 A-1 68,488 723

A A 501 0.0

Aaa AA 117 0.0

Aaa AA 22 0.0

Aaa AA 55,574 1.9

Aaa AA 19,642 0.7

181,888 6.1

2,747,001 92.5

40,815 1.4

8 0.0

$ 2969712 $ ___ 100.0%

This table includes investments received as collateral for repurchase agreements with a fair value of $150,672 as
compared to the amortized cost of the repurchase agreements of $142,698.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Pool is restricted from investing more than 5 percent of the value of the Pool in any one company. At June 30,
2016 and 2015, the Pool was in compliance with this restriction and is not exposed to concentration of credit risk.
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Custodial Credit Risk
At June 30, 2016 and 2015, the Pool held no securities that were subject to custodial credit risk. Repurchase

agreements, when held, are collateralized to a minimum of 102 percent and the collateral is held in the name of the
WVIMB. All remaining securities are held by the WVIMB's custodian in the name of the WVIMB.

Interest Rate Risk

The Pool is exposed to interest rate risk from certain investments made with cash collateral for securities loaned.
The weighted average maturity for investments made with cash collateral for securities loaned is not to exceed 90
days. The following table provides the WAM for applicable investments made with cash collateral for securities
loaned as of June 30, 2016 and 2015.

2016 2015
Fair WAM Fair WAM
Investment Type Value (Days) Value (Days)
Repurchase agreements $ 112,380 2 $§ 142,698 1
Asset backed issues 97 22
Time deposits 37,716 1 68,488 1
Total investments $ 150,096 —) & 211283 = i

Foreign Currency Risk

The Pool has both equity securities and cash that are denominated in foreign currencies and are exposed to foreign
currency risks. The amounts at fair value (in U.S. dollars) of the securities and cash denominated in foreign
currencies as of June 30 were as follows:

2016 2015

Currency Investments Cash Total Investments Cash Total
Australian Dollar $ 70519 § 1,384 § 71,903 $ 71,411 § 21 % 71,432
Brazil Real 134,558 1,156 135,714 113,460 829 114,289
British Pound 251,332 2,256 253,588 272,285 1,049 273,334
Canadian Dollar 114,574 211 114,785 130,182 62 130,244
Chilean Peso 12,200 685 12,885

Czech Koruna 8,630 368 8,998 11,113 - 11,113
Danish Krone 21,390 1,390 22,780 24,755 1 24,756
Egyptian Pound 1,631 (20) 1,611 3,762 - 3,762
Emirati Dirham 5,631 5 5,636 3,773 - 3,773
Euro Currency Unit 423,512 504 424,016 410,970 (51) 410,919
Hong Kong Dollar 277,680 776 278,456 267,032 979 268,011
Hungarian Forint 8,991 135 9,126 9,379 106 9,485
Indian Rupee 64,154 697 64,851 49,212 1,019 50,231
Indonesian Rupiah 28,164 132 28,296 19,720 39 19,759
Israeli Shekel 16,429 49 16,478 19,243 3 19,246
Japanese Yen 381,024 2,588 383,612 401,766 2,410 404,176
Malaysian Ringgit 24,344 207 24,551 12,366 252 12,618
Mexican Peso 44,979 383 45,362 35,498 5 35,503
New Taiwan Dollar 63,355 1,166 64,521 70,408 2,623 73,031
New Zealand Dollar 7,782 3 7,785 1,056 57 1,113
Norwegian Krone 20,899 28 20,927 26,742 34 26,776
Pakistan Rupee 5,150 - 5,150 5,610 = 5,610
Philippine Peso 10,085 1 10,086 8,810 = 8,810
Polish Zloty 5,239 B 5,239 10,753 71 10,824
Qatari Riyal 407 16 423 300 9 309
Singapore Dollar 13,817 105 13,922 13,923 151 14,074
South African Rand 38,313 94 38,407 48,901 551 49,452
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(continued) 2016 2015
Currency Investments Cash Total Investments Cash Total
South Korean Won 188,612 1,479 190,091 174,570 1,238 175,808
Swedish Krona 52,296 1 52,297 48,637 1 48,638
Swiss Franc 95,697 - 95,697 97,333 14 97,347
Thailand Baht 47,149 1 47,150 25,382 29 25,411
Turkish Lira 55,220 507 56,727 45,967 - 45,967
Total $ 2493763 § 16307 $ 2510070 § 2434319 § 11502 § 2445821

This table excludes cash and securities held by the pool that are denominated in U.S. dollars. The market value of
the U.S. dollar denominated cash and investments is $531,171, or 17.5% and $527,419, or 17.7% for the years

ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Fair Value Measurements

The tables below summarize the valuation of the investment securities in accordance with fair value hierarchy levels

as of June 30:

June 30, 2016

Asseis Level 1 __Llevel2 Level 3 Total
Common Stock $ 2,736,592 $ - $ - $2736,592
Foreign currency contracts - 68 - 68
Investments made with cash collateral for

securities loaned 39,472 150,096 - 189,568
Preferred stock 68,037 - - 68,037
Rights 217 - - 217
Money market mutual fund 30,520 - - 30,520

Total $ 2874838 § 150164 § -  $3,025002
Liabilities
Foreign currency contracts $ - 8 (63) $ - 8 (63)
There were no transfers in or out of Levels 1 and 2 during the year ended June 30, 2016.
June 30, 2015

Assets Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
Common Stock $ 2677637 $ - % - $2677,637
Foreign currency contracts - 35 - 35
Investments made with cash collateral for

securities loaned - 211,283 - 211,283
Preferred stock 40,795 - - 40,795
Rights 8 - - 8
Money market mutual fund 32,015 - - 32,015

Total $ 2750455 § 211318 § - $2961,773

Liabilities
Foreign currency contracts $ - 8 (62) $ - § (62)

There were no transfers in or out of Levels 1 and 2 during the year ended June 30, 2015.
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Short-Term Fixed Income Pool

The main objective of this Pool is to maintain sufficient liquidity to fund withdrawals by the participant plans and to
invest cash contributions until such time as the money can be transferred to other asset classes without sustaining
capital losses. JP Morgan Investment Advisors, Inc. (JPM) manages the Pool. The Pool’s investment objective, net
of external investment fees, is to meet or exceed the Citigroup ninety-day T-bill Index plus fifteen basis points.
BRIM’s amount invested in the Short-Term Fixed Income Pool of $6,641 and $6,981 at June 30, 2016 and 2015,
respectively, represented approximately 2.5% and 2.6%, respectively, of total investments in this Pool.

Credit Risk

The WVIMB limits the exposure to credit risk in the Pool by requiring all corporate bonds to be rated AA or higher.
Commercial paper must be rated A-1 by Standard & Poor's and P-1 by Moody’s. Additionally, the Pool must have
at least 15% of its assets in United States Treasury issues.

The following tables provide information on the weighted average credit ratings of the Short-Term Fixed Income
Pool's investments as of June 30:

June 30, 2016

Percent of
Carrying Total

Investment Type __Moody's S&P Value Investment
Commercial paper P-1 A-1 $ 52,734 14.9
Money market mutual fund Aaa AAA 82,161 23.2
U.S. Government agency issues P-1 A-1 130,482 37.0
U.S. Treasury issues Aaa AA 88,046 24.9
Total rated investments $ 353423 __ 1000

This table includes U.S. Treasury notes received as collateral for repurchase agreements with a fair value of
$13,260 as compared to the amortized cost of the repurchase agreements of $13,000.

June 30, 2015

Percent of

Carrying Total
Investment Type Moody’s S&P Value Investment
Commercial paper Aaa AA $ 22,999 8.5
U.S. Government agency issues Aaa AA 136,763 50.5
U.S. Treasury issues Aaa AA 110,922 41.0
Total rated investments $ 270,684 100.0

This table includes U.S. Treasury notes received as collateral for repurchase agreements with a fair value of
$65,365 as compared to the amortized cost of the repurchase agreements of $64,341.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Pool is restricted from investing more than 5 percent of the value of the Pool in any one corporate name. At
June 30, 2016, the Pool was in compliance with this restriction and is not exposed to concentration of credit risk.

Custodial Credit Risk

At June 30, 2016, the Pool held no investments that were subject to custodial credit risk. Repurchase agreements
are collateralized at 102 percent and the collateral is held in the name of the WVIMB. All remaining investments are
held by the WVIMB's custodian in the name of the WVIMB.
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Interest Rate Risk

The weighted-average maturity of the investments of the Short-Term Fixed Income Pool is not to exceed 60 days.
The maturity of floating rate notes is assumed to be the next interest rate reset date. The following table provides
the WAM for the various asset types in the Short-Term Fixed Income Pool as of June 30, 2016 and 2015:

2016 2015

Fair WAM Fair WAM

Investment Type Value (Days) Value (Days)
Commercial paper $ 52,734 22 $ 22,999 19
Money market mutual fund 82,161 N/A - -
Repurchase agreement 13,000 1 64,341 1
U.S. government agency issues 130,482 55 136,763 52
U.S. Treasury issues 74,786 28 45,557 70
Total investments $ 353163 39 § 269,660 __40

Foreign Currency Risk
The Pool has no investments that are subject to foreign currency risk.

Fair Value Measurements
The tables below summarize the valuation of the investment securities in accordance with fair value hierarchy levels
as of June 30:

June 30, 2016

Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Commercial paper $ - $ 52,734 § - $ 52,734
Money market mutual fund 82,161 - - 82,161
Repurchase agreement - 13,000 - 13,000
U.S. Government agency bonds - 130,482 - 130,482
U.S. Treasury bonds - 74,786 - 74,786
Total $ 821461 $ 271002 §$ - $ 353,163

There were no transfers in or out of Levels 1 and 2 during the year ended June 30, 2016.

June 30, 2015

Assets __Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Commercial paper $ - $ 2299 § - $ 22,999
Repurchase agreement - 64,341 - 64,341
U.S. Government agency issues - 136,763 - 136,763
U.S. Treasury bonds - 45,557 - 45,557
Total $ $ 269660 $ - § 269,660

There were no transfers in or out of Levels 1 and 2 during the year ended June 30, 2015.

International Nonqualified Equity Pool

This Pool invests in The Silchester International Investors International Value Equity Trust (Silchester). The Pool's
objective is to produce investment returns that exceed the Morgan Stanley Capital International’s Europe
Australasia Far East Index by 200 basis points on an annualized basis over three-to-five-year periods, net of
external investment management fees. The Pool exists for participants who are not “qualified” (as defined by the
Internal Revenue Code). The Pool invests in a collective trust fund that invests in equities denominated in foreign
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currencies. The value of this pool at June 30, 2016 and 2015 was $141,311 and $153,554, respectively. This Pool,
although denominated in U.S. dollars, is exposed to foreign currency risk through the underlying investments. The
Pool is not exposed to credit risk, interest rate risk, custodial credit risk, or concentration of credit risk.

BRIM’s amount invested in the International Nonqualified Pool of $4,892 and $5,317 at June 30, 2016 and 2015,
respectively, represents approximately 3.5% and 3.5%, respectively, of total investments in this pool.

Fair Value Measurements

U.S. GAAP does not require the Pool to categorize within the fair value hierarchy table investments for which fair
value is measured using the net asset value per share practical expedient. The investment in Silchester is valued
using the net asset value per share practical expedient. As Silchester is the only investment in the Pool, a fair value
hierarchy table is not presented.

There were no transfers in or out of Levels 1 and 2 during the year ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Redemption Provisions
The Pool is restricted to the following redemption provisions: monthly on the first business day.

Total Return Fixed Income Pool

This Pool's objective is to earn superior returns with low volatility by actively investing in the extended fixed income
markets. Dodge & Cox (DAC), Franklin Templeton Investments (FTI), and Western Asset Management Company
(Western) manage the Pool. The Pool’s investment objective, net of external investment management fees, is to
meet or exceed the Barclay Capital Universal Index. BRIM’s amount invested in the Total Return Fixed Income Pool
of $29,250 and $34,012, at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively, represented approximately 1.4% and 1.2%,
respectively, of total investments in the Pool.

Credit Risk

The WVIMB limits the exposure to credit risk in the Total Return Fixed Income Pool by maintaining at least an
average rating of investment grade as defined by the Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations.

The following tables provide the weighted average credit ratings of the rated assets in the Pool as of June 30:
June 30, 2016

Percent of
Total

Investment Type Moody’s S&P Fair Value Investment
Bank loan B B $ 936 0.0 %
Corporate asset backed issues A A 36,980 1.7
Corporate CMO Ba BB 27,879 1.3
Corporate preferred securities Ba BB 10,472 0.5
Foreign asset backed issues A A 11,726 0.5
Foreign corporate bonds Baa BBB 293,586 13.6
Foreign government bonds Ba BB 217,700 10.1
Money market mutual funds Aaa AAA 66,469 3.1
Municipal bonds A A 40,081 1.9
Time deposits P-1 A-1 20,028 0.9
U.S. corporate bonds Baa BBB 542,373 25.2
U.S. Government agency bonds Aaa AA 3,332 0.2
U.S. Government agency CMO Aaa AA 64,627 3.0
U.S. Government agency CMO interest-only Aaa AA 6,519 0.3
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(continued) June 30, 2016

Percent of

Total
Investment Type Moody’s S&P Fair Value Investment
U.S. Government agency MBS Aaa AA 275,666 12.8
U.S. Government agency TBA Aaa AA 637 0.0
U.S. Treasury bonds Aaa AA 107,797 5.0
U.S. Treasury inflation-protected securities Aaa AA 26,550 1.2
Total rated investments $ 1753358 ____813 %

Unrated investments include investments in common stock valued at $32,528, investments in corporate ABS
residual valued at $5,385, investments in other funds valued at $360,669, and options contracts purchased valued
at $1,192. These unrated securities represent 18.7% of the fair value of the Pool’s investments.

This table includes investments received as collateral for repurchase agreements with a fair value of $63,005 as
compared to the amortized cost of the repurchase agreements of $59,675.

June 30, 2015

Percent of
Total
Investment Type Moody’s S&P Fair Value Investment
Corporate asset backed issues A AA $ 116,267 4.8 %
Corporate CMO B B 101,927 4.2
Corporate CMO interest-only C Not Rated 7,706 0.3
Corporate preferred securities Ba BB 10,430 0.4
Foreign asset backed issues A A 20,876 0.9
Foreign corporate bonds Baa BBB 286,053 11.9
Foreign government bonds Baa BB 212,335 8.8
Municipal bonds A A 51,734 2.2
Short-term issues Aaa AAA 102,153 4.3
Time deposits P-1 A-1 7,174 0.3
U.S. corporate bonds Baa BBB 578,292 24.2
U.S. Government agency bonds Aaa AA 2,579 0.1
U.S. Government agency CMO Aaa : AA 80,795 3.4
U.S. Government agency CMO interest-only Aaa AA 3,819 0.2
U.S. Government agency MBS Aaa AA 298,744 12.4
U.S. Government agency TBA Aaa AA 884 0.0
U.S. Treasury bonds Aaa AA 113,459 4.7
U.S. Treasury inflation-protected securities Aaa AA 20,616 0.9
Total rated investments $ 2,015,843 84.0 %

Unrated investments include investments in common stock valued at $7,266, investments in corporate CMO
residuals valued at $21,983, investments in other funds valued at $356,277, and options contracts purchased
valued at $1,114. These unrated securities represent 16% of the fair value of the Pool's investments.

This table includes investments received as collateral for repurchase agreements with a fair value of $15,783 as
compared to the amortized cost of the repurchase agreements of $14,948.
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Concentration of Credit Risk

The Pool is restricted from investing more than 5 percent of the value of the Pool in any one corporate name. At
June 30, 2016 and 2015, the Pool was in compliance with this restriction and is not exposed to concentration of
credit risk.

Custodial Credit Risk
At June 30, 2016 and 2015, the Pool held no securities that were subject to custodial credit risk. Repurchase
agreements, when held, are collateralized at 102 percent and the collateral is held in the name of the WVIMB.

Investments in commingled funds are held in an account in the name of the WVIMB. All remaining securities are
held by the WVIMB's custodian in the name of the WVIMB.

Interest Rate Risk

The WVIMB monitors interest rate risk of the Pool by evaluating the effective duration of the investments in the

Pool. The following table provides the weighted-average effective duration for the various asset types in the Pool
as of June 30, 2016 and 2015:

2016 2015
Effective Effective
Fair Duration Fair Duration

Investment Type Value (Years) Value (Years)
Bank loan $ 936 01 § - -
Corporate asset backed issues 36,980 1.8 115,952 2.2
Corporate ABS residual 5,385 N/A - -
Corporate CMO 27,879 1.9 101,802 1.8
Corporate CMO interest-only 7,706 18.8
Corporate preferred securities 10,472 0.1 10,428 0.3
Foreign asset backed issues 11,726 2.4 20,849 1.6
Foreign corporate bonds 292,987 6.6 285,960 6.0
Foreign government bond 217,698 6.0 212,324 6.3
Investments in other funds 360,669 29 356,277 3.2
Money market mutual funds 66,469 N/A - -
Short-term issue 102,153 0.0
Municipal bonds 40,081 10.4 51,734 8.4
Options contracts purchase 1,192 N/A - -
Repurchase agreement 59,675 0.0 14,948 -
Time deposits 20,028 0.0 7173 -
U.S. corporate bonds 540,049 8.3 578,249 6.6
U.S. Government agency bonds 2,699 3.3 2,566 4.3
U.S. Government agency CMO 64,627 0.9 80,795 21
U.S. Government agency CMO interest-only 6,519 34.0 3,816 2.2
U.S. Government agency MBS 254,842 1.7 292,921 26
U.S. Government agency TBA 637 0.0 884 21
U.S. Treasury bonds 101,702 3.0 111,398 4.2
U.S. Treasury inflation-protected securities 26,550 19.5 20,616 14.0

Total investments $ 2,149,802 51 $ 2,378,551 4.5

The Pool invests in commercial and residential mortgage-backed securities, asset-backed securities, and
collateralized mortgage obligations. The cash flows from these securities are based on the payment of the
underlying collateral. The modified duration and yield to maturity of these securities are dependent on estimated
prepayment assumptions that consider historical experience, market conditions, and other criteria. Actual
prepayments may vary with changes in interest rates. Rising interest rates often result in a slower rate of
prepayments while declining rates tend to lead to faster prepayments. As a result, the fair values of these securities
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are highly sensitive to interest rate changes. At June 30, 2016, the Pool held $407,958 of these securities. This

represents approximately 19.0% of the value of the Pool’s securities.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Pool has foreign government bonds and foreign corporate bonds that are denominated in foreign currencies
and are exposed to foreign currency risks. The Pool also has foreign denominated futures contracts, a currency
swap, and foreign exchange forward contracts. Refer to Notes 7, 8, and 9, respectively, for details on these
contracts. Additionally, the Pool has indirect exposure to foreign currency risk through its ownership interests in
certain of the commingled investment pools. Approximately $82,390, or 23 percent, of the commingled investment
pools hold substantially all of their investments in foreign currencies. This represents approximately 4 percent of

the value of the Pool’s securities.

The tables below show amounts at fair value (in U.S. dollars) of investments and cash denominated in foreign

currencies as of June 30:

June 30, 2016

Currency

Brazil Real

British Pound
Colombian Peso
Deutsche Mark
Euro Currency Unit
Ghana Cedi

Indian Rupee
Japanese Yen
Kenyan Shilling
Mexican Peso
Russian Ruble
South African Rand
Turkish Lira
Ugandan Shilling
Uruguayan Peso
Zambian Kwacha

Total

Percent of
Total
Investments
Investments Cash Total and Cash
$ 18,357 $ 739 $ 19,096 0.9 %
(16) 29 13 0.0
3,827 - 3,827 0.2
2,242 - 2,242 0.1
7,012 4,749 11,761 0.5
1,871 308 2,179 0.1
3,192 - 3,192 0.1
50,390 1,458 51,848 24
2,149 - 2,149 0.1
36,421 - 36,421 1.7
9,159 588 9,747 0.4
4,814 192 5,006 0.2
5,094 - 5,094 0.2
1,919 - 1,919 0.1
3,759 - 3,759 0.2
- 311 311 0.0
$ 150190 § 8374 $ 158564 __ 12%

This table excludes investments and cash held by the Pool that are denominated in U.S. doilars. The market value
of the U.S. dollar denominated investments and cash is $2,029,009. This represents approximately 93 percent of

the value of the Pool's investments and cash.

Currency

June 30, 2015

Brazil Real
Colombian Peso
Deutsche Mark
Euro Currency Unit
Ghana Cedi

Indian Rupee
Japanese Yen
Kenyan Shilling
Mexican Peso

Investments
$

16,991
2,706
2,086

29,225
1,267
3,385

53,751
1,937

35,266

Cash

Total

2,006

2,782

162

$ 16,991

2,706
2,086
31,231
1,267
3,385
56,533
1,937
35,428

Percent of
Total
Investments

and Cash
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(continued)

Currency

Nigerian Naira
Russian Ruble
Serbian Dinar
South African Rand
Swiss Franc
Turkish Lira
Ugandan Shilling
Uruguayan Peso
Zambian Kwacha

Total

June 30, 2015

Percent of
Total

Investments

Investments Cash Total and Cash
461 - 461 0.0
5,933 192 6,125 0.3
1,634 - 1,634 0.1
5,431 214 5,645 0.2
1,375 - 1,375 0.1
3,302 - 3,302 0.1
1,248 3 1,251 0.1
4,093 - 4,093 0.2
2,594 12 2,606 0.1

$ 172685 & 5,371 $ 178.056

This table excludes investments and cash held by the Pool that are denominated in U.S. dollars. The market value
of the U.S. dollar denominated investments and cash is $2,234,766. This represents approximately 93 percent of

the value of the Pool's investments and cash.

Fair Value Measurements

U.S. GAAP does not require the Pool to categorize within the fair value hierarchy table investments for which fair
value is measured using the net asset value per share practical expedient. The table that follows sets forth
information about the level within the fair value hierarchy at which the Pool's assets and liabilities are measured at
June 30. All the Pool's investments in other funds were valued using the net asset value per share practical
expedient, as such they have not been categorized in the fair value hierarchy.

Assets

Bank loan

Corporate asset backed issues

Corporate ABS residual

Corporate CMO

Corporate preferred security

Foreign asset backed issues

Foreign corporate bonds

Foreign currency forward contracts

Foreign government bonds

Future contracts

Investments made with cash collateral for
securities loaned

Money market mutual fund

Municipal bonds

Options contracts purchased

Swaps

U.S. corporate bonds

U.S. Government agency bond

U.S. Government agency CMO

U.S. Government agency CMO interest-only

U.S. Government agency MBS

U.S. Government agency TBA

June 30, 2016

Level 1 Level 2 __Level3 Total
- $ 936 § - $ 936
- 36,980 - 36,980
- 5,385 - 5,385
- 27,879 - 27,879
10,472 - - 10,472
- 11,726 - 11,726
- 292,987 - 292,987
- 1,054 - 1,054
- 217,698 - 217,698
5,597 - - 5,597
20,960 79,703 - 100,663
45,509 - - 45,509
m 40,081 - 40,081
849 343 - 1,192
- 837 - 837
C 540,049 - 540,049
- 2,699 - 2,699
- 64,627 - 64,627
- 6,519 - 6,519
- 254,842 - 254,842
- 637 - 637
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(continued)
Assets

U.S. Treasury bonds
U.S. Treasury inflation protected securities

Total
Investments in other funds

Total
Liabilities
Foreign currency forward contracts
Future contracts

Options contracts written
Swaps

Total

June 30, 2016

I here were no transfers in or out of Leveis 1 and 2 during the year ended June 30, 2016.

Assets

Corporate asset backed issues

Corporate ABS residual

Corporate CMO

Corporate CMO interest-only

Corporate preferred security

Foreign asset backed issues

Foreign corporate bonds

Foreign currency forward contracts

Foreign government bonds

Future contracts

Investments made with cash collateral for
securities loaned

Municipal bonds

Options contracts purchased

Short-term issue

Swaps

U.S. corporate bonds

U.S. Government agency bond

U.S. Government agency CMO

U.S. Government agency CMO interest-only

U.S. Government agency MBS

U.S. Government agency TBA

U.S. Treasury bonds

U.S. Treasury inflation protected securities

Total
Investments in other funds
Total

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

- 101,702 - 101,702

- 26,550 - 26,550

$ 83,387 $ 1,713,234 $ - $ 1,796,621
360,669

$ 2,157,290
$ - 8 (4,747) $ - $  (4,747)
(7,013) - - (7,013)
(142) (293) - (435)
- (18,200) - (18,200)

June 30, 2015
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

$ - $ 115941 § - % 115941
- 21,983 - 21,983

- 101,802 - 101,802

- 7,706 - 7,706

10,428 - - 10,428

- 20,849 - 20,849

- 285,960 - 285,960

- 2,675 - 2,675

- 212,324 - 212,324

3,193 - - 3,193

- 22,132 - 22,132

- 51,734 - 51,734

15114 - - 1,114
102,153 - - 102,153

- 531 - 531

- 578,249 - 578,249

- 2,566 - 2,566

- 80,795 - 80,795

= 3,816 - 3,816

- 292,921 - 292,921

- 884 - 884

- 111,398 ~ 111,398

- 20,616 - 20,616

$ 116,888 $ 1,934,882 $ - $ 2,051,770
356,277

$ 2,408,047
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June 30, 2015

Liabilities Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Foreign currency forward contracts $ - % (292) % - 8 (292)
Future contracts (660) - - (660)
Options contracts written (1,244) - - (1,244)
Total $ (1.904) $ (292) § - 3 (2,196)

There were no transfers in or out of Levels 1 and 2 during the year ended June 30, 2015.

Redemption Provisions
The Pool is restricted to the following redemption provisions: daily.

Opportunistic Debt Pool

This Pool was established to hold the WVIMB's investments in middle market direct loans. Assets are managed by
Angelo, Gordon & Co. and TCW Asset Management Company. The objective of the Pool is to generate a total net
return of 7 - 9% over a normal market cycle (typically a 5 - 7 year period), and/or 250 basis points above the return
of the credit Suisse Leveraged Loan Index. BRIM's amount invested in the Opportunistic Debt Pool of $1,555 and
$0 at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively, represented approximately 1.4% and 0.0%, respectively, of total
investments in the Pool.

Credit Risk

The Pool is exposed to credit risk from investments in unrated direct lending funds. This risk is limited by requiring
that underlying fund holdings are at least 90 percent collateralized by one or more assets of the issuer. The Pool
also holds shares of a money market fund with the highest credit rating.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Due to being in the infancy stage of the program, the fund is exposed to concentration of credit risk. Approximately
32 percent of committed capital has been called. As the program becomes fully funded, the concentration of credit
risk will be mitigated. Each asset manager is restricted from investing more than 10 percent of the capital
commitment in a single issuer for investments that are expected to be held longer than one year. At June 30, 2016,
the Pool was in compliance with this restriction.

Custodial Credit Risk
At June 30, 2016, the Pool held no securities that were subject to custodial credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk

The Pool is exposed to interest rate risk from investments in direct lending funds. The WVIMB manages interest
rate risk of the Pool by requiring at least 80 percent of the fund holdings that mature in more than one year to have
variable of floating interest rate structures.

Foreign Currency Risk
The investments in direct lending funds might be indirectly exposed to foreign currency risk.

Fair Value Measurements

U.S. GAAP does not require the Pool to categorize within the fair value hierarchy table investments for which fair
value is measured using the net asset value per share practical expedient. The table that follows sets forth
information about the level within the fair value hierarchy at which the Pool's assets and liabilities are measured at
June 30, 2016. All the Pool’s investments in direct lending funds were valued using the net asset value per share
practical expedient; as such, they have not been categorized in the fair value hierarchy.
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June 30, 2016
Assets Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
Money market mutual fund $ 100 § - $ - $ 100
Direct lending funds 114,158
Total $ 114,258

There were no transfers in or out of Levels 1 and 2 during the year ended June 30, 2016.

Redemption Provisions
The Pool is restricted to the following redemption provisions: upon termination of the partnership or limited liability

company.

Core Fixed Income Pool

The main objective of this Pool is to generate investment income, provide stability and diversification, but not at the
expense of the total return. JP Morgan Investment Advisors, Inc. (JPM) manages this Pool. This Pool's investment
objective, net of external management fees, is to meet or exceed the Barclays Capital U.S. Aggregate Index. BRIM's
amount invested in the Core Fixed income Pooi of $13,342, and $14,631 ai June 30, 2016 and 2015, respeclively,
and represented approximately 1.3% and 1.4%, respectively, of total investments in this Pool.

Credit Risk
The WVIMB limits the exposure to credit risk in the Pool by maintaining at least an average rating of investment
grade as defined by the nationally recognized statistical rating organizations.

The following table provides the weighted-average credit ratings of the rated assets in the Pool as of
June 30:

June 30, 2016

Percent of
Total
Investment Type Moody'’s S&P Fair Value Investment
Corporate asset backed issues Aa AA $ 71,452 6.7%
Corporate CMO A A 58,738 5.5
Corporate CMO interest-only Ba AAA 713 0.1
Corporate CMO principal-only B AA 200 0.0
Foreign asset backed issues Aa AA 1,793 0.2
Foreign corporate bonds A A 44,793 4.2
Foreign government bonds Aa A 7,252 0.7
Money market mutual funds Aa AAA 35,271 3.3
Municipal bonds Aa AA 9,782 0.9
Time deposits P-1 A-1 13,097 1.2
U.S. corporate bonds A A 222,175 21.1
U.S. Government agency bonds Aaa AA 23,219 2.2
U.S. Government agency CMO Aaa AA 129,989 12.3
U.S. Government agency CMO interest-only Aaa AA 5,229 0.5
U.S. Government agency CMO principal only Aaa AA 9,002 0.8
U.S. Government agency MBS Aaa AA 201,029 19.0
U.S. Treasury bonds Aaa AA 204,730 19.3
U.S. Treasury inflation protected security Aaa AA 431 0.0
Total rated investments $ 1,038,895 98.0%
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Unrated securities include investments made with common stock valued at $21,270, or 2.0% of the fair value of the
Pool’s investments.

This table includes investments received as collateral for repurchase agreements with a fair value of $41,198 as
compared to the amortized cost of the repurchase agreements of $39,023.

June 30, 2015

Percent of
Total

Investment Type Moody'’s S&P Fair Value Investment
Corporate asset backed issues A A $ 76,880 7.0
Corporate CMO A A 87,661 8.0
Corporate CMO interest-only Ba AAA 1,198 0.1
Corporate CMO principal-only B AA 278 0.0
Foreign asset backed issues Aa AA 2,813 0.3
Foreign corporate bonds A A 46,435 4.3
Foreign government bonds Aa A 7,814 0.7
Municipal bonds Aa AA 8,646 0.8
Preferred stock A A 2 0.0
Short-term issue Aaa AAA 41,293 3.8
Time deposits P-1 A-1 7,044 0.6
U.S. corporate bonds A A 222,329 20.4
U.S. Government agency bonds Aaa AA 21,742 2.0
U.S. Government agency CMO Aaa AA 144,364 13.2
U.S. Government agency CMO interest-only Aaa AA 6,921 0.6
U.S. Government agency CMO principal only Aaa AA 10,501 1.0
U.S. Government agency MBS Aaa AA 194,546 17.8
U.S. Treasury bonds Aaa AA 204,400 18.7
U.S. Treasury inflation protected security Aaa AA 415 0.0
Total rated investments 1,085,282 99.3

Common stock 7,134 0.7
Total $ 1092416 _____ 100.0

This table includes investments received as collateral for repurchase agreements with a fair value of $15,496 as
compared to the amortized cost of the repurchase agreements of $14,676.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Pool is restricted from investing more than 5 percent of the value of the Pool in any one corporate name. At
June 30, 2016, the Pool was in compliance with this restriction and is not exposed to concentration of credit risk.

Custodial Credit Risk

At June 30, 2016, the Pool held no securities that were subject to custodial credit risk. Repurchase agreements,
when held, are collateralized at 102 percent and the collateral is held in the name of the WVIMB. All remaining
securities are held by the WVIMB’s custodian in the name of the WVIMB.

Interest Rate Risk

The WVIMB monitors interest rate risk of the Pool by evaluating the effective duration of the investments in the
pool. The following table provides the weighted-average modified duration for the various asset types in Pool as of
June 30, 2016 and 2015.
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2016 2015
Effective Effective
Fair Duration Fair Duration

Investment Type Value (Years) Value (Years)
Corporate asset backed issues $ 71,452 21 $ 76,574 2.0
Corporate CMO 58,738 2:5 87,539 2.0
Corporate CMO interest-only 713 (17.4) 1,198 (8.5)
Corporate CMO principal-only 200 4.2 278 3.2
Foreign asset backed issues 1,793 0.1 2,786 0.1
Foreign corporate bonds 44,399 5.7 46,346 0.7
Foreign government bonds 7,251 9.0 7,800 8.7
Money market mutual funds 35,271 N/A - -
Municipal bonds 9,782 14.4 8,646 13.9
Repurchase agreements 39,023 0.0 14,676 0.0
Short-term issue - - 41,293 0.0
Time deposits 13,097 0.0 7,044 0.0
U.S. corporate bonds 220,665 6.3 222,273 6.1
U.S. Government agency bonds 22,805 3.8 21,730 4.7
U.S. Government agency CMO 129,989 3.0 144,364 3.7
U.S. Government agency CMO interest-only 5,229 5.9 6,919 7.6
U.S. Government agency CMO principal only 9,002 7:2 10,501 7.4
U.S. Government agency MBS 187,410 4.4 188,831 4.8
U.S. Treasury bonds 200,740 8.5 202,383 T2
U.S. Treasury inflation protected security 431 3.4 415 54

Total $ 1057900 ______ 49 § 1001506 ______ 4.8

The Pool invests in commercial and residential mortgage-backed securities, asset-backed securities, and
collateralized mortgage obligations. The cash flows from these securities are based on the payment of the
underlying collateral. The effective duration and yield to maturity of these securities are dependent on estimated
prepayment assumptions that consider historical experience, market conditions, and other criteria. Actual
prepayments may vary with changes in interest rates. Rising interest rates often result in a slower rate of
prepayments while declining rates tend to lead to faster prepayments. As a result, the fair values of these securities
are highly sensitive to interest rate changes. At June 30, 2016, the Pool held $464,526 of these securities. This
represents approximately 44.0% of the value of the Pool's securities.

Foreign Currency Risk
None of the securities held by the Pool are exposed to foreign currency risk.

Fair Value Measurements

The tables below summarize the valuation of the investment securities in accordance with fair value hierarchy levels
as of June 30:
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June 30, 2016

Assets Level 1 Level 2 __Level3 Total
Corporate asset backed issues $ - $ 71,452 $ - $ 71,452
Corporate CMO - 58,738 - 58,738
Corporate CMO interest - only - 713 - 713
Corporate CMO principal - only - 200 - 200
Foreign asset backed issues - 1,793 - 1,793
Foreign corporate bonds - 44,399 - 44,399
Foreign government bonds - 7,251 - 7,251
Investments made with cash collateral for

securities loaned 13,705 52,120 - 65,825
Money market mutual fund 21,566 - - 21,566
Municipal bonds - 9,782 - 9,782
U.S. corporate bonds - 220,665 - 220,665
U.S. Government agency bond - 22,805 - 22,805
U.S. Government agency CMO - 129,989 - 129,989
U.S. Government agency CMO interest-only - 5,229 - 5,229
U.S. Government agency CMO principal-only - 9,002 - 9,002
U.S. Government agency MBS - 187,410 - 187,410
U.S. Treasury bonds - 200,740 - 200,740
U.S. Treasury inflation protected securities - 431 - 431

Total $§ 35271 § 1022719 § - $1,057.990
There were no transfers in or out of Levels 1 and 2 during the year ended June 30, 2016.
June 30, 2015

Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Corporate asset backed issues $ - $ 76,563 $ - $ 76,563
Corporate CMO - 87,539 - 87,539
Corporate CMO interest - only - 1,198 - 1,198
Corporate CMO principal - only - 278 - 278
Foreign asset backed issues - 2,786 - 2,786
Foreign corporate bonds - 46,346 - 46,346
Foreign government bonds - 7,800 - 7,800
Investments made with cash collateral for

securities loaned 21,731 - 21,731
Municipal bonds - 8,646 - 8,646
Short-term issue 41,293 - 41,293
U.S. corporate bonds - 222,273 - 222,273
U.S. Government agency bond - 21,730 - 21,730
U.S. Government agency CMO - 144,364 - 144,364
U.S. Government agency CMO interest-only - 6,919 - 6,919
U.S. Government agency CMO principal-only - 10,501 - 10,501
U.S. Government agency MBS - 188,831 - 188,831
U.S. Treasury bonds - 202,383 - 202,383
U.S. Treasury inflation protected securities - 415 - 415

Total $ 41293 $ 1050303 $ - $1.09159

There were no transfers in or out of Levels 1 and 2 during the year ended June 30, 2015.
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Hedge Fund Pool

This Pool was established to hold the WVIMB'’s investments in hedge funds. Albourne America, LLC has been
retained by the WVIMB to provide consulting services for this investment strategy.

This Pool holds shares in hedge funds and shares of a money market fund with the highest credit rating. The
investments in hedge funds might be indirectly exposed to foreign currency risk, credit risk, interest rate risk, and/or
custodial credit risk. The Pool is restricted from investing more than 10 percent of the value of the Pool with any
single manager. At June 30, 2016, the Pool was in compliance with this restriction and is not exposed to
concentration of credit risk. BRIM's amount invested in the Hedge Fund Pool of $28,793 and $27,815 at June 30,
2016 and 2015, respectively, represented approximately 1.8% and 1.7%, respectively, of total investments in this
Pool.

Fair Value Measurements

U.S. GAAP does not require the Pool to categorize within the fair value hierarchy table investments for which fair
value is measured using the net asset value per share practical expedient. All of the Pool's investments in hedge
funds were valued using the net asset value per share practical expedient. As these are the only investments in the
Pool, a fair value hierarchy table is not presented.

Redemption Provisions
The Pool is restricted to the following redemption provisions: ranging from monthly with 3 days prior written notice
to every three years with 45 days prior written notice and subject to maximum withdrawal restrictions.

Treasury Inflation Protection Securities (TIPS)

The Pool invests in Treasury Inflation-Protected Securities (TIPS) and its objective is to match the performance of
the Barclay’s Capital U.S. TIPS Bond Index on an annualized basis over rolling three-year to five-year periods,
gross of fees. Assets are managed by State Street Global Advisors (SSgA).

BRIM's amount invested in the TIPS Pool of $13,368 and $13,686 at June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively,
represented approximately 3.4% and 3.2% respectively, of total investments in this pool.

Credit Risk

The WVIMB limits the exposure to credit risk in the pool by primarily investing in U.S. Treasury inflation-protected
securities (TIPS). The following tables provide the weighted-average credit ratings of the rated assets in the pool
as of June 30:

June 30, 2016

Percent of
Investment Type __Moody’s S&P Fair Value Assets
Money market mutual fund Aaa AAA $ 127 0.0
U.S. Treasury inflation-protected
securities Aaa AA 374,622 100.0
Total rated investments $ 374749 1000
June 30, 2015
Percent of
Investment Type __Moody’s S&P Fair Value Assets
Short-term issue Aaa AAA $ 228 0.1
U.S. Treasury inflation-protected
securities Aaa AA 427,774 99.9
Total rated investments $ 428,002 100.0
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Concentration Of Credit Risk
The Pool is restricted from investing more than 5 percent of the value of the Pool in any one corporate name. At
June 30, 2016, the Pool was in compliance with this restriction and is not exposed to concentration of credit risk.

Custodial Credit Risk
At June 30, 2016, the Pool held no securities that were subject to custodial credit risk. All securities are held by the
WVIMB's custodian in the name of the WVIMB.

Interest Rate Risk
The WVIMB monitors interest rate risk of the pool by evaluating the real modified duration of the investments in the
pool. The following table provides the weighted-average real modified duration for the various asset types in the
pool as of June 30:

June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015
Real Real
Modified Modified
Duration Duration
Investment Type Fair Value (Years) Fair Value (Years)
Money market mutual fund $ 127 N/A $ - 0.0
Short-term issue - - 228 0.0
U.S. Treasury inflation-protected securities 374,622 7.9 427,774 7.9
Total investments $ 374,749 = 7.9 $ 428,002 79

The pool invests in TIPS, and its objective is to match the performance of the Barclay’s Capital U.S. TIPS Bond
Index on an annualized basis over rolling three-year to five-year periods, gross of fees. Assets are managed by
State Street Global Advisors.

Foreign Currency Risk
None of the securities held by the Pool are exposed to foreign currency risk.

Fair Value Measurements

U.S. GAAP does not require the Pool to categorize within the fair value hierarchy table investments for which fair
value is measured using the net asset value per share practical expedient. The tables that follow sets forth
information about the level within the fair value hierarchy at which the Pool's assets and liabilities are measured at
June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. All the Pool's investments in other funds were valued using the net asset
value per share practical expedient; as such, they have not been categorized in the fair value hierarchy.

June 30, 2016

Assets Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Money market mutual fund $ 127 $ - $ - $ 127

U.S. Treasury inflation-protected securities - 374,622 - 374,622
Total $ 127 § 374622 §$ - § 374749

There were no transfers in or out of Levels 1 and 2 during the year ended June 30, 2016.
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Assets

Short-term issue

U.S. Treasury inflation-protected securities

Total

There were no transfers in or out of Levels 1 and 2 during the year ended June 30, 2015.

Advanced deposits

Insurance Company And Trustee

June 30, 2015
Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
$ 228 § - $ - 3 228
- 427,774 - 427,774
$ 228 § 427774 % - § 428,002

BRIM deposits monies with BNY, as trustee, to hold as advance deposits in an escrow account for BRIM liability
claims. The monies held in escrow are invested in specific money market funds and short-term guaranteed or
investment-grade fixed income securities that are identified as "qualified assets" in the escrow agreement.

The following table provides information on the weighted-average credit ratings of the cash liquidity pool's

investments:
June 30, 2016 June 30, 2015 _
Fair Percent Fair Percent
Security Type Moody's S&P Value of Assets Moody's S&P Value of Assets
Corporate bonds
and notes - . $ - 0.00% Aaa AAA $ 1,982 0.97 %
Aal AA+ 1,138 0.53 Aail AA+ 1,028 0.50
- - - 0.00 Aail AA 784 0.39
- - - 0.00 Aa1 AA- 2,088 1.02
- - - 0.00 Aa? AA - 0.00
Aa2 AA- 995 0.46 Aa2 AA- 2,106 1.03
Aa3 AA- 2,354 1.09 Aa3 AA- 2,096 1.03
Aa3 A+ 4,740 2.20 N -
Aaa AA+ 1,113 0.52 . -
Aaa AAA 1,111 0.51 - -
11,451 5.31 10,084 4.94
U.S. Treasury bonds
and notes Aaa NR 193,114 89.52 Aaa NR 167,196 81.87
U.S. Agency bonds - - - 0.00 Aaa AA+ 15,587 7.63
U.S. Agency-debenture NR NR 10,569 4.90 NR NR 10,878 5.33
Money market funds NR NR 574 0.27 Aaa AAA 474 0.23
Tolal rated
investments $ 215708 __100.00% $ 204219 10000 %

Concentration Of Credit Risk

As per the Investment Guidelines, at the time of purchase, no more than 4.9% of its advance deposit assets can be
held in securities issued by a single private corporation or association.

Custodial Credit Risk

At June 30, 2016 and 2015, advanced deposits include no securities that were subject to custodial credit risk.
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Interest Rate Risk

The following table provides the WAM for the various asset types in the advanced deposits:

Investment Type

Corporate bonds and notes
U.S. Treasury bonds

U.S. agency bonds

U.S. Agency debenture
Money market funds

Total rated investments

Foreign Currency Risk

June 30, 2016

June 30, 2015

Fair Value WAM Years Fair Value WAM Years
$ 11,451 4.0 $ 10,084 5.0
193,114 4.0 167,196 3.7
- 15,587 4.3
10,569 3.3 10,878 4.3
574 474 -
$ 215708 4.0 $ 204219 3.6

None of the advanced deposits include interest holds in foreign currency or interests valued in foreign currency.

Fair Value Measurements

The table below summarizes the valuation of the investment securities in accordance with fair value hierarchy levels

as of June 30:

Assets

Corporate bonds and notes
U.S. Treasury bonds

U.S. Agency debenture
Money market funds

Total

Assets

Corporate bonds and notes
U.S. Treasury bonds

U.S. agency bonds

U.S. Agency debenture
Money market funds

Total

There were no transfers in or out of Levels 1 and 2 during the years ended June 30, 2016 or 2015.

June 30, 2016

__Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ 11,451 $ = $ - $ 11,451
193,114 - - 193,114
10,569 - - 10,569
574 - - 574
$ 215708 § - $ - § 215708

June 30, 2015

__Level1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ 10,084 § - 9 - $ 10,084
167,196 - - 167,196
15,587 - - 15,587
10,878 - - 10,878
474 - - 474
$ 204219 § - 8 - § 204219

50



West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Notes to Financial Statements
(in thousands)

4. Unpaid Claims and Claims Adjustment Expense Liability

BRIM establishes an estimated liability for both reported and unreported insured events, which includes estimates
of both future payments of losses and related claims adjustment expenses. The following represents changes in
the estimated liability for the fiscal and policy years ended June 30:

2016 2015
Unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense liability at beginning
of year $ 160,960 $ 153,204
Incurred claims and claims adjustment expense:
Provision for insured events of the current year 66,740 62,342
(Decrease) increase in provision for insured events of prior years (2,987) 5,803
Total incurred claims and claims adjustment expense 63,753 68,145
Payments:
Claims and claims adjustment expense attributable to insured
events of the current year (12,863) (11,146)
Claims and claims adjustment expense attributable to insured
events of prior years (43,415) (49,243)
Total payments (56,278) (60,389)
Total unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense liability at
end of year $§ 168435 § 160,960

If the unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense liability were discounted using a 4% discount factor for 2016
and 2015 to take into consideration the time value of money, the result would be a decrease in the liability and an
increase in net position of approximately $14,876 and $14,209 for fiscal years 2016 and 2015, respectively. The
overall unpaid claim liability number includes a provision for allocated and unallocated claims adjustment expense.

5. Employee Benefit Plans

Plan description

All full-time BRIM employees are eligible to participate in the State’s Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS),
a multiple-employer defined benefit cost-sharing public employee retirement system administered by the West
Virginia Consolidated Public Retirement Board (CPRB). Chapter 5, Article 10 of the West Virginia Code assigns the
authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the PERS Board of Trustees. Benefits under PERS include
deferred retirement, early retirement, death and disability benefits and have been established and may be amended
by action of the State Legislature. The CPRB issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements for PERS that may be obtained at www.wvretirement.com.

Benefits provided

Employees are eligible for normal retirement at age 60 with five or more years of credited service, of at least age
55 with age and service equal to 80 or greater. For all employees hired on or after July 1, 2015, qualification for
normal retirement is age 62 with ten years of service or at lease age 55 with age and service equal to 80 or greater.
The straight-life annuity retirement benefit, established by State statute, is equivalent to two percent of the
employee’s final average salary multiplied by years of service. Final average salary is the average of the three
consecutive highest annual earnings out of the last fifteen years of earnings. For all employees hired on or after
July 1, 2015, average salary is the average of the five consecutive highest annual earnings out of the last fifteen
years of earnings. Terminated members with at least five years of contributory service who do not withdraw their
accumulated contributions may elect to receive their retirement annuity beginning at age 62. For all employees
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hired on or after July 1, 2015 who have separated from employment with a participating PERS agency prior to
retirement, the retirement age increases to age 64.

Contributions

While contribution rates are legislatively determined, actuarial valuations are performed to assist PERS and the
State Legislature in determining contribution rates. Current funding policy requires employer contributions of 13.5%,
14.0% and 14.5% for the years ended June 30, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. As permitted by legislation,
BRIM has elected to pay 100% of all costs relating to the Plan, including the employee’s 4.5% contribution for
employees hired on or before February 6, 2012. Beginning February 7, 2012, new hires are required to pay the
employee’s contribution of 4.5%. For all employees hired on or after July 1, 2015 the employee contribution
increased to 6.0%. The BRIM's contributions to the Plan were $149, $127, and $133 for the fiscal years ended June
30, 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Pension liabilities, pension expense, and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions

Effective July 1, 2014, the BRIM adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions — an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, and GASB Statement No. 71, Pension
Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date — an Amendment of GASB Statement No.
68. As summarized below, a cumulative effect adjustment of $495 has been recorded to decrease net position
previously reported at the beginning of fiscal year 2015. BRIM determined that it was not practical to restate the
prior year financial statements as the information was not provided by the West Virginia Consolidated Public
Retirement Board (WVCPRB), which administers this cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. These statements
reclassified some items previously reported as expenses as deferred outflows and now requires BRIM to record the
net pension liability and a more comprehensive measure of pension expense.

Net Position at the Beginning of the Year Required Statement:

Net Position beginning of year, as previously reported $ 208,911
Total cumulative effect adjustment (495)
Net Position at June 30, 2014, restated $ 208.416

During fiscal year 2016, BRIM, along with other State of West Virginia agencies participating in PERS adopted
GASB Statement 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and related Assets That Are Not within the
Scope of GASB 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions of GASB Statements 67 and 68, GASB Statement 78,
Pensions Provided through Certain Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plans, and GASB Statement 82,
Pension Issues and Amendment of GASB Statements 67, 68, and 73. The impact of adopting these statements
was not material to the BRIM'’s financial statements.

At June 30, 2016 and 2015, the BRIM reported a liability of $467 and $254 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability reported at June 30, 2016 was measured as of June 30, 2015 and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1,
2014, rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2015. BRIM's proportion of the net pension liability was
based on the BRIM’s share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all employers
participating in PERS for the year ended June 30, 2015. At June 30, 2015, BRIM'’s proportionate share was
0.0836%, which was an increase of 0.0596% for its proportionate share measured as of June 30, 2014.
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For the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, BRIM recognized pension expense of $137 and $28, respectively.
At June 30, 2016 and 2015, BRIM reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions from the following sources:

2016 2015

Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of

Resources _Resources Resources Resources
Net difference between projected and
actual earnings on pension plan

investments $ 142 $ 245 $ - $ 269
Differences between expected and

actual experience 96 - - -

Difference in assumptions - 56 - -

Changes in proportion and differences

between BRIM's contributions and

proportionate share of contributions - 3 - 1
BRIM's contributions made subsequent

to the measurement date of June 30,

2016 and 2015 149 - 127 -

Total $ 387 § 304 $ 127 § 270

Employer contributions to the PERS made during the fiscal year, subsequent to the pension liability measurement
date, are recorded as deferred outflows of resources, and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension
liability in the following year. The net difference between projected and actual investment earnings on pension plan
investments is amortized over a five year period. All other deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources relating to pension amounts reported in the financial statements are amortized and included in pension
expense over the average remaining service life, rounded to the nearest whole year, of four years. These other
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year ending June 30:

2017 $ (34)
2018 $ (34)
2019 $ (33)
2020 $ 35

Actuarial assumptions and methods

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

Inflation 1.9%
Salary increase 3.0 - 6.0%, average, including inflation
Investment rate of return 7.5%, net of pension plan investment expense

Mortality rates were based on 110% of the RP-2000 Non-Annuitant, Scale AA for healthy males, 101% of RP-2000
Non-Annuitant Scale for healthy females, 96% of RP-2000 Disabled Annuitant, Scale AA for disabled males, and
107% of RP-2000 Disabled Annuitant, Scale AA for disabled females.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2015 valuation were based on the results from an actual experience
study for the period July 1, 2009 through June 30, 2014.
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The total pension liability in the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

Inflation 2.2%
Salary increase 4.25 — 6.0%, average, including inflation
Investment rate of return 7.5%, net of pension plan investment expense

Mortality rates were based on the 1983 Group Annuity Mortality (GAM) for healthy males, 1971 GAM for healthy
females, 1971 GAM for disabled males, and Revenue Ruling 96-7 for disabled females.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience
study for the period July 1, 2004 through June 30, 2009.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method
in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce
the long-term expected rate of return by weighing the expected future real rates of return by the target asset
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real
rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term
Expected
Target Real Rate
Allocation of Return
Fixed Income 15.0% 2.9-4.8%
Domestic equity 27.5% 7.6%
International equity 27.5% 8.5%
Real estate 10.0% 6.8%
Private equity 10.0% 9.9%
Hedge funds 10.0% 5.0%

Total 100.0%

Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and
that contributions from employers will continue to be made at statutorily required rates, which are determined by
actuarial valuations. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability. Although discount rates are subject to change between
measurement dates, there were no changes in the discount rate in the current period.

54



West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Notes to Financial Statements
(in thousands)

Sensitivity of BRIM'S proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the discount
rate

The following presents BRIM's proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the discount rate of

7.5%, as well as what BRIM's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
discount rate that is one percentage point lower (6.5%) or one percentage point higher (8.5%) than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount 1% Increase
(6.5%) Rate (7.5%) (8.5%)
BRIM's proportionate share of net pension liability $ 1,076 $ 467 (48)

Other postemployment benefits (OPEB)

BRIM participates in a cost-sharing, multiemployer, defined benefit other postemployment benefit plan that covers
the retirees of State agencies, colleges and universities, county boards of education, and other government entities
as set forth in the West Virginia Code. Financial activities of the OPEB plan are accounted for in the BRIM. The
plan provides the following retiree group insurance coverage to participants: medical and prescription drug coverage
through a self-insured preferred provider benefit plan and through external managed care organizations, basic
group life, accidental death, and prescription drug coverage for retired employees of the State, and various related
State and non-State agencies, and their dependents. Details regarding this plan and a copy of the BRIM financial
report can be obtained by contacting Public Employees Insurance Agency, 601 57" Street, S.E., Suite 2,
Charleston, West Virginia 25304 or by calling (888) 680-7342.

Upon retirement, an employee may apply unused sick leave and/or annual leave to reduce his or her future
insurance premiums paid to the BRIM. Substantially all employees hired prior to July 1, 2001, may become eligible
for these benefits if they reach normal retirement age while working for BRIM. According to West Virginia State
Code, employees hired prior to June 30, 1988, can receive health care credit against 100% of their health care
coverage. Employees hired between June 30, 1988 and June 30, 2001, can receive health care credit against 50%
of their health care cost. Employees hired July 1, 2001, or later may not convert sick leave into a health care benefit.
The conversion of sick leave into OPEB health care benefits is now required to be accounted for as part of the
OPEB obligation.

Legislation requires the BRIM to determine, through an actuarial study, the Annual Required Contribution (ARC),
which shall be sufficient to maintain the BRIM in an actuarially sound manner. The ARC is allocated to respective
cost-sharing employers, including BRIM, who are required by law to fund at least the minimum annual premium
component of the ARC. Revenues collected by BRIM shall be used to fund current OPEB health care claims and
administrative expenses with residual funds held in trust for future OPEB costs. BRIM records expense for its
allocated ARC and a liability for the ARC that has not been paid. Approximately $471 and $407 of the ARC remained
unpaid as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively, and is recorded in accrued expenses and other liabilities on the
statements of net position. For fiscal years 2016, 2015 and 2014, BRIM's OPEB contribution was approximately
$44, $40 and $54, respectively, of the total required contribution of $44, $40 and $63, respectively. The actual
contribution represents 49%, 74% and 85% of the ARC for 2016, 2015 and 2014, respectively. BRIM's policy is to
fund at least the minimum annual premium component of the ARC. There are currently 22 employees eligible to
receive such benefits.

The GASB has issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other
Than Pensions, effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017. The requirements of this Statement will
improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than
pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB). It also improves information provided by state and local
governmental employers about financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities. Management has not
yet determined the effect that the adoption of GASB Statement No. 75 may have on its financial statements.
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6. Lease Arrangement

In December 2011, the State renewed the lease arrangement on behalf of BRIM for office space occupied by BRIM
with a monthly lease payment of $15 and a term beginning on January 1, 2012, and ending on December 31, 2016.
On October 1, 2016, BRIM entered into a lease with the West Virginia Department of Administration for 13,364
square feet at the Albert Summers building located at 1124 Smith Street, Charleston, WV for an annual rental of
$222. This lease expires on August 31, 2019.

Operating lease expense approximated $139 for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, relating to these
arrangements. Future minimum lease payments under these operating lease arrangements are as follows for years
ending June 30:

2017 $ 236
2018 $ 222
2019 $ 222
2020 $ 37

7.  Transactions With Primary Government and Component Units

Premium revenues derived from billings to State entities, which are funded by special revenue funds and component
units of the primary government, approximated $37,688 and $32,119 for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015,
respectively.

BRIM is required by Senate Bill 1002 to remit amounts equal to the gross premium tax attributable to premiums
collected by BRIM. These amounts are to be placed in a separate account known as "the Premium Tax Savings
Fund" (the Fund) maintained by the State Treasurer. Amounts deposited by BRIM into the Fund approximated
$2,196 and $2,198 for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The Fund is not included in BRIM's
financial statements, but is included in the general fund of the State.

8. Reinsurance (Amounts referenced in this note related to insurance coverages are
actual dollars)

BRIM has entered into two reinsurance agreements for excess coverage with unrelated insurance companies
wherein the company assumes the liability over BRIM's limit for a ceded premium. BRIM obtains an excess policy
from the commercial market, which gives boards of education a liability limit of up to $5 million in excess of BRIM's
$1 million self-insured limit BRIM also purchases an excess policy on all State and SB3 insured property over and
above BRIM's $1 million self-insured limit These reinsurance agreements have been accounted for as a transfer of
risk in the accompanying financial statements. However, BRIM is not relieved of its primary obligation to the insureds
in the reinsurance transaction. BRIM had $229 reinsurance recoveries for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, and
$1,200 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.
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9. Risk Management (Amounts referenced in this note related to insurance coverages
are actual dollars)

BRIM is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to and ilinesses of employees; medical liabilities; and natural disasters.

BRIM is a participant in the self-insured public entity risk pool it administers. Coverage is in the amount of $1 million
per occurrence for general liability and property damage. Health insurance coverage for BRIM's employees is
obtained through its participation in health insurance coverage offered by the West Virginia Public Employees
Insurance Agency (PEIA). PEIA provides the following basic employee benefit coverage to all participants: hospital,
surgical, group major medical, basic group life, accidental death, and prescription drug coverage for active and
retired employees of the State and various related State and non-State agencies. BRIM has coverage for job-related
injuries through a statewide workers' compensation policy with a third-party insurer.

There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year. Additionally, the amount of
settlements has not exceeded insurance coverage in the past three years.
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‘Wesl Virginia Board of Risk and I.nsnnnu Management
Ten-Year Claims 1 1ot

Fiscal and Policy Year Ended June 30

(in thousands)

The lable below illustrates how BRIM's eamed (net of and i income to related costs of loss (net of loss by ) and other by BRIM as
of the end of each of the last ten years. The rows of the table are defined as follows: (1) This fine shows the total of each fiscal year's premi and - (2) This ine shows each fiscal
year's other operating costs of BRIM includi head and unallocated claims exp not bie to individual claime. (3) This ine shows BRIM's incurred claims and claims adjustment expense (both paid
and accrued) as originally reported at the end of the first year in which the event that triggered coverage under the contract occurred (called policy year). (4) This section of rows shows the cumulative amounts
paid as of the end of successive years for each policy year. (5) This line shows the latest reestimated amount of losses assumed by reinsurers for each year. (6) This section of rows shtms how each policy year's

incurred claims increased or decreased as of the end of successive years. This annual reestimation results from new information received on known claims, ion of existing i jon on known claims,
as well as emergence of new claims not previously known. (7) This line compares the latest reestimated lncunod da]ms amount to the amount nllg;]nalmI established (line 3) and shows whether this latest estimale
of claims cost is greater or less than originally thought, As data for individual policy years mature, the ati original estis and is y used to the of

incurred claims currently recognized in less mature policy years, The columns of the table show data for successive policy years.

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

1) F and :

Eamed $ 98270 5 83400 § 60,738 § 83088 § 71320 0§ 84381 $ 54060 § 69172 $ 83037 $ 72,708

Ceded 8,151 6,384 5,844 8,257 6,075 5,386 5,825 6,102 6,197 6,808

Net eamed o2.119 77,105 63,765 76,831 85,245 58,075 40,144 63,070 56,840 65,797
2 . . s

fees pald to third-party claims administrators 8,536 8,045 7.840 8,043 7,867 7.562 7.240 7.888 7,853 7911
3) Estimated incumed claims and claims adjustment

expense, end of policy year:

Incurred 50678 58,246 56,194 51,388 53,728 80,176 57,276 58,380 62,342 66,740

Ceded 3,507 2,000 300 * - 2,312 * s -

Net incumed 56,081 57,246 55,804 51,388 53,728 57,664 57,270 58,389 62,342 66,740
4) Pald {cumulative) claims and claims adjustment

expense as of:

End of policy year 12,416 8,352 8,753 9,965 10,757 10,156 10,870 10,560 11,146 12,863

One year later 16,942 18,067 19,069 17.008 18,034 20,830 18,036 19,965 24,010

Two years later 24,345 26,240 25457 26,606 26,308 30,577 30,649 20,077

Three years later 30,733 33,488 32,126 32,612 34,305 43,021 40,132

Four years later 35,460 38,077 36,501 38174 30,497 48,351

Five years later 37,636 39,518 30,340 30,821 42 538

Six years later 40,076 41,403 42,577 40,798

Seven years later 41,334 43,674 44,018

Eight years later 42,030 44,369

Nine years later 42,043
5) Reeslimated ceded claims and expenses 3507 2,000 300 - - 2312 - - - -
6) Reestimated net incumed claims and allocated

claims adjusiment expense:

End of palicy year 56,081 57,246 55,884 51,388 53,728 57,864 57,276 58,380 62,342 66,740

One year later 53,024 57,108 48,432 46,571 52,844 58,812 56,883 57,772 65,545

Two years later 48,330 51,881 46,176 47,102 50,280 61,106 63,767 61,216

Three years later 44,898 46,708 45,328 46,118 48,480 62,460 61,150

Four years later 43179 45,450 44,112 44,171 47,880 57,109

Five years later 42,181 44,323 46,551 43,567 48,321

Six years later 42,862 44,349 45,424 42,762

Seven years later 43,340 45,088 45,840

Eight years later 42 568 45,667

Nine years later 42,355
7) (D )i in esti net incurred

claims and claims adj P

from end of policy year (13,728) (11,579) (0,954) (B.826) (7,407} (755) 3,674 2,827 3,203 -
Note: 'I11e abnva financial data is summarized for individual contract periods, ium and rdalod [ Il and reserve are ded in the year incurred for fiscal year

are i in the applicable contract year for purposes of the above schedule. A dingly P of the change in net position as determined on a contract-year basis will differ from

but
those included in BRIM's fiscal year financial statements.

See accompanying notes.
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Reconciliation of Unpaid Claims and Claims Adjustment Expense Liability by Type of Contract

Fiscal and Policy Year Ended June 30
(in thousands)

The table below presents the changes in unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense liability for BRIM's lines of business:

2016

2015

Liability

Mine

Property Subsidence Total

Liability

Property

Subsidence

Mine
Total

Unpaid claims and claims
adjustment expense
liability at beginning
of fiscal year

Incurred claims and claims
adjustment expense:

Provision for insured
events of the
current fiscal year

(Decrease) increase
in provision for
insured events of
prior fiscal years

$ 154,948

60,464

(1,624)

$ 5136 % 876 $ 160,960

5,619 657 66,740

(1,231) (132) (2,987)

$ 146,833

55,686

8,020

$

5,510

5,960

(2,083)

$

861 $ 153,204

696 62,342

(164) 5,803

Total incurred claims
and claims adjustment
expense 58,840

Payments:

Claims and claims
adjustment expense
attributable to insured
events of the current
fiscal year

Claims and claims
adjustment expense
attributable to insured
events of the prior
fiscal years

11,354

40,811

4,388 525 63,753

1,408 101 12,863

2,221 383 43,415

63,706

(9,404)

(46,187)

3,907

(1,664)

(2,617)

532 68,145

(78) (11,148)

(439) (49,243)

Total claims and claims
adjustment expense

payments 52,165

3,629 484 56,278

(55.591)

(4,281)

(517) (60,389)

Total unpaid claims and
claims adjustment
expense liability at

end of the fiscal year $ 161 !623

$§ 5895 $ 917 $ 168,435

See accompanying notes.

$ 154,948

$

5,136

$

876

$ 160,960
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability in PERS
Years Ended June 30 2016 and 2015

(in thousands except percentages)

2016 2015
BRIM's proportionate (percentage) of the net pension liability 0.0836% 0.0994%
BRIM's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 467 $ 367
BRIM's covered-employee payroll $ 878 $ 962
BRIM's proportionate share of the net pension's liability as 53.19% 38.15%
a percentage of its covered-employee payroll
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension 91.29% 93.98%

liability *

* This is the same percentage for all participant employers in the PERS plan.

Note: All amounts presented are as of the measurement date, which is one year prior to the fiscal year
end date.
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Schedule of Contributions to PERS

Years Ended June 30, 2016, 2015, and 2014

(in thousands except percentages)

2016 2015 2014 2013
Statutorily required contribution $ 149 $ 127 133 $ 129
Contributions in relation to the statutorily
required contribution (149) (127) (133) (129)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - 3 - - 8 s
Covered-employee payroll $ 1,100 $ 878 962 $ 1,014
Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll 13.55% 14.00% 14.50% 14.00%
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Required Supplementary Information — Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability in PERS and Schedule of Contributions to PERS

(in thousands)

Notes to Required Supplementary Information — Schedule of
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability in PERS and
Schedule of Contributions to PERS

1.

Trend Information Presented

The accompanying schedules of BRIM's proportionate share of the net pension liability and contributions to PERS
are required supplementary information to be presented for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled,
information is presented in the schedules for those years for which information is available.

2.

Plan Amendment

The PERS was amended to make changes that apply to new employees hired on or after July 1, 2015 as follows:

For employees hired prior to July 1, 2015, qualification for normal retirement is age 60 with five years of
service or at least age 55 with age and service equal to 80 or greater. For employees hired on or after July
1, 2015, qualification for normal retirement is 62 with 10 years of service or at least age 55 with age and
service equal to 80 or greater.

The straight life annuity retirement benefit is equivalent to 2% of average salary multiplied by years of
service. For employees hired prior to July 1, 2015, average salary is the average of the three consecutive
highest annual earnings out of the last fifteen years of earnings. For all employees hired on or after July 1,
2015 average salary is the average of the five consecutive highest annual earnings out of the last fifteen
years of earnings.

For employees hired prior to July 1, 2015, terminated members with at least five years of contributory
service who do not withdraw their accumulated contributions may elect to receive their retirement annuity
beginning at age 62. For all employees hired on or after July 1, 2015, this age increases to 64.

For all employees hired prior to July 1, 2015, employees are required to contribute 4.5% of annuai earnings.
All employees hired on or after July 1, 2015, are required to contribute 6% of annual earnings.
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Notes to Required Supplementary Information — Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability in PERS and Schedule of Contributions to PERS

(in thousands)

3. Changes in Assumptions

An experience study, which was based on the years 2009 through 2014, was completed prior to the 2015 actuarial

valuation. As a result, several assumptions were changed for the actuarial valuation for the year ending June 30,
2015 as follows:

2015 2014
Projected salary increases:
State 3.0-4.6% 4.25-6.0%
Non-state 3.35-6.0% 4.25-6.0%
Inflation rate 1.90% 1.90% 2.20%
Mortality rates Healthy males - 110% of RP- Healthy males - 1983 GAM
2000 Non-Annuitant, Scale AA Healthy females - 1971 GAM
Healthy females - 101% of RP Disabled males - 1971 GAM
2000 Non-Annuitant, Scale AA Disabled females - Revenue
Disabled males - 96% of RP-2000 ruling 96-7

Disabled annuitant, Scale AA
Disables females - 107% of RP-2000
Disabled annuitant, Scale AA
Withdrawal rates:

State 1.75-35.1% 1-26%
Non-state 2 -35.8% 2-31.2%
Disability rates 0-.675% 0-.8%
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(in thousands)




West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Combining Statement of Net Position

June 30, 2016

(in thousands)
House
Other Bill 601
Lines of Mine Medical
Business Subsidence Malpractice Total
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 15,748 $ s $ - $ 15,748
Advance deposits with carrier/trustee 210,152 - - 210,152
Receivables, net 1,254 - - 1,254
Prepaid insurance: - - - .
Restricted cash and cash equivalents - 7,387 2,811 10,198
Restricted receivables, net - 620 - 620
Total current assets 227,154 8,007 2,811 237,972
Noncurrent assets:
Investments 83,881 - - 83,881
Restricted investments - 48,441 - 48,441
Total non current assets 83,881 48,441 - 132,322
Total assets 311,035 56,448 2,811 370,294
Deferred outflows of resources 387 - - 387
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Estimated unpaid claims and
claims adjustment expense 50,274 545 - 50,819
Unearned revenue 7,119 1,181 - 8,300
Agent commissions payable 1,100 - - 1,100
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,006 19 - 1,025
Interprogram (receivables) payables (15) 15 - -
Total current liabilities 59,484 1,760 - 61,244
Noncurrent liabilities:
Estimated claims and claims adjustment
expense, noncurrent 117,244 372 - 117,616
Compensated absences 87 & - 91
Net pension liability 467 - - 467
Total noncurrent liabilities 117,798 376 - 118,174
Total liabilities 177,282 2,136 - 179,418
Deferred inflows of resources 304 - - 304
Net position:
Restricted - 54,312 2,811 57,123
Unrestricted 133,836 - - 133,836
Net position $ 133,836 $ 54,312 $ 2,811 $ 190,959
See accompanying notes. 64



West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Year Ended June 30, 2016

(in thousands)

House
Other Bill 601
Lines of Mine Medical
Business Subsidence Malpractice Total
Operating revenues:
Premiums $ 62,834 $ 2,399 $ 60 $ 65,293
Less excess coverage/reinsurance
premiums (6,909) - - (6,909)
Total operating revenues 55,925 2,399 60 58,384
Operating expenses:
Claims and claims adjustment expense 63,227 526 - 63,753
General and administrative expense 3,824 80 1 3,905
Total operating expenses 67,051 606 1 67,658
Operating (loss) income (11,126) 1,793 59 (9,274)
Nonoperating revenues:
Investment income 7,570 (165) 8 7,413
Payment to transfer HB601 estimated
future IBNR - - - -
Net nonoperating revenues 7,570 (165) 8 7,413
Changes in net position $ (3,556) $ 1,628 $ 67 $ (1.861)

See accompanying notes. 65




West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Form 7 - Deposits Disclosure

Year Ended June 30, 2016

(in thousands)

Cash with Treasurer
(1) Agrees to audited statement of cash flows as follows:

Cash with Treasurer
Cash equivalents with BTI

(2) Agrees to Form 8-A
(3) Agrees to audited statement of net position as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents

See accompanying notes.

15,748
10,198

Fair
Value
$ 944
$ 944
25,002
$ 25,946

25,946

(1)
(2)
(2)
()
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management

Form 8 - Investments Disclosure
Year Ended June 30, 2016

(in thousands)
Amount Amount Amount Fair
Investment Pool Unrestricted Restricted Reported Value
BTl and WVIMB Investment Pools:
Cash liquidity $ 15,067 (1) $ 9,935 (1) $ 25,002 (3) % 25,002
Long-term 83,881 (1) 48,441 (1) 132,322 (3) 132,322
Total investments $ 08948 (1) _% 58,376 (1) _$ 157,324 $ 157,324
(1) Agrees to audited statement of
net position as follows:
Investments with BTl and WVIMB $ 98,948 (1) $ 58,376
Less investments classified as
cash equivalents 15,067 9,935
Total investments $ 83,881 (2)_8% 48,441 (2)

(2) Agrees (o audiled slatement of net position

(3) Agrees to Form 8-A

See accompanying notes.
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Form 8-A - Deposits and Investiments Disclosure

Year Ended June 30, 2016
(in thousands)

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents and investments as reported in the financial statements to the amounts

disclosed in the footnotes:

Deposits:
Cash and cash equivalents as reported:
Noncurrent — restricted
Unrestricted
Total cash and cash equivalents
Less investments disclosed as cash equivalents

Fair value of deposits as disclosed on Form 7

Investments:
Investments as reported:
Noncurrent — restricted
Noncurrent — unrestricted
Total investments
Add investments disclosed as cash equivalents

Fair value of investments as disclosed on Form 8

(1) Agrees to audited statement of net position
(2) Agrees to Form 7

(3) Agrees to Form 8

See accompanying notes.

$ 10,198 (1)
15,748 (1)

25,046
25,002 (2)(3)

$ 944 (2)

$ 48,441 (1)
83,881 (1)
132,322

$ 132,322 (3)
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Form 9 - Schedule of Receivables (Other Than State Agencies)
Year Ended June 30, 2016

(in thousands)

Amount
Accounts receivable (other than State agencies):
Total accounts receivable as of June 30, 2016 $ 1,874 (1)
Less allowance for doubtful accounts - (2)
Net receivable $ 1,874
(1) Derived from the audited statement of net position as follows:
Receivables $ 1,254 (2)
Restricted receivables 620 (2)
$ 1,874

(2) Agrees to the audited statement of net position

See accompanying notes. 69




West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Form 10 - Schedule of Accounts Receivable From Other State Agencies
June 30, 2016

(in thousands)
Receivable From Amount
Accounts receivable from other State a.gencies $ (41) (1)
(1) Premiums due from other State agencies $ (41)
Premiums due from other entities 1,295
Total receivables $ 1,254 (2)

(2) Agrees to audited statement of net position

See accompanying notes. 70



West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Form 13 - Schedule of Changes in Long-Term Obligations - Compensated Absences
Year Ended June 30, 2016

(in thousands)
Balance as
Final Reported Balance
Maturity June 30 Other June 30
Type of Debt Date 2015 Payments Changes 2016
Compensated absences —
annual leave Varies $ 76 $ - $ 15 $

(1) Agrees to audited statement of net position

See accompanying notes.

(M
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DHG

DIXON HUGHES GOODMAN

Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of the Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance With Government Auditing Standards

Board of Directors and Management
West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Charleston, West Virginia

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the West Virginia Board of Risk and
Insurance Management (BRIM), which comprise the statement of net position as of June 30, 2016, and the
related statements of revenues, expenses and changes in position, and cash flows for the year then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
December 19, 2016.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered BRIM's internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of BRIM's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of BRIM's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.
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DIXON HUGHES GOODMAN w5

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether BRIM's financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the entity's internal control or on compliance.
This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for

any other purpose.

Dlisen h‘{fjh@ Goedman [LP

Charleston, West Virginia
December 19, 2016
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Minutes of BRIM Board Meeting
September 13, 2016 2

GUESTS: (cont’d) Sandy Price, WVU Health Sciences Center
Mike Gansor, WVU Risk Management
Brian Gallagher, Marshall Health Sciences

CALL TO ORDER
The meeting of the West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management was
called to order by Chairman Martin at 1:08 p.m. on Tuesday, September 13, 2016, at 90

MacCorkle Avenue, SW, Suite 203, South Charleston, West Virginia.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Mr. Wilson moved the approval of the minutes of the June 21, 2016 Board
Meeting. The motion was seconded by Vice Chairman Mitts. There being no

discussion, a vote was taken and the MOTION ADOPTED.

REPORTS

Standish Mellon Asset Management — Account/Investment Update

Chairman Martin thereafter recognized Mr. Nate Pearson, Interest Rate
Strategist and Portfolio Manager with Standish Mellon.

(Prior to the meeting, the Standish report entitled “The State of West Virginia
BRIM, September 13, 2016” was distributed to the Board members for their information
and review.)

Mr. Pearson noted that Standish had recently hired a new Chief Economist,
Vincent Reinhart. Previously, he was Chief US Economist and managing director at
Morgan Stanley. For the prior four years, he was a resident scholar at the AEl. Mr.

Reinhart worked at the Federal Reserve for twenty-four years, most recently as Director




Minutes of BRIM Board Meeting

September 13, 2016 3
of the Division of Monetary and Secretary and Economist of the Federal Open Market
Committee.

Mr. Pearson began his report by stating that, in terms of the rate environment
since his previous report, rates and yields have continued to go lower and bonds have
rallied. We have hit an all-time low. Further, the economic data we estimate to be
okay, but there is a more global phenomenon of central banks cutting rates in the
negative territory.

Continuing, Mr. Pearson stated that with the Federal Reserve expected to raise
their rates in December, most feel that the dollar will continue to appreciate versus other
currencies, so that makes treasuries very attractive. Therefore, despite the outright
historical low yields, treasuries look attractive on a global basis.

In addition, the situation in the UK--with BREXIT--has caused lower yields and is
expected to go lower.

The global growth picture is not so great. The shift in economic cycles as well as
the demographic shift are adding to the slow economic growth.

In the U.S., over the past six to nine months, growth has been fairly bleak—at
best below one percent. Over the past quarter, growth has been about two percent.
Several things are driving this—a lot of this is a demographic shift; the working
population is getting older and retiring, so therefore, we have less workers in the
workplace, and we've also seen lower productivity,

In terms of performance of the portfolios, Mr. Pearson stated that he remembers

at last year's presentation when BRIM was concerned about what the absolute return



Minutes of BRIM Board Meeting
September 13, 2016 4
on the portfolio would be. We actually received lower yields, so we received higher
dollar prices on the bonds. The portfolio year-to-date is up 3.5 %, with an index of
3.55%. At any rate, it's a positive yield—not particularly high returns, but positive.

Our economic outlook is not particularly great. He thinks the economy will
continue to muddle along with growth at less than two percent or two percent at best.

Continuing, he also stated that the inflation forecast is fairly benign. Core
inflation, which is a better metric of underlying inflation, has been increasing throughout
this period, which is actually a strong sign. The dollar has been appreciating, which is
also inflationary. We have started to see wages pick up slightly, but we continue to see
the performance rate decrease, and this could push up inflation--core right now is at
2.3%, headline is sub 1%.

After a brief conversation, Chairman Martin ascertained from Mr. Pearson that

the Fed will hike rates once in 2016 and twice in 2017,

West Virginia Investment Management Board — Account Update/Investment Update

There being no further questions of Mr. Pearson, Chairman Martin recognized
Mr. Tom Sauvageot of the West Virginia Investment Management Board.

(Prior to the meeting, the report entitled "BRIM — Investments, WV Investment
Management Board, 6/30/2016" was distributed to the Board members for their
information and review.)

Mr. Sauvageot began by stating that his investment group (at WVIMB) meets

with large global institutional managers and what he is hearing from managers




Minutes of BRIM Board Meeting

September 13, 2016 5
internationally is that this is a slow-growth environment and we are really being
impacted by what is happening overseas—the situation in China and the oil prices
impacts us, but it also impacts more of the emerging market economies. It's a global
economy these days that is having a significant impact.

Focusing on what the WVIMB is doing in BRIM’s portfolio, Mr. Sauvageot stated
that he wanted to remind us that this portfolio differs from the bond portfolio. Right now,
the portfolio is still--in the realm of the investment world--relatively conservative because
we have basically 50% in cash and bonds and the other 50%--30% is in equities--and
that is a diversified global portfolio, both international and domestic--and 20% in hedge
funds.

Turning to performance, he explained that on the year, we had less than a 1%
negative return. He explained that they measure against two policy benchmarks, the
broadest of which is called the policy benchmark—and that's if we have a very generic
bond index and a stock index—no hedge funds. In one year, the policy benchmark was
significantly off, the reason for that is that hedge funds had one of the poorest years.
They were down about 3% or 4%, a pretty disappointing year end; however, July and
August have gotten off to a very good start so far. Over the 10 year period, this portfolio
has had a 5.2% return—even though hedge funds hurt us. Also, about 3 years ago,
equity got bumped up to 5%, and that is not shown in the policy index. Equity has had a
full year, so that explains some of the deviation. Continuing, he stated that if we look
over the 3, 5 and 10 years, it looks a lot better. About 3 years ago, our expected

return—when we established the most recent allocation, was about 5%, and to look
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over 10 years, the portfolio has received a 5.2% return per year for the last ten years.
Therefore, it is meeting our expectations.

In addition to the policy index, Cash has been added. When this account was set
up about 10 or 11 years ago, all of the money had been sitting in Cash. The mandate
was to get a higher return. Then you ask if BRIM has been taking risks, and if so, are
we getting paid for that risk? As shown, BRIM has taken risks but received a significant
return over the last 10 to 11 years for that.

Mr. Sauvageot also added that the portfolio was up 2.1% just in the month of
July. August numbers are still coming in but he expects those to be positive as well, so
we started the new fiscal year very, very strong.

In discussing the Performance by Fiscal Year, he noted that we've had 10 years
of history and experienced a little bit of risk and volatility. As of right now,--and the
models aren’t exact—but on the average, the WVIMB expects the portfolio to get about
a 5% return and the volatility to be + or -7%.

In his discussion regarding Asset Class Performance, Mr. Sauvageot stated that
these are the actual returns of the different asset pools which they are managing. In
equities, the domestic equities were positive—nowhere near their expected long-term
return. They are only about 2% to 3%. A lot of the damage came internationally, and
that is also reversed a little bit—at least the first couple of months of this fiscal year.

Referencing the TIPS portfolio, Mr. Sauvageot further stated that BRIM is not
paying very much of an insurance premium to get some protection against inflation. He
gave an example of a situation which showed TIPS will pay an inflation rate on top of

the coupon if BRIM should buy a five-year U.S. Treasury TIP for 4.95% a year versus
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buying a treasury bond at the same maturity and paying 1%. However, when inflation
expectations go down and the TIPS haven't performed very well, it is better to be with
just the fixed income. However, he does think that there is some value in having that
protection in there.

Mr. Sauvageot explained that the next few slides showed the individual asset
classes and how we're doing against our individual asset class benchmark. In equities,
even though we had a negative year, we are consistently adding value to our active
management. So in the 1, 3, 5 and 10-year period—in every one of those, our actual
equity performance has exceeded the benchmark for those investments.

In fixed income, it's just the opposite. We've looked at this, and we feel pretty
good with what we're doing. Over the last 3 or 4 years we have been pretty short
duration—meaning the interest rates are so low, we don’'t want to tie up or hold up long-
term bond. And, right now, U.S. Treasuries are yielding 1.5% for 10 years; so you could
lock up into a 10-year bond and what you're going to get is 1.5% a year. I'm thinking
that you're just not getting paid for the risk of that. We don’t see anything that is
supposed to start pushing rates up real quickly; we don't feel that the economy is strong
enough. On the other hand, there's not much more room for interest rates to go down,
and there’s a whole lot of room for them to go up. And if stuck with longer-duration
bonds, the value of them is really going to take some very tough hits in the interim.
However, our portfolio is structured with a relatively short type of duration. It out-yields
the benchmark, and what that means is that if interest rates do nothing, we're going to
earn probably about 1% more than the traditional bond interest but a little bit more in the
corporate world. If interest rates go up, we're going to look a lot better than the

benchmark. The only time we're going to look bad is if interest rates keep falling.
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Mr. Sauvageot stated that he has looked back at the last 2 or 3 presentations
here and notes that the hedge funds have been very additive—going back to June
2015, 14 and '13. Most of this was wiped out in one year (June 2016), so hopefully it
will reverse back quickly; but even with this very, very poor year, if we look over five
years, it's about to break even—as if we had left that money in fixed income. He thinks
in the long term that with the additional hedge fund diversification, we are expected to
get higher returns in fixed income over time with some modest additional volatility.

Dr. Magee thereafter inquired what percentage of returns is directly in the
international fund, to which Mr. Sauvageot responded 50% right now.

(There being no further questions, Chairman Martin thanked Mr. Sauvageot and

thereafter called upon Mary Jane Pickens to present her Executive Director's Report.)

Executive Director's Report

The report of the Executive Director was received and filed, a copy of which is
attached and made a part of the record.

Mrs. Pickens began by providing a status report regarding the Marshall and WVU
escrow accounts, followed by the report of AlG’s litigation statistics as of August 2016.

She thereafter gave an update on the Patient Injury Compensation Fund (PICF),
explaining the following:

a) that as of mid-July, the balance was $3,764,661.91, which included the

money transferred from the HB 601 account;
b) that all expenses properly chargeable to FY 2016 have now been paid,
c) that five claims became final during FY 2016, one of which was paid

immediately, since we were court order to make payment; one was small and
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c) (cont'd) paid in a lump sum, and the three remaining claims are being

handled by BRIM and AIG for resolution; and

that 16 PICF claims are pending. BRIM will not have the money to pay all
remaining claims in full at the end of the fiscal year, but we will use the
monies we have after the end of each fiscal year to determine the best
method for payments to eligible claimants whose claims become final during
the previous fiscal year. We will continue to do this until the claims are paid
or until we run out of money.

The collection of additional filing fees and collection of a percentage of
medical malpractice settlements have been addressed in letters to each
Circuit Clerk and discussed with the Administrator of the Supreme Court of
Appeals. BRIM is working with the Insurance Commissioner’s Office to
gather information on medical malpractice claims. A Memorandum of
Understanding to get this information is currently being prepared. We will get
a report from the Insurance Commissioner’s Office on a quarterly basis to use
in assuring that BRIM is collecting the amounts due from medical malpractice
judgments and settlements. The appropriate agency at DHHR will provide

BRIM the Trauma Registry for BRIM's use in assessing those facilities.

Mrs. Pickens thereafter noted that we submitted our Response to Comments

regarding the Mine Subsidence Rule, and that information concerning program changes

has also been posted on our website. She also noted that an emergency rule had been

filed because of the many questions that remained unanswered regarding the program
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changes. The amount that BRIM can reinsure will increase from $75,000 to $200,000.
The new law takes effect October 1, 2016.

Continuing with her report, Mrs. Pickens mentioned the status of the claims
resulting from the flood of June 23, 2016, Winter Storm Jonas, and the April Hail Storm.

In addressing the matter of Cyber Liability Insurance Coverage, Mrs. Pickens
stated that 159 state entities are currently covered under the policy, with 10 having yet
to apply for coverage. Four of these entities are the WVU Practice Plans and may
choose to go with WVU or WVU Hospital. WVU has selected a broker and purchased a
cyber liability policy.

Cyber Incidents — Of the six reports, the most crucial of which is the Water
Development Authority (WDA), which involves some improperly downloaded WDA data
and provided to a local reporter on a USB device. The amount of information provided
appears to be substantial. Our cyber attorney has been in contact with the reporter and
written a letter requesting return of the information. The forensic team is waiting until
the information is returned before proceeding.

Risk Management Information System (RMIS) — Of the seven bids received, only
five were eligible for consideration. After the scoring of the technical proposals has
been completed, the pricing proposals will then be considered.

On-line Claim Reporting — The current on-line claim submission application has
been used since 1998 and no longer works as designed. We met with OT and
received quotes ranging from $18,000 to $45,000; however, during the RMIS product

demonstrations, it became clear that most vendors will have on-line claim reporting
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available as part of their system and without any further expense on our part.
Therefore, at the present time, this project is on hold.

Greenbrooke Building — BRIM will take possession of our main office space on
September 28". We will keep our current phone number but will receive new fax
number.

Personnel — Barbara Houchins, a Claim Representative and valued member of
the BRIM team since 2004, will be retiring at the end of October 2016. We do plan to
fill this vacancy.

Miscellaneous

BRIM's Auditors — Members from our new auditing firm, Dixon Hughes

Goodman, were in our office from August 25 through the first part of September.

Annual State Risk and Insurance Management Association (STRIMA) —
This annual conference will take place in Reno, Nevada from September 19t
through the 22", Robert Fisher, Steve Schumacher, Melody Duke, Chuck
Mozingo and | will be attending. Steve, Melody and Chuck will attend on on
scholarships. Robert is the Past President, and Melody Duke has been
nominated for President-Elect, who will be chosen at the upcoming State

Business Meeting.

BRIM Financial Report

There being no questions, Chairman Martin called upon Mr. Schumacher to
present the Chief Financial Officer's Report. The Statement of Net Position for the
Twelve Months Ended June 2016 and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Net Position for the Twelve Months Ended June 2016 were received and

filed, copies of which are attached and made a part of the record.
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A CD containing the May and June 2016 purchasing card invoices was
distributed to each Board member. The Chairman signed the acknowledgement
form for the February, March and April 2016 billings. The acknowledgement form is
retained by the Finance Department.

Mr. Schumacher thereafter reviewed the financial results through June 2016,
which is currently being reviewed by the auditors, Dixon Hughes Goodman. He stated
that the audit was going quite well and concluded that the combined reserve numbers
are roughly $168 million, so the reserves have gone up again—in total about $7.5
million.

Continuing, he stated that premium revenue is up this year, primarily because we
did increase premiums. The primary driver of that was the actuarial numbers which are
projecting increases in the losses, so obviously we're trying to not lose too much ground
from where they predict we're going to be on losses, so premium revenue was up over
$6 million.

Mr. Schumacher thereafter noted that claims expenses were actually down this
year as compared to last year, the reason being primarily because BRIM paid out about
$4.5 million less in payments less than we did in the prior year.

We are still down on operating basis $9.2 million, a significant reduction from the
prior year, the loss mostly attributable to the fact that we still gave money back in
premium rates and the fact that reserves are still going up on an annual basis.
However, this trend has slowed considerably.

Mr. Schumacher further stated, relative to the investment side, that last year for

the Bank of New York, there was only about a 1.2% overall return on the fixed income
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side. A 4% discount was built into the rates, so we were actually losing money there.
But this year, the overall returns, because the rates stayed low and actually went
lower—were about 3.8%. We were close to where we wanted to be on the funds with
the IMB based on how we discount our premiums with the Bank of New York, whereas
with the IMB side, we've had a couple of years in a row where we've obviously
underperformed that 5% benchmark they've tried to achieve on the portfolio, and again,
we had a negative .4% return in FY 16 and only had a 1.7% return last year.

Overall, the investment numbers are not where we'd like for them to be. We had
an overall return of 2% return this year versus 1.4% last year. We would like to see
about 4% but if we can get 2-3% and get 5% on the IMB, we're going to get close to the
overall 4%, which would get us as close as we need to be on the rate prospective on
trying to maintain our capital where we are without losing ground.

Premium to net asset reserve calculation — We will be compiling the information
for that and getting the benchmark information together over the next couple of months
and will present it to the Board at the next meeting.

In closing his report, Mr. Schumacher announced that he had been notified by
the Government Financial Officers Association (GFOA) that BRIM was awarded the
Certificate of Achievement for Excellent in Financial Reporting for BRIM's
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the year ended June 30, 2015.

This marks the 21%! consecutive year that BRIM has received this award.
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Loss Control Report

There being no questions for Mr. Schumacher, the Loss Control Report was
thereafter presented by Robert Fisher, Deputy Director/Claim Manager. The report was
received and filed, a copy of which is attached and made a part of the record.

Mr. Fisher began by stating that the Loss Control staff is in the progress of
evaluating the Loss Control questionnaires, the results of which will be used to calculate
the credits and surcharges for the next fiscal year's premium. Thus far, 166 evaluations
have been completed.

Continuing, Mr. Fisher noted that two boiler seminars would be held in October;
that the Risk Management Information System (RMIS), will be able to process various
reports electronically, making it possible to eliminate paper reports, and that Jeremy
Wolfe will be a guest presenter at the Office of the Insurance Commissioner's annual
state agency workers’ compensation program conference.

Mr. Fisher ended his report by summarizing the number of Loss Control,
Standards of Participation, and Presentation visits the loss control staff had completed
since his last report.

There were no questions for Mr. Fisher.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

There was no unfinished business to be discussed.

NEW BUSINESS

There was no new business to be discussed.
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ADJOURNMENT

There being nothing further, the meeting adjourned at 2:16 p.m.
L G
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Executive Director’s Report
September 13, 2016

A. Marshall University and West Virginia University Medical Malpractice Program

As of September 6, 2016, Marshall has deposited $325,000.00 into the escrow account
for FY 2017. The fiscal year-to-date cumulative interest totals $1,345.51. Disbursements
totaling $339,814.56 have been paid thus far in FY 2017.

As of September 6, 2016, a total of $820,916.47 funds have been deposited into WVU's
escrow account for FY 2017. The fiscal year-to-date cumulative interest totals $2,531.86.
Disbursements totaling $824,558.59 have been paid thus far in FY 2017.

B. State Agency/Senate Bill #3 Liability Claim & Litigation Information

TRIALS
e Thus farin 2016, we have tried seven cases to a verdict. Three were defense
verdicts and four were plaintiff verdicts. One of the plaintiff verdicts was less
than the amount offered. One of the remaining plaintiff verdicts is being
appealed.
PAID CLAIMS (August 2016 Data)
e Claims Indemnity payments YTD total $27,004,194 vs. PYTD of $28,175,462, a
decrease of 4.16%.
e Claims Expense payments YTD total $12,147,952 vs. PYTD of $13,148,021, a
decrease of 7.61%.
OUTSTANDING CLAIMS (August 2016 Data)
® August 2016 Indemnity reserves total $59,262,944 vs. August 2015 Indemnity
reserves of $55,919,082, an increase of 5.98%.
e August 2016 Expense Reserves total $19,493,609 v. August 2015 Expense
reserves of $21,901,562, a decrease of 10.99%.
CLAIMS COUNTS (August 2016 Data)
e New claims YTD total 1950 vs. PYTD of 2073, a decrease of 5.93%.
e Closed claims YTD total 2183 vs. PYTD of 2094, an increase of 4.25%.
e Open claims YTD total 993 vs. PYTD of 1025, a decrease of 3.12%.
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C. Patient Injury Compensation Fund (PICF)

The PICF closed to new claims on June 30", The balance of the fund as of mid-July was
$3,764,661.91. This includes the money that was transferred from the HB 601 account. All
expenses properly chargeable to FY 2016 have now been paid.

Five claims became final during FY 2016. One claim was paid immediately as we were under
court order to make payment (though an appeal was pending), and one more relatively small
award is being paid in a lump sum payment. For the remaining three final claims, we have
called upon AIG to help us conclude these matters with the claimants and their attorneys. We
plan to utilize the authority given us by Code and by Rule to try to resolve these matters
through the use of structured settlements. AlG has contacted Ron Walters, one of their
partnered structured settlement brokers, to work with them to put together the structures.
We feel certain we have enough funding to resolve the claims that became final during the past
fiscal year. AIG and Ron are actively working on these three claims.

We have another 16 PICF claims pending. It is clear that we will not have enough money, based
on current funding opportunities provided by the Legislature, to pay all remaining claims in full
at the end of the fiscal year, assuming that all of them become final this year, which we hope
they will. We will utilize what monies we have at the end of each fiscal year to prorate
payments to eligible claimants whose claim became final during the year. We will continue to
do this until all claims are paid or until we run out of money.

In my last two reports to the Board | spelled out the funding streams provided by SB602. We
have written to each Circuit Clerk regarding collection of additional filing fees and collection of
a percentage of medical malpractice settlements; and have also discussed the matter with the
Administrator of the Supreme Court of Appeals. We are working with the Office of the
Insurance Commissioner (OIC) to gather information on medical malpractice claims that must
be reported to them. We will need a Memorandum of Understanding to get this information
and one is currently being prepared. We will get a report from the OIC on a quarterly basis and
use that information to assure that we are collecting the amounts due BRIM from medical
malpractice judgments and settlements We have also been in touch with the Trauma Registry
at DHHR and they have agreed to provide us with a report annually of Trauma Admissions by
facility. It will then be our responsibility to collect from those facilities.

D. Mine Subsidence

We submitted our Response to Comments submitted re our Mine Subsidence Rule.
We have also posted information re program changes on our website. The new law takes effect
on October 1, 2016.
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E. Flood of June 23, 2016

As of September 7, we have five state agencies with a flood claims pending. DOH has
three auto and one property claim, DHHR and Administrative Hearings have auto claims
pending and Parks and the School of Osteopathic Medicine have property claims pending. The
total pending on the open property claims is $115,000.

F. Winter Storm Jonas Claims

As of September 7, we have paid $320,289.17 and have pending reserves of
$2,577,500.00. We are awaiting a properly executed proof of loss on the claim for the Braxton
BOE and are beginning the process of issuing payment to the Armory Board in the amount of
$2,293,172.25.

G. April Hail Storm

We are working through the existing claims. Grafton Housing authority is the largest of
the outstanding claims and we’ve paid $306,900 on that loss to date. We have a total of seven
claims; one closed and six open for further adjustment by our property insurer. The current
amount paid for this storm is $1,955,008.00.

H. Cyber Liability Insurance Coverage

There are currently 159 state entities insured under the policy. We have 10 entities that
have yet to apply. We currently have no applications pending underwriting approval. We are
continuing to work to get the additional 10 entities insured. It should be noted that four of the
10 are the WVU Practice Plans that may choose to go with either WVU or WVU Hospital on
their policy.

WVU has selected a broker and procured a cyber liability policy. We reviewed the policy and
agreed to the purchase. Previously, we had given permission for them to seek coverage
separate from the coverage we purchased for the State. WVU purchased $10,000,000 in
coverage with a $1,000,000 self-insured retention. WVU partnered with Willis and Beazley for
its coverage.

I Cyber Incidents

We have had a total of six cyber incidents that have required us to involve cyber
counsel. Most recently, we’ve dealt with an incident involving old Spencer State Hospital
medical records which ended up on eBay; a matter involving a mailing snafu involving letters
from CPRB that contained limited PEIA information; and a more serious incident involving the
Water Development Authority.

The records incident and the mailing snafu were addressed without need for any notification or
any other action beyond some assistance of counsel.
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The Water Development Authority (WDA) matter involves some improperly downioaded WDA
data which was provided to a local reporter on a USB device. The agency has been the subject
of several articles written by the local reporter and the amount of information provided
appears to be substantial. We have engaged the services of a forensic team to copy the WDA
server and several of its computers. Our cyber attorney has been in contact with the reporter
and has issued a letter requesting return of the information. Protective Services and others
have become involved with the matter and are awaiting information as to whether we will be
able to retrieve the inappropriately downloaded data. Based on the information known to
date, counsel has advised that the WDA presently has no obligation to make notification or take
other actions as a result of the incident. This may change if we obtain the downloaded data.
The forensic team is also awaiting return of the information before it can proceed any further.

Ji Risk Management Information System (RMIS)

A total of seven bids were received prior to the submission deadline. One bidder was
eliminated as it did not attend the mandatory pre-bid conference. One other bidder was
eliminated during the demonstration process when it was discovered that they had included
pricing information in the technical submission. It is mandatory that all pricing information be
separately submitted in a sealed envelope that will not be opened and considered until the
technical proposal scoring has been completed. The RFP review committee, which is made up
of five management personnel from BRIM, along with the Director of IS&C and the Office of
Technology (OT) database administrator for our program, participated in a demonstration of
the proposed systems for the five remaining vendors. The review committee is now in the
process of scoring the submissions.

K. On-line Claim Reporting

BRIM has utilized an on-line claim submission application that was created in 1998. Due
to many software changes and upgrades over the years, the application no longer works as
designed. We met with OT to see if they could design a new application. We received quotes
ranging from approximately $18,000 to $45,000 depending on the platform chosen. We have
put this project on hold as we seek a new RMIS opportunity. During the demonstrations of the
RMIS products, it became clear that most vendors will have on-line claim reporting available as
part of their system without any additional effort or expense on our part. If we should happen
to choose a RMIS vendor that does not have on-line claim reporting as part of its product, then
we will have to reconsider our options to create such an application.

L Greenbrooke Building

We currently are operating under the belief that we will “take possession’ of our main
office space at the Greenbrooke Building on September 28", We have movers lined up to move
our belongings during the last week of September and it is anticipated that the move will take
three days. Our existing cubicle equipment will be disassembled and moved to the new
building by Contemporary Galleries, the vendor that has worked with us on this equipment for

90 MACCORKLE AVENUE SW, Suite 203 (304) 766-2646
SOUTH CHARLESTON, WV 25303 (304) 744-7120 FAX
www.brim.wv.gov (800) 345-4669 TOLL FREE WV




many years. We will keep our current main telephone number, but will receive new fax
numbers. Many details are being addressed to make the move successful. Each person is
packing the material in his or her own personal space and collectively we will pack the materials
in the common space. It is possible that for part of move week, we will have personnel working
from both facilities to ensure that we provide adequate service to all of our customers without
interruption.

M. Personnel

Barbara Houchins, a Claim Representative and valued member of the BRIM team since
2004, has given notice that she plans to retire at the end of October 2016. While we can’t
replace Barb, we to plan to fill the vacancy she leaves as soon as possible. We wish her much
health, happiness and success as she enters the next stage of her life.

N. Miscellaneous

BRIM’s auditors were in our office from August 15 thru the first part of September
completing their field work. This is the first year for our new auditing firm, Dixon Hughes
Goodman, though we’ve worked with the assigned partner in the past when he was with
another firm.

The annual State Risk and Insurance Management Association (STRIMA) Conference will
take place in Reno, Nevada from September 19" thru the 22"9, Robert Fisher, Steve
Schumacher, Melody Duke, Chuck Mozingo and | will be attending. Robert is the Past President
of STRIMA and Melody’s name has been put in nomination for President-Elect, who will be
chosen at the State Business Meeting on Thursday morning. Chuck is chairperson of an
educational session entitled “Violence and Active Shooters in Our Schools and Offices”. In
addition to serving as Chairperson, Chuck is also a presenter for the session and Melody is
serving as the session moderator. | would note that Steve, Melody and Chuck are attending on
scholarships awarded by STRIMA which pays their registration and expenses for the conference.

MIJP/RAF:Iid
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Chief Financial Officer’s Report
September 13, 2016

A. P Card Report

CD copies contain the supporting detail for P card purchases for the months of May and
June, 2016. These totals are:

May $35,175.07

June $48,319.41

B. Financial Results

» The financial results provided for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 are preliminary
and subject to year-end audit review. Reserves reflect the results of AON's completed
risk funding study as of June 30, 2016. The risk funding study will be reviewed by DHG
LLP as part of their normal year-end audit work. The audit will be completed by mid-
October and then BRIM's final audited financial statements for FY’16 will be issued.

e Premium revenue for FY'16 is $6.4 million higher than the prior year. BRIM increased
premiums primarily to cover an increase in actuarially projected claims costs for FY'16.

e Total claims expense for FY'16 decreased by $4.2 million when compared to FY'15.
Although total claims reserves are $7.5 million higher vs. FY'15, total net claims
payments decreased in FY’16. Liability claims payments decreased by $4.4 million in
FY'16 after increasing $9.1 million in FY'15.

e The overall increase in claims reserves slowed in FY'16 when compared to the
previous four years.

e Investment income for FY'16 increased by $2.6 million vs. FY'15. In FY'18 equity
returns were a drag on investment income. For FY'15, lower fixed income rates
significantly reduced BRIM's overall investment earnings.

e The overall rate of return on all BRIM funds invested was 2.0% for FY'16 vs. 1.4% for
FY'15. The rate of return on trust funds was 3.8% for FY'16 which was much better
than the 1.2% return in FY'15. However, the funds invested with the West Virginia
Investment Management Board lost about $0.5 million or (0.4%) vs. earnings of $2.4
million or 1.7% last year.

e The overall financial results show a net loss of $1.8 million for FY'16 versus a net loss
of $15.6 miillion for FY'15. These losses are being driven by increasing claims reserves
and dramatically lower investment earnings.
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C. Premium to Net Asset Reserve Ratio

The net asset reserve policy was approved by the Board on August 27, 2013. The
policy’s intent is to compare BRIM's ratio of premium revenue and net assets to a
calculated combined ratio of premium revenue and net assets derived from a group of
similar insurance-type entities. The resulting combined premium to net asset ratio
establishes a benchmark and utilizes a band of +/- 10% around the calculated
percentage. The resulting upper and lower bands are used to help guide the Board in
assessing BRIM's overall financial condition relative to the acceptable range. The
acceptable range assists in measuring an adequate level of capital for BRIM and also
provides some flexibility in establishing premium rates from one year to the next.

It is anticipated that BRIM will provide the Board with updated results for the premium
to net asset reserve ratio at the next board meeting when the final audit results as of
June 30, 2016 will also be presented.

D. Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) Recognition

We were recently notified by the Government Financial Officers Association (GFOA)
that BRIM was awarded the GFOA's prestigious Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting for BRIM's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) for the year ended June 30, 2015. This is GFOA's highest form of recognition
for excellence in governmental accounting and financial reporting. This marks the 21*
consecutive year that BRIM has been acknowledged for this outstanding achievement.

Respectfully submitted,

e

Stephen W. Schumacher, CPA
Chief Financial Officer
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West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Statements of Net Position

For the Twelve Months Ended June 30th

2016 2015
(In Thousands)
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 15,748 11,286
Advance deposits with insurance company and trustee 210,152 204,219
Receivabales 1,254 1,934
Prepaid insurance 0 0
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 10,198 8,219
Restricted receivables: 0 0
Premiums due from other entities 620 599

Total current assets 237,973 226,256

Noncurrent assets:

Equity position in internal investments pools 83,881 89,199
Restricted investments 48,441 48,625

Total noncurrent assets 132,322 137,824

Total assets 370,295 364,080

Deferred Outflows of Resources 127 127

Liabilities

Current liabilities:

Estimated unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense 50,819 47,890
Unearned premiums 8,300 7,659
Agent commissions payable 1,100 1,032

Claims Payable 0 0
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 978 1,137

Total current liabilities 61,198 57,718

Estimated unpaid claims and claims adjustment expense net of current portion 117,616 113,071

Compensated absences 91 76

Net pension liability 253 253

Total noncurrent liabilities 117,961 113,400

Total liabilities 179,159 171,118

Deferred Inflows of Resources 270 270

Net position:

Restricted by State code for House Bill 601 Program and mine subsidence coverage 55,427 55,427
Unrestricted 137,393 152,988
Net Assets (Deficiency) (1,827) (15,595)

Net position $ 190,993 § 192,820







West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

For the Twelve Months Ended June 30th

2016 2015
(In Thousands)

Operating revenues

Premiums $ 65293 § 58,204
Less coverage/reinsurance programs (6,909) (6,197)
Net operating revenues 58,384 52,007
Operating expenses

Claims and claims adjustment expense 63,753 68,145
General and administrative 3,871 3,539
Total operating expenses 67,624 71,685
Operating income (loss) (9,240) (19,678)
Nonoperating revenues

Investment income 7,413 4,833
Appropriation Transfer HB4261 0
Payment to transfer HB601 estimated future IBNR — (750)
Net nonoperating revenues 7,413 4,083
Changes in net position (1,827) (15,595)
Total net position, beginning of year 192,820 208,415

Total net position, end of period $ 190,993 § 192,820
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Loss Control Report to the Board
September 2016

As is our late summer custom, we are currently evaluating loss
control questionnaire submissions for our state agencies. The results
will be used to calculate loss control credits and surcharges for next
fiscal year’s premium. To date, we have completed 166 evaluations.

BRIM and Hartford Steam Boiler will sponsor two boiler safety
and operational seminars this fall. We hope these seminars will once
again attract large crowds and that what participants learn at the
seminars will help us continue to keep boiler losses minor at a
minimum.

We had our quarterly meeting with Aon and are pleased with
changes made to the reports they provide to us. We discussed the
anticipated new Risk Management Information System (RMIS) that
we hope to have in the near future and what changes it might portend
for future reporting and interaction. We anticipate that we will be
able to process reports electronically and virtually eliminate the need
for paper reports. Aon has experienced some changes in staffing, but
it hasn’t negatively affected the quality of their services. We continue
to be pleased with the relationship.

Jeremy Wolfe will be a guest presenter at the Office of the
Insurance Commissioner’s (OIC) annual state agency workers
compensation program conference. Jeremy, along with the State Fleet
Management Office and the OIC, will offer “Fleet Risk Management
Techniques” and best practices to the participants to help them assess
their own agency fleet programs with an eye to instituting practices
and procedures to help their agency reduce their exposure to risk.

90 MACCORKLE AVENUE SW, Suite 203 (304) 766-2646
SOUTH CHARLESTON, WV 25303 (304) 744-7120 FAX
www.brim.wv.gov (800) 345-4669 TOLL FREE WV




During the months of July, August, and September Aon
conducted 304 inspections and Hartford conducted 400. The reports
are being processed according to established procedures.

Since my last report, our loss control technical staff reports the
following activity:

5 Loss Control Visits
These are standard loss control visits which focus
on all coverage areas and which result in
information and/or loss control recommendations
being provided.

14 Standards of Participation Visits
These are visits which are designed to provide
assistance to our insured who are seeking to
become compliant with the BRIM Standards of
Participation program.

2 Presentation Visits
These are visits during which we provide active
training and/or outreach to a group of individuals.

You will recall that the number of loss control visits is markedly

reduced during the period in which we evaluate loss control
questionnaire submissions.

Dated: S%ﬂ'méfw 2 zZolé

Respectfully submitted,

I L fosa e

Robert A. Fisher
Deputy Director and Claim Manager

90 MACCORKLE AVENUE SW, Suite 203 (304) 766-2646
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